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22-0/PC: 46/2/2009 23 November 2009 

Mr. Nizam Hassan 
General Manager 
New Guyana Marketing Corporation 
Robb & Alexander Streets 
Georgetown. 

Dear Mr. Hassan, 

RE: AUDIT OF NEW GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

FOR THE YEAR 2008 

Please :find attached three copies of the audited :financial statements, together with the report of 
the Auditor General, thereon. 

Should you need any further explanation, please do not hesitate to contact us. 

With best regards. 

Yours sincerely, 
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL 
ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

23 November 2009 

OF THE NEW GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 

Chartered Accountants Nizarn Ali & Company have audited on my behalf the :financial statements 
of New Guyana Marketing Corporation for the year ended 31 December 2008, as set out on pages 2 
to 13. The audit was conducted in accordance with the Audit Act 2004_ 

Management's responsibility for the financial statements 

Management-i s responsible for the preparation and fair presentati0n of.these :§nanc-ial-S-tatements 
in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes: 
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of :financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting 
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. 

Auditor's responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the :financial 
statements, whether due to fraud and error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the :financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An 
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the :financial statements. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the 
New Guyana Marketing Corporation as of 31 December 2008, and of its financial performance 
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards and comply with the Companies Act 1991. 

Emphasis of Matter 

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 2 (i) to the financial statements. 
Management has represented to us that the Corporation is exempt from Corporation and Property 
taxes. We are unable to ascertain the necessary authority that gives legal effect to this exemption. 
Management is in the process of establishing this authority. The Corporation has not paid any 
Corporation or Property taxes since its formation and no provision for such taxes has been made 
in these financial statements. 

AUDIT OFFICE 
63 HIGH STREET 
KINGSTON 
GEORGETOWN 
GUYANA 
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Nizam Ali & Company 
Chartered Accountants 

REPORT OF CHARTERED ACCOUNT ANT 
NIZAM ALI & COMPANY 

TO THE AUDITOR GENERAL 

Tel: (592)-227-8825 
Tele/Fax: (592)-225-7085 
E-mail: nizamali@gol.net.gy

ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF NEW GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2008 

We have audited che accompanying financial statemencs of New Guyana Marketing Corporation which comprise the balance 
sheet as at December 31, 2008 and the statements M net loss, changes in equity and cash now tor the ) ear then ended. and a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are 
reasonable in the circumstances. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our Judit in 
accordance with lncemational Standards on Auditing. Those standards r�uire that we comply with-ethical rnt;Juir..:merHs and phm 
11nd perform the audifto ol:nain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain evidence about the amounts and disclosures in che financial scatements. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments. the auditors consider internal .;omrol 
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by management, as wel I as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate lo provide a basis tor our audit opinion. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Corporation as of 
December 31, 2008 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with fntemational 
Financial Reporting Standards and comply with the Companies Act 1991. 

Emphasis of matter 

Without qualifying our opinion we draw attention to note 2(i) to the financial statements. Management has represented to us that 
the Corporation is exempt from Corporation and Property taxes. We are unable to ascertain the necessary authority that gives 
legal effect to this exemption. Management is in the process of establishing this authority. The Corporation has not paid any 
Corporation or Property taxes since its formation and no provision for such taxes has been made in these financial statc:111.:nts. 

/! IJ() �� 
4/1;;,_ .;. (Jf:10'\. 0 ��Accountants � 

�;���n, Guyana 
October I 2, 2009 

Partners: 

-correspondent firm of KPMG International Nizam Ali - FCCA, CTA 

Leslie Veerasammy - FCCA 

I 

I 



,-. 

I ,_ 

,, 

' 

,. 

-

r· 

L 

,_ 

New Guyana Marketing Corporation 
Balance Sheet 
As at December 31, 2008 
With comparative figures for 2007 
(Expressed in Guyana Dollars) 

2008 2007 

Notes � � 
Assets 

Property, plant and eqpipment 3(i) 51,062,220 37,006,223 

Current assets 
Inventories 4 3,304,190 1,371,515 
Receivables and prepayments 5 7,523,848 3,620,584 
Cash on hand and at bank 6 606,725,961 42,169,541 

617,553,999 . 47,161,640 

Total assets 668,616,219 84,167,863 

Current liabilities 
Payables and accruals 7 3,559,660 4,184,788 
Deferred Income 8 604,999,000 

608,558,660 4,184,788 

Equity 
Government of Guyana 25,102,348 25,102,348 
Capital reserves 3(ii) 11,945,965 11,945,965 
Retained earnings 23,009,246 42,934,762 

60,057,559 79,983,075 

Total equity and liabilities 668,616,219 84,167,863 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 

T�;
�

m ncial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on���� .. ¥..�.�?,0Zid signed on its behalf by:

�r- ,···:-�ll't� �--
Director · - Director 
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New Guyana Marketing Corporation i 
Statement of Net Loss 

For the year ended December 31, 2008 

With comparative figures for 2007 

(Expressed in Guyana Dollars) 

2008 2007 

Notes � ! 

Sales 168, 180,43 I I 1,452,366 

Cost of sales 9 (162,845,290) (9,421,579) 

Operating income 5,335,141 2,030,787 

Other income 10,131,637 18,702,755 

Government grant 89,019,967 49,167,000 

104,486,745 69,900,542 

Expenses 

Administrative 11 (85,182,001) (60,135,962) 

Selling and distributi?n 10 (38,958,234) (2, I 46,321) 

Financial 12 (272,026) ( 117.439) 

(124,412,261) (62,399,722) 

Net loss for the year (J 9,925,516) 7,500.820 

'. 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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New Guyana Marketing Corporation 

Statement of Changes in Equity 

For the year ended December 31, 2008 
With comparative figures for 2007 

(Expressed in Guyana Dollars) 

Government Capital Retained 

of Guyana Reserves Earnings Total 

I � 

Year ended December 31, 2008 

As at beginning of year 25,102,348 11,945,965 42,934,762 79,983,075 

Net income (19,925,5 I 6) (19,925,516) 

As at end of year 25,102,348 11,945,965 23,009,246 60,057,559 

Year ended December 31, 2007 

As at beginning of year 25,102,348 l 1,945,965 35,433,942 72,482,255 

Net income 7,500,820 7,500,820 

As at end of year 25,102,348 11,945,965 42,934,762 79,983,075 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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New Guyana Marketing Corporation 
Statement of Cash Flows 
For the year ended December 31, 2008 
With comparative figures for 2007 
(Expressed in Guyana Dollars) 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Net loss for the year 
Adjustment for: 
Depreciation 

Operating income before working capital changes 

Increase in inventories 
Increase in receivables and prepayments 
(Decrease) increase in payables and accruals 
Increase in deferred income 

Net cash inflow from operating activities 

Investing activities 

Acquisition of property and equiprnent 

Net cash outflow from investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents. 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year. 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year. 

2008 

� 

(19,925,516) 

2,977,814 

(16,947,702) 

(1,932,675) 

(3,903,264) 
(625,128) 

604,999,000 

581,590,23 I 

(17,033,811) 

(17,033,811) 

564,556,420 

42,169,541 

606, 725,96 I 

The accompanying notes form an integral pai1 of these financial statements. 
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2007 

� 

7,500,820 

1,407,674 

8,908,494 

(368,416) 
(3,222,475) 
1,418,02 I 

6,735,624 

(21,589,934) 

(21,589,934) 

(14,854,310) 

57,023,851 

42, I 69,541 
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New Guyana Marketing Corporation 
Notes to the financial statements 
December 31, 2008 
(Expressed in Guyana Dollars) 

I. Incorporation and business activities

The principal activity of the Corporation is the facilitation and exportation of non-traditional fresh and processed
agricultural products.

2. The significant accounting policies a1·e:

(a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. The Corporation's
accounting policies conform with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with fFRS requires the use of certain judgements,

estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The most significant of these arise on the determination of
the retirement benefit plan liability and the estimation of the expected useful lives of property, plant and

In the current year, IFRS 7 , 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures', and the complementary amendment to lAS
I, 'Presentation of financial instruments-Capital disclosures', introduces new disclosures relating to financial
instruments but does not have any impact on the classification and valuation of the Corporation's financial

instruments.

The followins interpretations to publish standards are effective from the current financial year but they are
not expected to be relevant to the Corporation's operations:

IFRJC 7 

IFRIC 8 
IFRJC 9 
IFRIC 10 
IFRIC 11 

IFRJC 12 
IFRIC 13 
IFRIC 14 

Applying the restatement approach under !AS 29, financial reporting in hyperintlationary 
economies. 
Scope of IFRS 2 
Re-assessment of embedded derivatives. 
Interim financial reporting and impairment 
IFRS 2 - Group and treasury share transactions. 

Service concession 
Customer loyalty programmes 

!AS 19 - The limit on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding requirements and their
interactions.

The following standard, amendment and interpretations to existing standards have been published but are not 
expected to have a material implication on the Corporation's financial statements: 

!AS 23 Borrowing cost amendment

IFRS 8 Operating segments

!AS I (Revised) Presentation of financial statements

IFRS 5 Non current assets held for sale

IAS 36 (Revised) Impairment of assets

!AS 19 (Revised) Employee Benefits

6 



New Guyana Marketing Corporation 

Notes to the financial statements 

December 31, 2008 

(Expressed in Guyana Dollars) 

2. Significant accounting policies (Cont'd)

(b) Property, plant and equipment

Properties are recorded at cost or at independent professional valuations less accumulated depreciation.

Other fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

Property, plant and equipment is tested for impairment whenever there is objective evidence that the carrying
amount of the asset may exceed its recoverable amount. Any resulting impairment loss is recognised

immediately in the statement of net income.

Increase in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of properties are credited to capital reserve in equity.
Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset are charged against that reserve; al I other decreases
are charged to the statement of net income.

Freehold building and other fixed assets are depreciated on a straight line basis at rates estimated to write off
the assets over their expected useful economic lives. Assets acquired during the year are depreciated from
the date of acquisition.

Current rates of depreciation are:

Building 

Machinery and Equipment 
Furniture and Fittings 
Motor Vehicles 

(c) Inventories

2% per annum 

l 0% per annum 
12.50% per annum 

25% per annum 

Inventories are valued at the lower of the cost and net realisable value with cost being determined on a first-in•
first-out basis.

(d) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposit held on
call with bank and other bank balances.

(e) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised upon the delivery of goods and performance of services and the acceptance by
customers.

(f) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Corporation has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of

past events, it is probable that an outflow embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
qbligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be-made.
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New Guyana Marketing Corporation 

Notes to the financial statements 

December 31, 2008 

(Expressed in Guyana Dollars) 

2. Significant accounting policies (Cont'd)

(g) Foreign Currencies

Transactions involving foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of these
transactions. At the balance sheet date, all assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated to Guyana dollars at the exchange rate ruling at that date. Gains and losses arising from the
settlement of transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies, are recognised in the statement of net income. 

(h) Retirement Benefit Plan

The Corporation operates a defined contribution pension plan administrated by Clico Life and General
Tnsurance Company (S.A.) Limited. The Corporation's contributions are charged to the statement of net
income. 

(i) Government grants

Government grants received to compensate the Corporation's costs are recognised in the Statement of Net
Income in t�e period in which these costs are incurred.

U) Impairment of long-lived assets

In accordance with best practice, long lived assets, such as plant, and equipment are reviewed for impairrnent 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount
of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognised as the amount
by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset.

(k) Taxation

This Corporation is exempted from corporation and property tax.

8 
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New Guyana Marketing Corporation 

Notes to the financial statements 

December 31, 2008 
(Expressed in Guyana dollars) 

3(i). Property, plant and equipment 

Machinery & Furniture & Motor 

Land Building Equipment Fittings Vehicles Total 

1 1 I 1 1 
Cost 

At 1 January 2008 3,458,037 22,794,332 l5,844,96J 9,777,892 2,983,095 54,858,324 

Additions - 14,945,232 1,031,311 1,057,268 - 17,033,81 I

Disposal - - (695,00 - - (695,000)

At 31 December 2008 3,458,037 37,739,564 16,181,279 10,835,160 2,983,095 71,197,135

Ac;cumulated depreciation 

At I January 2008 - 3,546,839 6,503,833 4,818,334 2,983,095 17,852, I 01 

Charges for the year 596,72] 1,621.219 759,874 2,977,814 

(695,000
1 

Write back on disposal - - (695,000) 

At 31 December 2008 4,143,560 7,430,0521 5,578,208 2,983,095 20,134,915 

Net book value 

At 31 December 2008 3,458,037 33,596,004 8,751,227 5,256,952 - 51,062,220

Net book value 
At 31 December 2007 3,458,037 19,247,493 9,341, 1351 4,959,558 - 37,006,223

3(ii). The freehold land and building were revalued in 1989 based on professional adrce received, the surplus of $ 11,945,965 arising out of 
this revaluation has been credited to capital reserves.

3(iii). Included in land and building is an amount of$ 60,729 representing the value tf a building situated on land owned by the Government
of Guyana. 

� -



New Guyana Marketing Corporation 
Notes to the financial statements 

December 31, 2008 
(Expressed in Guyana Dollars) 

4. Inventories

Goods for resale 

5. Receivables and prepayments

Trade receivables 

Sundry receivables 
Prepayments 

6. Cash and deposits

Cash in hand anq bank 

7. Payables and accruals

Sundry creditors 

Accruals 
Trade creditors 

8. Deferred Income

This represents:

(i) Unutilized Capital Subsidy of five million dollars; and

2008 

� 

3,304,190 

2008 

� 

206,616 
6,770,814 
546,418 

7,523,848 

2008 

! 

606,725,961 

2008 

i 

3,559,660 

3,559,660 

2007 

� 

1,3 7 I ,5 I 5 

2007 

I 

11,890 
3,608,694 

3,620,584 

2007 

! 

42,169,542 

2007 

i 

236,670 

3,942,359 
5,758 

4,184,787 

(ii) Fertilizer Subvention received on September 18, 2008, to be used for purchasing of fertilizer for resale to
farmers at a subsidized cost.

9. Cost of sales

2008 2007 

I i 

Opening stock 1,371,515 1,003,099 
Purchases 164,777,965 9,789,995 

166,149,480 10,793,094 
Less closing stock (3,304, 190) (1,371,515) 

162,845,290 9,421,579 

10 



New Guyana Marketing Corporation 

Notes to the financial statements 

December 31, 2008 

(Expressed in Guyana Dollars) 

10. Selling and distribution

Advertising 

Local exhibition 

11. Administrative

Audit fees 

Depreciation 

Donations 

Electricity 

Employment cost 

Export documents 

General expense 

Insurance 

Internet and telex charges 

Legal fees 

Meals and entertainment 

Office expenses 

Packaging and wrapping 

Rates and taxes 

Rental 

Repairs and maintenance 

Security 

Stationery and printing 

Subscription 

Telephone 

Transportation and traveling 

Consultancy 

Custom duties 

Suspense ale 

2008 

� 

8,556,959 

30,401,275 

38,958,234 

2008 

i 

1,400,620 

2,977,814 

387,428 

2,891,271 

37,967,060 

2,500 

4,083,461 

522,400 

50,000 

860,628 

11,057,431 

616,372 

284,504 

1,694,855 

8,993,288 

2,857, I 05 

3,556,356 

182.022 

l, 114,808 

3,404,149 

15,000 

15,000 

247,928 

85, 182,00 I 

2007 

� 

2,052,321 

94.000 

:?..146,321 

2007 

� 

1,218,375 

1,407,674 

429,529 

1,776,249 

25.430.886 

4,500 

1,295,493 

425,794 

53,720 

58,000 

1,342,837 

12,085,637 

60,710 

322,426 

1.429,025 

3,634,696 

1,233,3 JS 

4,550,861 

4,160 

742,773 

2,317,352 

316,460 

19,000 

(23,513) 

60,135,962 

I 
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New Guyana Marketing Corporation 
Notes to the financial statements 
December 31, 2008 
(Expressed in Guyana Dollars) 

12. Financial

Bank charges 
Bank interest 

13. Government Grant

Subsidy Capital 
Subsidy - Monthly Subvention 
Flour Subvention 
Bee Congress Subsidy 
Grow More Subsidy 
Agro Fest Subsidy 
Fertilizer Subvention 

14. Directors emoluments

Remuneration for serving as Directors

G. Da Silva - Chairman
E. Rodney
Ms. Yilma Da Silva
Dr. Leslie Chin
T. Ramnauth
B. Singh
0. Homenauth
P.Persaud
J. Ramnauth
R.Ali
D. Doodnauth
B. Sears
K. Samaroo
R. Singh
R. Raggemauth
Rajdai Jagarnauth
V. Piers
S. Naughton
N. Dharanlalli

15. Key management personnel

2008 

1 

242,440 
29,586 

272,026 

2008 

� 
I 4,000,000 
46,075,294 
17,973,673 
8,770,000 
5,000,000 
2,200,000 

600,000,000 
694,018,967 

2008 

i 

30,000 

24,000 
24,000 

24,000 
24,000 

24,000 
24,000 
24,000 
24,000 
24,000 

24,000 
24,000 
24,000 

318,000 

2007 

� 

117,439 

I 17,439 

2007 

� 
10,200,000 
38,967,000 

49,167,000 

2007 

i 

35,000 
8,000 

28,000 
28,000 
4,000 
4,000 

28,000 
20,000 
4,000 

20,000 
20,000 
20,000 
16,000 
20,000 
4,000 

12,000 
4,000 
4,000 
4,000 

283,000 

Five (5) individuals are considered as key management personnel. During the year remuneration paid to these 
individuals amounted to G$!2,488,500 (2006-G$7,09l,526). 

12 
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New Guyana Marketing Corporation 
Notes to the financial statements 
December 31, 2008 
(Expressed in Guyana Dollars) 

16. Financial risk management

(i) Liquidity risk

The contractual undiscounted Jashflows associated with the Corporation's financial liabilities of$3,559,660 
(2007-$4,184,787) are expected to fall due within 3 months of the balance sheet date. The Corporation 
manages its exposure to liquidity risk by projecting expected cash flows and managing financing to meet 
temporary short falls in cash flows. 

As at the year end, accounts receivable of $6,977,430 (2007 - $3,620,584) were neither past due nor impaired and 
were fully perfom1ing. None of the accounts receivable that are fully performing were renegotiated during the 
year. Management considers the credit risk on the balances due from third parries to be minimal given the nature 
of the items. 

(iii) Foreign currency risk

The Corporation's exposure to foreign exchange risk is limited by the denomination of the underlying transaction 
in stable foreign currencies. At Balance Sheet date there were no assets or liabilities denominated in foreign 

(iv) Fair value

The following table presents the carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the Corporation's financial 
instruments. 

2008 2007 
Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value 

Financial assets 
Cash and cash equivalents (I) 606,725, 96 I 606, 725,96 I 42,169,542 42,169,542 
Accounts receivable and prepayments (2) 7,523,848 7,523,848 3,620,584 3,620,584 

Financial liabilities 
Accounts payable and 
accrued liabilities (2) 3.559,660 3,559,660 4,J 84.787 ..J.184,787 

(l) Recorded at market value.
(2) Recorded at amortised cost. The fair value of accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities is

equivalent to the carrying amount given the short maturity period.

(v) Interest rate risk

The Corporation is not exposed to interesc rate risk since none of its instruments are interest bearing.

13 
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204/AG: 77/2010/96 29 September 2010 

Mr. Nizam Hassan 
General Manager 
Guyana Marketing Corporation 
Robb & Alexander Streets 
Georgetown. 

Dear Mr. Hassan, 

RE: AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 
NEW GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

Please find attached eight (8) copies of the audited financial statements, together with the report 
of the Auditor General, thereon. 

Should you need any further explanation, please do not hesitate to contact us. 

With best regards. 
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AG: 61/2010 29 September 2010 
I, 

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL 
TO TI-IE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

THE NEW GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 
ON THE FINANCIAL ST A TE!vIENTS 

FOR TI-IE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

Chartered Accountants Nizam Ali and Company have audited on my behalf the financial statements 
of New Guyana Marketing Corporation for the year ended 31 December 2009, as set out on pages 2 
to 13. The audit was conducted in accordance with the Audit Act 2004. 

1'1a11age111ent ·s re.sponsibility.fi>r the.financio/ statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance v--1ith the International Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes: 
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free of material misstatement, whether clue to fraud 
or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting 
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. 

Auditor's re.sponsibility 

lVIy responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I 
conducted the audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing issued by the 
International Federation of Accountants (IF AC) and those of the International Organisation of 
Supreme Audit Institutions (INTOSAI). Those standards require that I comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
cl isclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether clue to fraud and eri-or. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An 
nuclit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management_ as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
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As required by the Audit Act 2004, I have reviewed the audit plan and procedures, work papers, 
report and opinioi1 of the Chartered Accountants. I have also had detailed discussions with the 
Chartered Accoui:itants on all matters of significance to the audit and had cai'ried out additional 
examinations, as necessary, in arriving at my opinion. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for my audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects of the 
financial position of New Guyana Marketing Corporation as at 3 I December 2009 and of its 
financial performance and its cash ilo\-vs for the year then ended in conformity with International 
Financial Reportif'Ig Standards and the Companies Act 1991. 

Emphasis 

Without qualifying my opinion, I draw attention to note 2 (k) to the financial statements. 
Management has represented to me that the Corporation is exempt from Corporation and 
Property taxes. I am unable to ascertain the necessary authority that gives legal effect to this 
exemption. Management is in the process of establishing this authority. The Corporation has not 
paid any Corporation and Property taxes since its formation ancl no provision for such taxes has 
been made in these financial statements. 

AUDIT OFFICE 
63 HIGH STREET 
KINGSTON 
GEORGETOWN 
GUYANA 
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Nizam �Ii & Company 
Chartered Accountants 

215 'C' Camp Str·cct 
North Cummi11gsburg 
Georgetown 

REPORT OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT 
NIZAM ALI <� COMPANY 

TO THE AUDfTOR GENERAL 

Tel: 

Tele/Fax: 

R-mail:

(592)-227-8825 

(592)-225-7085 

nizamali@gol.nct.gy 

ON nm FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF NE\,V GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2009 

We hnve nuditcd Lhc accompanying financinl statements of New Guya1rn Mnrketing Corporntion which comprise the statement 
of financial position as at December 3 I, 2009 and the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cnsh now 
for the yenr then ended, ancl a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation or these financial statements in accnrdnr1cc with 
International Financial Reporting Standards. This responsi_bility includes: designing, implementing crnd nmin1ai11ing int�rnnl 
control relevant to the prepmnlion and fair presentation of tinnncial statements that arc frce from material mis:,l.itement, 
whether due to fraud or e1Tor; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies: and making accounting cstimntts tlrnt are 
rcnsonable in the circumstnnces. 

Auditors' Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
.11.Cc:nrdance withJ.nternntional Standards on Auditing,_Those standards require that we wmpl)' with ethical rcquire,rn:nts and 
plan and perform.th; audit Lo obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements an; li-1.:c frn111 n1;i1nial n,iss1atc111en1. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain evidence about the mnow11s and disclosure� in the lin:,m ial s1:11l'n,c111s The 
procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment or lilt: risb of 111atcrial 11iisslalen1rn1 or the 
financial statements, whether clue to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments. the m1di1ors consider internal c1111trol 
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the fi11ancial statements in order to design 11udi1 prnt:cdurt:s that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the eflectivcncss of the entity', i11t�mal 
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness ofaecounting policies used nnd the reasonableness nfaccounling 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation or the linancial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient nnd appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the financial statements presenl fairly, in all material respects, the tinancial position of lh� Corporation as of 
December JI, 2009 amt its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then emlecl in 111.:rnr�lnncc with l111cmatiunal 
Financial Reporting Standards and comply with the Companies Act 1991. 

Emplrnsis of matter 
Without q11111ilying our opinion we draw attention to note 2(kJ to the financial statements. Management has rcprt·sc11tcd to us 
that the Corporation is exempt from Corporation and Property taxes. We are unable to ascertain the. neccs�;1ry m1lhoril) that 
gives legal effect tu this exemption. Mnnnge1m:n1 is in the process of establishing this authority. The Curpora1iu11 h;1s not paid 
any Corporation or Property taxes since its lormation and no provision for sud1 laxes has been 111adt i11 these linancial 
statements. 

��A��s 
Georgetown, Guyana 
September 23, 20 I 0 

Partners: Nizam Ali- FCCA, CTA; Leslie Vccrasammy-FCCA 

I 

I 



I 
New Guyana Marketing Corporation 
Statement of Financial Position 
As at December 31,.2009 · 
With comparative figures for 2008 
(Expressed in Guyana Dollars) 

Assets 

Property, plant nnd equipment 

Current assets 
fnventories 
Receivables and prepayments 
Cash on hand and at bank 

Totnl nssets 

Current liabilities 
Payables and accruals 
Deferred Income 

Equity 
Government of Guyana 
Capital reserves 
Retained earnings 

Total equity and liabilities 

2009 

Notes � 

3(i) 53,176,012 

4 1,542,872 
5 8,095,876 
6 669,653,470 

679,292,218 

732,468,230 

7 4,665,365 
8 672,628,706 

677,294,071 

25, I 02,348 
3(ii) 11,945,965 

18,125,846 
55,174,159 

732,468,230 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 

2008 

;Ii 

51,062,220 

J,304,190 
7,523,848 

606,725,961 
617,553,999 

668,616,219 

3,559,660 
604,999,000 
608,558,660 

25, I 02.348 
11,945,965 
23,009,246 
60,057,559 

668,616,219 

C f td
These financial stat
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New Guyana Marketing Corporation 
Statement of Comprehensive Income 
For the year ended December 31, 2009 
With comparntive figures for 2008 
(Expressed in Guyann Dollars) 

Sales 

Cost of sales 

Operating income 

Other income 

Government grant 

Expenses 

Administrative 

Selling and distribution 

Pinnncinl 

Net loss for the yenr 

"' ., 
.... 

Notes 

9 

11 

IO 

12 

2009 

I 

28,848,195 

(23,806,972) 

5,04 I .223 

10,974,593 

210,101,61 I 

226,117,427 

(73,336,461) 

(157,422,478) 

(241,888) 

(231,000,827) 

(4,883,400] 

The accompanying notes form an integral pnrt of these financial statements. 

3 

i 

2008 

� 

168, I 80,43 I 

(162,845,290) 

5,:US,141 

I 0, 131,637 

89,019,967 

I 04,486,745 

(85,182,001) 

(]8,1)58,234) 

(272,026) 

(124,412,261) 

(19,925,516) 



New Guya1rn Marketing Corporntion 
Statement of Changes in Equity 
Fur the year eitded December 31, 2009 
With comparative figures for 2008 
(Expressed in Guyana Dollars) 

Government Capital Retained 
of Guyana Reserves Earnings Total 

i i 

Year ended December 31, 2009 

As at beginning of year 25,102,348 11,945,965 23,009,246 60,057,559 

Net loss (4,883,400) (4,883,400� 

As at end of year 25,102,348 11,945,965 18,125,846 55,174,159 

Year ended December 31, 2008 
.. :,. 

As at beginning of year 25,102,348 11,945,965 42,934,762 79,983,075 

Net loss ( I 9,925,516) (19,925,516) 

As at end of year 25,102,348 11,945,965 23,009,246 60,057,559 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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2009 
I 

(4,883,400) 

3,458,138 

(1,425,262) 

1,761,318 
(572,028) 

I. I 05,705
67,629,706 

68,499,439 

(5,571,930) 

(5,571,930) 

62,927,509 

606,725,961 

669,653,470 

-
� � =- �-c of these fiaa - 1 

-� 

'"" '"""""''· 

5 

2008 
� 

(19,925,516) 

2,977,814 

( l6,IJ47,702) 

(I, 932,675) 
(1,903,264) 

((125, 128) 
604,999,000 

(l7,cm.8I I) 

( I 7,033,811) 

564,556,420 

42,169,541 

606,725,961 

I 
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New Guyana .Marketing Corporntion 
Statement of Cash Flows 
For the year-ended December 31, 2009 
With c·;Hnparative figures for 2008 
(Expressed in Guyana Dollars) 

2009 2008 
1 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Net loss for the year (4,883,400) (19,925,516) 
Adjustment for: 
Depreciation 3,458,138 2,977,814 

Operating loss before working cnpitnl changes (1,425,262) ( 16,947,702) 

I
. .

Decrease/(lncrease) in inventories 1,761,J 18 (1,932,675) 
(Increase) in receivables and prepayments (572,028) (3,903.264) 
lncrease/(Decrease) in payables and accruals I, I 05,705 ((125, 128) 
Increase in deferred income 67,629,706 604,999,000 

Net cash inflow from oper:iting :ictivities 68,499,439 581,590,23 I 

Investing activities 

Acquisition of property and equipment (5,571,930) (17,033,811) 

Net cash outflow from investing activities (5,571,930) (17,033,811) 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents. 62,927,509 564,556,420 
' 

[," Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year. 606,725,961 42,169,541 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year. 669,653,470 606,725,961 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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New Guyana Marketing Corporation 
Notes to the financial statements 
Dccem bcr 31, 2009 

(Expressed in Guyana Dollars) 

1. Incorporation :t'nd business activities

The principal activity of the Corporation is the facilitation for exportation of non-traditional f resh and processed 

agricultural products.

2. The significnnt Recounting policies arc:

(a) Basis of preparation

•
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. The Corporation's
accounting policies conform with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with ffRS requires the use of i.:crtain juclgt:ments,
estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The most significant of these arise on the clcterminalion of
the retirement benefit plan liability and the estimation of the expected useful lives of properly, plant and

equipment.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted 

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are not ye1 effective for the year 
ended December 31, 2009, and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. None of these 

will haven sigriTficmnimpacr on the-finarn:ial state11Tentni f  tile Corpuratron:-
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New Guyana Marketing Corporation 
Notes to the financial statements 
Dccem ber 31, 2009 
(Expressed in Guyana Dollars) 

2. Significant acco1111ting·policies (Cont'd)

(b) Property, plant and equipment

Properties are recorded at cost or at independent professional valuations less acc11111ulnted deprt:ciation.
Other fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

Property, plnnt and equipment is tested for impairment whenever there is objective evidence that the
canying amount of the asset may exceed its recoverable amount. Any resulting impnirment loss is ,
recognised immediately in the statement of.comprehensive income.

Increase in the carrying amount arising on revnluation of properties are credited to capital reserve in equity.
Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset are charged against that reserve; all other
decreases are c.barged to the statement of comprehensive income.

Freehold building and other fixed assets are depreciated on a strnight line basis at rates estimated to write
off the assets over their expected useful economic lives. Assets acquired during the year arc depm:iatt-tl
from the date of acquisition.

Current rates of depreciation are:

Building 
Machinery and Equipment 
Furniture and Fittings 
Motor Vehicles 

(c) Inventories

2% per annum 
I 0% per annum 

12.50% per annum 
25% per annum 

1 � Inventories are valued at the lower of the cost and nel realisable value with cost being detennined on n rirst-

in-first-out basis.

(d) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposit
held on call with bank and other bank balances.

(e) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised upon the delivery of goods and performance of services and the m:t:eptance by
customers.

(I) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Corporation has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

7 



New Guyana Marketing Corporation 
Notes to the financial stateme,i ts 
December 31, 2009 
(Expressed in Guyana Dollars) 

2. Significant nccountlng policies (Cont'd)

(g) Foreig11 Currencies

Transactions involving foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rntcs ruling at the dmcs or these
transactions. At the year end, all assets and liabilities denominated in foreign cL1rrc11cics are tnmslated to
Gllymrn dollars at the exchange rate ruling at that date. Gains and losses arising from the settlement of 

transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies,
are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

(h) Retirement Benefit Plan

The Corporation operates a defined contribution pension plan administrated by Clico Life and General
Insurance Cotitpany (S.A.) Limited. The Corporation's contribL1tions an;: charged to the statement of 
comprehensive income. During the year Clico was faced with financial difficllllies and has been placed
under Judicial Management. The Corporation has since ceased payment of premium to Clico. All

contributions are now held in a special bank account until a decision is made by management to either

revise its membership with the Clico Plan or the creation of a new scheme.

(i) Government grants

Government grants received to compensate the Corporation's costs are recognised in the slntement of
comprehensive income in the period 111 ,.vhicfi tnese costs are incurred.

(j) Impairment of long-lived assets

In accordance with best practice, long lived assets, such as plant, and equipment are reviewed for

impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount or an assel m,l}
not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a compari�on or the
carrying amount of an asset to estimated undiscountecl future cash flows expected to be generated by the
asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is

recognised as the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset.

{le) T:ixation 

This Corporation is exempted from corporation and property tax. 
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New Guyana Marketing Corporation 
Notes to the financial statements 
December 31, 2009 
(Expressed in Guyana dollars) 

3(i). Property, plant and eqwpment 

Machinery & Furniture & Motor 
Land Building Equipment Fittings Vehicles Total 

� � 1 � 
Cost 

At 1 January 2009 3,458,037 37,739,564 16,181,279 10,835,160 2,983,095 71,197,135 

Additions - 540,971 117,000 4,913,959 5,571,930 

At 31 December 2009 3,458,037 37,739,564 16,722,250 10,952,160 7,897,054 76,769,065 

Accumulated depreciation 

At 1 January 2009 - 4,143,560 7,430,052 5,578,208 2,983,095 20,134,915 

Charges for the year 754,791 1,268,197 797,318 637,832 3,458,138 

At 31 December 2009 - 4,898,351 8,698,249 6,375,526 3,620,927 23,593,053 

Net book value 

At 31 December 2009 3,458,037 32,841,213 8,024,001 4,576,634 4,276,127 53,176,012 

Net book value 

At 31 December 2008 3,458,037 33,596,004 8,751,227 5,256,952 - 5_1�62,22Q 

3(ii). The :freehold land and building were revalued in 1989 based on P.rofessional advice received, the surplus of $ 11,945,965 arising out of 
this revaluation has been credited to capital reserves. 

3(iii). Included in land and building is an amount of$ 60,729 representing the value of a building situated on land owned by the Government 
of Guyana. 
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New Guyana Marketing Corporation 

Notes to the financial statements 

December 31, 2009 

(Expressed in Guyana Dollars) 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

Inventories 
2009 2008 

;E � 

Goods for resale 1,542,872 3,304,190 

Receivables and prepayments 
2009 2008 

;ii ! 

Trnde receivab I es 169,943 206,6 I 6 

Sundry receivables 7,925,933 6,770,8111 
Prepayments 54(1.418 

,,. 8,095,876 7,52:l,848 

Cash irncl deposits 
2009 2008 

I � 

Cash in hand and bank 669,653,470 606,725,961 

Payables and accruals 
2009 2008 

� I 

Sundry creditors 1,496,472 
Accruals 3,168,893 J,559,660 
Trade credit ors 

4,665,365 .1,559,6(>0 

Deferred Income 

Th is represents: 

(i) Fertilizer Subvention received on September I 8, 2008, to be used ror purchasing of fertilizer liir resale to
farmers at a subsidized cost.

(ii) Unutilizccl funds f rom the following grants: Farmers' Assistance Programme, ALBA Fund. El Nino Fund,
Buxton Project and the ASDU-MOU Fund.

Cost or s:1 les 

2009 2008 

! ;E 

Opening stock 3,304,190 1,371,515 
Purchases 22,045,654 164,777,965 

25,349,844 166,149,480 
Less closing stock ( 1,542,87?) (3,304,190) 

23,806,972 162,845.290 

10 
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New Guyana Marketing Corpon1tion 
Notes to the financial· statements 
December 31, 2009 
(Expressed in Guyana Dollars) 

-·1 
J 0. Selling and distrib'utio1i 

I .

2009 2008 i
I 

1 ;E 

Advertising 3,086,094 8,706,959 
Grow More Food Expenses 21,156,491 
Flour Sales Expenses 1.442,279 
Bee keeping Congress 7,652,505 
Exhibition - Essequibo Nite � 
GMC Booth Expenses - Exhibition 
El Nino Expenses 9,261,407 
Buxton Expenses 3,016,934 
Agrifest Expenses 11,251,098 
ASDU Expenses .J'.), 193,395 
Farmers' Assistance Expenses 94,324,397 
Fertilizer Expenses 35,032,500 
Tradecom Workshop 436,111 
Overseas Exhibition 820,542 

157,422.478 38,958,234 

11. Administrative
2009 2008 

i � 

Audit fees 2,573,035 1.400,620 
Depreciation 3,458,138 2,977,814 
Donations 614,777 JS7,428 
Electricity 2,880,408 2,891,271 
Employment cost 39,177,966 37,967,060 
Export documents 16,350 2,500 
General expense 1,460,303 ,, ,083 ,461 
Insurance 607,290 522,400 
Internet and telex charges 35,000 
Legal fees 365,000 50,000 
Meals and entertainment 1,379,464 860,628 
Office expenses 2,651,465 11,057,431 
Packaging and wrnpping 359,780 616,372 
Rates and taxes 767,938 284.so,,
Rental 1,520,000 1,694,855 
Repairs and maintenance 4,725,296 8,993.288 
Security 4,603,905 2,857,105 
Stationery and printing 2,921,261 3,556.356 
Subscription 198,563 I 82,022 
Telephone 1,355,002 I, 114,808 
Transportation and traveling 1,650,520 :l.40'1.149 
Consultancy 15,000 
Custom duties 15,000 15,000 
Suspense ale 247,928 

73,336,461 85, 182,00 I 

11 
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New Guyana Marketing Corporation 
Notes to the financial statements 
December 3(, 2009 
(Expressed in Guyana Dollars) 

12. Financial

Bank charges 
Bank interest 
Night Deposit Bags 

13, Government Grant 

Subsidy Capital 
Subsidy - Monthly Subvention 
Flour Subvention 
Bee Congress Subsidy 
Grow More Subsidy 
Agro Fest Subsidy 
Fertilizer Subvention 
Farmers' Assistance Programme 
Tradecom Income 
ALBA Fund 
PAS - Fund 
EI Nino Fund 
Buxton Project Fund­
ASDU-MOU Fund 
FAO-TCPOUY23 I 0/Agriculture Fund 

14. Directors emoluments

Remuneration for serving as Directors

G. Da Silva - Chairman
Ms. Vilma Da Silva
Dr. Leslie Chin
0. Homenauth
P .Persaud
R. Ali
D. Doodnm1th
8. Sears
K. Samaroo
R. Singh
V, Piers
S. Naughton
N. Dharanlalli
G. Khan
J. McKenzie

15. Key nrnnagemcnt personnel

2009 

I 

I 58,368 

83,520 
241,888 

2009 

� 
5,000,000 
58,318,865 

35,043,6 ! 3 
94,324,397 

540,000 

I 65,000 
9,261,407 
3,0T6�9T4� 

193,395 
4,238,000 

210,101,611 

2009 

I 

30,000 
24,000 
24,000 
24,000 
24,000 
24,000 
24,000 
24,000 

24,000 
24,000 

246,000 

2008 

!E 

242,440 
29,586 

272,020 

2008 

� 
14,000,000 
<16,075,21)4 
I 7,CJTl,673 
8,770,000 
5,000,000 
2,200,000 

(>00,000,000 

(,94,018,967 

2008 

� 

30,000 
24,000 
24,000 
24,000 
24,000 
24,000 
24,000 
24,000 
24,000 
2,1,000 
24,000 
24,000 
24,000 

318,000 

Five (5) individuals are considered as key management personnel. During the year remuneration pnid to these
individuals amounted to G$ l l ,63J,400 (2008-G$ l2,48S,500).

12 
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New Guyana Marketing Corporation 
Notes to the financial statements 
December 31, 2009 
(Exp1·cssccf in Guyana Dollars) 

16. Financial risk mariageri1ent

(i) Liquidity rislt

The contractual undiscountecl cashflows associated with the Corporation's financial liabilities of $3,168,893 
(2008-$3,559,660) are expected to fall clue within 3 months of the balance sheet elute. The Corporntion manages 
its exposure to liquidity risk by projecting expected cashflows and managing financing to meet tempornry short 

falls in cash flows. 

As at the year encl, accounts receivable of $8,095,876 (2008 - $6,977,£130) were neither past due.: nor impaired 
nnd were fully performing. None of the accounts receivable that are fully performing were renegotiatt:cl during 
the year. Management considers the credit risk on the balances clue from third pmties lo be minimal given the 
nature of the items. 

,,. 
(iii) Foreign currency risk

The Corporation's· exposure to foreign exchange risk is limited by the denomination of the underlying 
transaction in stable foreign currencies. At Statement of Financial Position date there were no assets or liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies. 

(iv) Fair value

The following table presents the carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the Corporation's financial 
instruments. 

Financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalents (I) 
Accounts receivable and prepayments (2) 

Financial liabilities 
Accounts payable and 
accrued liabilities (2) 

(I) Recorded at market value.

2009 
Carrying Value 

669,653,470 
8,095,876 

4,665,365 

Fair Value 

669,653,470 
8,095,876 

4,665,365 

2008 
Carrying Value 

606,725,961 
7,523,848 

3,559,660 

Fair Value 

606,725,961 
7,523,848 

3,:iSlJ,660 

(2) Recorded at amortised cost. The fair value of accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities is
equivalent to the canying amount given the short maturity period.

(v) Interest rate risk

The Corporation is not exposed to interest rate risk since none of its instruments are interest bearing.

13 
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107/PC: 46/2/2012 

Mr. Nizam Hassan 
General Manager 
Guyana Marketing Corporation 
Robb & Alexander Streets 
Georgetown. 

Dear Mr. Hassan, 

RE: AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 
GUY ANA MARKETil\fG CORPORATION 

FOR THEYEARENDED31 DECEMBER2010 

25 May 2012 

Please find attached eight (8) copies of the audited financial statements, together v,,ith the report 
of the Auditor General, thereon. 

Should you need any further explanation, please do not hesitate to contact us. 

With best regards. 
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@el: 5.92-225-75.92, @"aa: 5.92-226-7257, ldtji,://www.audu.rry'·ff1/ 

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL 
TO THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

THE GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 
ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER ?009 

25 May 2012 

Chartered Accountants Nizam Ali and Company have audited on my behalf the financial statements 
of the Guyana Marketing Corporation for the year ended 31 December 2010, as set out on pages 2 
to 14 _ The audit was conducted in accordance with the Audit Act 2004 _ 

Management's responsibility for the financial statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with the International Financial Repo1iing Standards_ This responsibility includes: 
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free of material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting 
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. 

Auditor's responsibility 

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I 
conducted the audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing issued by the 
International Federation of Accountants (IF AC) and those of the International Organisation of 
Supreme Audit Institutions (INTOSAI). Those standards require that I comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and pe1fom1 the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements_ The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud and error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An 
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

11 



As required by the Audit Act 2004, I have reviewed the audit plan and procedures, work papers, 
report and opinion of the Chartered Accountants. I have also had detailed discussions with the 
Chru1ered Accountants on all matters of significance to the audit and had canied out additional 
examinations, as necessary, in arriving at my opinion. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for my audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Guyana Marketing Corporation as at 31 December 2010 and its financial 
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance ·with International Financial 
Reporting Standards and com.ply with the Companies Act 1991. 

Emphasis of Matter 

Without qualifying my op1mon, I draw attention to note 3 (k) to the financial statements. 
Management has represented to me that the Corporation is exempt from Corporation and 
Property taxes. I am unable to asce11ain the necessary authority that gives legal effect to this 
exemption. Management is in the process of establishing this authority. The Corporation has not 
paid any Corporation  and Property taxes since its fonnation and no provision for such taxes has 
been made in these financial statements. 

AUDIT OFFICE 
63 HIGH STREET 
KINGSTON 
GEORGETOWN 
GUYANA 
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Nizam Ali & Company 
Chartered Accountants 

215 'C' Camp Street 
North Cummingsburg 
Georgetown 

REPORT OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT 
NIZAM ALI & COMPANY 

TO THE AUDITOR GENERAL 

Tel: 

Tele/Fax: 

E-mail:

ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 20IO 

(592)-227-8825 

(592)-225-7085 

nizamali@gol.net.gy 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Guyana Marketing Corporation which comprise the statement of 
tinancial position as at December 31, 20 IO and the statements of comprehensive income. changes in equity and cash flow for 
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement. 
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies: and making accounting estimates that are 
n:asonable in lh.: circumstances. 

Auditors' Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial sratements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance wiih International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing pmcedures to obtain evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the linan�ial s1merne111s. The 
procedurl!s selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatemc:nl of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or e1TOr. In making those risk assessments. the auditors consider internal control 
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation or the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the drcumstanci:s. but not for the purpose or expressing an opinion on the e·lfectiveness of the entity"s internal 
con:rol. An audit nlso includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting. policies used and the reasonableness ofaccouming 
estimate, 1m1dc: by management, as well as evaluating the overall prese111ation of the financial statements. 

W--:, believe that the audit evidence we have obtaineJ is suflicienl and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinlon 
!n our opini,1n. the financial statements present fairly. in all material rcspcrts. the financial position or ihe Corporation ll$ of 
Dec.:mber 31. 20 IO and its linancial perform:mce qnd its cash llows for the year Jhen ended in accordan-:e with lnt�rmnional
Financial Reporting Standan.ls nnd comply with the Companit, ,'\ct 1991. 

Emphasis of matter 
Without qualifying our opinion we draw atten1io1: 10 nott 3(k) LO the linancial statements. IVlanagernenl has represented lo us 
that the Corporation is exempt from Corpora,ion and Property laxes. Wc are ur.ab!e to ascertain the necessary authority that 
give;; kgal eft""cct to this e"emption. l\1anagemcnl is in th� 1,rocess of estnblis!iing this authority. The Corporatinn has not paid 
a11y. Corpon,:ion or Propeny t;txcs since its formation a11d no provision J"or such tilxes has been made in these financial 
statements. 

r,/A"f'YI .,(2-6-6-- �� 
Charlered Accountant� 
Georgetown, Guyana 
May 18. 2012 

Partners: Nizam Ali - FCCA, CTA; Leslie Veerasammy - FCCA 



GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

FlNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER JI, 2010 

I 

f 

' 



,_ 

r --

I -
·

I 
--

I 

Guyana Markt-ling Corporation 
Statement or Financial Position 
,\sat Dc�.embei· 31, 2010 
\Vith comparative figures for 2009 
(Expressed in Cuyana Dollars) 

Aswts 

Proper·(�·, plan1 and equipment 

Cur-rent assets 
lnvemnries 
Re..:eivahles and prepayments 
Cash on hand and at bank 

Total assets 

Curreni liabililics 
Payablt-s and ilc..:nrals 
Deferred ln�urnc' 

Equity 
(iovernmenl ,,f Guy,ma 
�:apital rest:l'\·tS 
Retained e,,rnings 

Total liabilities and equity 

4(i) 

5 

6 

7 

s 

9 

4{ii) 

2010 

� 

I ,14 ,45 1.807 

4,728,954 

2,463,087 

634,572,616 

641,764,657 

786,216,464 

20,939.569 

626,60.U04 

647,543,873 

25. I 02.348

11.945.%:i

IO 1,624,278

138,672,591

786,216,464 

The accc1111pa11yi11g notes rorm an integral parr of these financial st::1te111en1s. 

I,./{ (j. J)·• 
-..:,./ .. ,./ ..... -�- .·.�-
Dir.:cror 

2 

2009 

I 

53.176,012 

1,542,872 

8,095,876 

669,653,470 

679,292,21 S 

732,468,230 

4.665.365 

672.62S,706 

677.294,071 

25. I 02.34 S

11.945.965

I 8.125.846

55.174,159 

732,468,230 

0 
- / l -

d/'- •/;1,(..1./1.r
,, -/ 

l-,, __ �I .. . . . 
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Guyana Marketing Corp_oration

Statement of Comprehensive Income 

Fo,· the year ended December 31, 2010 

With comparative figures for 2009 

(Expressed in Guynna Dollai-s) 

Sale� 

Cosr ,1 f sales 

Upcrnting i11come 

Other income 

Gc,•,c:rnment gr:rnt 

Expenses 

Ad min istrat ive 

Selling and disu-iburion 

Financial 

Net profit (luss) for the year 

10 

12 

11 

_J3 

2010 

19,613,416 

(16,226,494) 

3,386.922 

I 14,300,098 

I 06,829,886 

224,516,906 

(91.942,316) 

(48,863.091 l 

-OD ,.0.6.2) 

(141,0 I 8,474) 

83,498,432 

Th.:- ,,cc,1111phn_ v ing notes fonn an integral part of these financial statements. 

3 

I 

r 

2009 

� 

2S.S48, 195 

(23,806,972) 

5.041 -�23 

I 0,974.593 

210, I 01 ,611 

226,117,427 

(73.336,461) 

( 157.422.,178) 

(24l.,.8.S.8.) 

(231,000,827) 

(4,883,400) 



Guyana Marketing Corporation 
Sti1kment of Changes in Equity 
r-01· the year_�nded·Decembe1· 3J, 2010
With comparntive ligures for 2009
(E�pi-essed in Guyann Dollars)

Government Capital Retained 
of Guyana Reserves Earnings Total 

.$ .$ 

Year ended Dccember31,2010 

As at beginning of year 25,102,348 11,945,965 18,125.846 55,174,159 

Ne1 protit 83,498,432 83,498,432 

Asar end or year 25,102,348 11,945,965 IO 1,624,278 138,672,591 

Yc:11· ended December 31, 2009 

A� ai beginning of year 25,102,348 11,945,965 23,009,246 60,057,559 

Ne1 loss (4,883,400) (4,883,400) 

As mend or year 25,102,348 11,945,96:ii 18,125.846 55, I 74,159 

The acc.ompanying notes form an integral pa1t of these financial statements. 

1-
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Guyanli Marketing Corporation 

Sl:Hement of Cash Flows 

Flll" the year ended Dccem ber 3 l, 20 I 0 

With comparatil'c figures fo1· 2009 

(E�pressed in Guyana Dollars) 

C,ish llows rrnm operating ,1ctivities 

N<:1 prnri1 ( l\1.;;s) for the ye<1r 

Ad_1 us1111e111 lor: 

Deprerimion 

Loss 011 dispusal ofpropert)'. plant ;JJld equipmenl 

Operating prolit (loss, before working capital·rhanges 

( I m:rense) decre:1se in inventories 

(Increase) in receivables and prepayments 

Increase in pa)'ables and accruals 

(Dec:re.isi:) increase in defe1Ted income 

.Net ca�h inllon from operating activities 

I 11\ L·stiug :H:livities 

A(quisition -if prnpen) and equipment 

�t.'I r:1sh outflow from in,·esting activities 

Ner !_decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents. 

Cash and cash equivalents m the beginning of the year. 

Cash and cash equivalenrs a, the end of the year. 

2010 

83.498..:ln 

9.211.484 

5,555.950 

98,265,866 

(3.186.082) 

5,632,789 

16,274,204 

(46,024,402) 

70,962.375 

\ I 06,043.229) 

\ I 06.04 3,229) 

(35.080,S54) 

669,653,470 

634,.572.616 

Tht' a-:co111panvi11g nor�s rorm an imegral part of rhese financial statements. 

5 

2009 

i 

(4,883,400 l 

3.458.138 

( 1.425,2621 

1,761.3 I 8 

(572,028) 

1,105,705 

67,629,706 

68.499,439 

(5,571,9301 

cs,571,0:;o, 

62,927.509 

606, 725,96 I 

669,653,4 7(1 

I 

I 
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G11.n111a Marketing Cor·porntion 
Notes lo the linancial statements 
Decl'111her 31. 20 I 0 
(C::xp1·essed in Guyana Dollars) 

I. Incorporation an� business activities

rhe prin..:ipal activity of the Corp,)ration is the facilitation for exportation of non-traditional fresh and processed 
::Jgric.:ulrural prClducts. 

L 2. -'\111c11clmenis to published standards and interpretations

I ... 

(i) £./j'ectil'I! in lite current year

A111enJ1nents tL1 I FRS 7 Financial lns1rumenrs disclosures 

IFRS .i <revised, 

IAS 27 (revised) 

IAS �X irevisedI 

This amendment clarifies the required level of disclosures about credit risk and 
collateral held and provide relief from previously required disclosures regarding 
renegotiaced loans. 

Business combinations 

This amendment seeks to clarify that the measurement choice regarding non­
wntrolling interests aI the date of acquisition is only available in respect of m,n­
conrrolling interests rhat are present ownership interest, and rhar entitle their 
holders lo a proponionate share in the entity's net assets in rhe t;·vent of 

liquidation. All other types of non- controlling interests are measured at their 

acquisition - date fair value unless another measurement basis is required by 

c·o11solida1ed and Separate Financial Stateme111.1· 

When control of a subsidiary is lost as a result of a transaction. event or other 

circumstance. the revised standard requires the group to derecognise all assets. 
liabilities and non-cuntrolling interests at the carrying amount and to recognise 
the fair value of the consideration received. Any retained inrerl:'St in the- former 
subsidiary is recognised at its fair value at the date control is lost. The resulting 
difference is recognised as a gain or loss in rhe statement ol' CClmprt'hensiw 
income. 

/111·,•.,·t111ent in l/S.\'O,·iutl!.\' 

This amendment clarities that where the im-estor loses significant influence over 
an :1ssociace, th3t the loss or control is recognised �s a disposal and re-acquisition 

of any retained interest at fair value. 

AmenJments Lo I FRS I First time! adop1irm ,?f' lnremmional F11wncial Repnrling swndards 

·1 he: a111end111ems provide two exemptions when adopting IFRSs for the lirst rime

relating to oil nnd gas 11ssers. and the determination as to whetht:r an arrangement 
contains a lease. 

A111e11d111ents t,1 IFRS 2 Shure- based paymem - Group cash se11led Sharl! Based Payme111 fransoccion.1· 

The amendment clarities the scope of IFRS 2, as well as the accounting for group 

cash-settled share-based payment transactions in the separate (or individual) 
financial statements of an entity receiving the goods or services when other group 

emit� or shreholder ha� the obligation ro seule the award. 

6 
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C11p1na Marketing Corporation 

Notes to the financial st�tements 

Decernber 3 I. 2010 
(Expressed in Guyana Dollnrs) 

2. Amendments to published standards and interpretations, continued

(ii) Ne�, S1andards and Interpretations, continued

Amendments ro IAS 39 

IFRIC 17 

IFRIC IS 

rincmcia/ l11sm1me111s: Recognition and i'vleasuremem - Eligible hel(ged items 

The amendments provide clarification 011 two aspects of hedge accounting: 

identifying inflation as a hedged risk or portion, and hedging options. 

Dis£rilnuio11 0(11011 - cush osse1s to owners 

The interpretalion provides guidance on the appropriate accounting treatment 

when an entity distributes assets other than ..:ash as dividends to shareholders. 

Tran�fer.,· of.4ssets;,-om Cz1.1·1,J/11ers 

The interpretation addresses the accounting by the recipients for transfers of 

property, plant and equipment from 'customers' and concludes that when the item 

nf propeny, plm1t ,111cl equipment transferred meets the detinilion ofan asset from 

lhe perspective of the recipient. the recipient should recognise the asset at its fair 

value on rhe date or the t1·;:111sfer, with lhe credit being recognised as revenue in 

accordance with lr\S 18 Revenue. 

At the elate or authorisarion of these fi1rnncial statements there were new standards and a111end111ents 1n 

standards and i111erpretarions which were in is,ue but not yet effective for the year ended December 11. 

20 I 0. and have nor been applied in preparing these tinancial statements. 

IFRS 9 - First Phase of replacement of IAS 39 - Financial lnSU"urnelll: 

Recognition and Measurement. 

IFRS I - Firs1 time adoption of IFRS- Amendments introduced giving 

addirional exemptions to first time ,1clopters of IFRS. 

IFRS 1- Share· Based Payments - Amendments introduced pertaining 

to cash- settled share based payment transactions. 

IAS 14 - Related Pany Disclosure - Revised Version i,moduces 

additional related party disclosures. 

IAS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation - Amendment introduced 

reg,1rd ing the c lassitication of rights issue. 

IFRIC 14-Thc· Limit on a Defined 

:-ind their lnreraction- Amenclmems relating lO Prepayments of a 

rninirnurn funding requirement. 

IFRIC 19- Exringuishing tinancial 

The adoption of these standards and inrerpretations are not expected to have a material impact on the 

tinanci:il statements of the Company. 
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Guyana Marketing Corporation 
Notes to the lin;1ncial statements 
December 31, 2010 
(Exp,·essed in Guyana Doll:11·s) 

3. The significant accoun_ting policies are:

(it) Basis or preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. The Corporation's 
accou111i11g policies conform with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). 

The preparation of financial state111ents in conformity with IFRS requires rhe use of certain judgements. 
estimates and assumptions ..:oncerning the future. The most significant of these arise on the determination or 
the re1ire111ent benefit plan liability and the esti111atio11 of the expected usel'ul lives of propeny. plant ancl 
equipment. 

The fin:-mcial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on .. 1.�f .. 1t,.A0.!2.. ....

(b} Property, plant and equipment 

Properties are recorded at cost or at independent professional valuations less accumulated depreciation. 
Other fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. 

Properry, plant and equipment is tested for impairment whenever there is objective evidence that the 
carrying amount of the asset may exceed its recoverable amount. Any resulting impairment loss is 
recognised i111111ediately in rile statement of comprehensive income. 

lncreas� in the carrying amount arising on revaluation or pl'Openies are credited to capital reserve in equit}. 
Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset are charged against that rese,·ve; all other 
decreases are charged to the statement of comprehensive income. 

Freehold building and other fixed assets are depreciated on a straight line basis at rates estimated to write 
off the assets over their expected useful economic lives. Assets acquired during the year are clepreciaiecl 
from the date of acquisition. 

Cun·en1 rates of depreciation are: 

Building 
!Vlachinery and Equipment 
Furniture and Fittings 
Mot0r Vehicles 

2% pe,· annum 
I 0% per annum 

12.50% per annum 
25% per annum 

(c) Inven1ories 

lnvenrnries are valued at the lower of the cost and net realisable value with cost being determined on a first­
in-firs1-L1ut basis. 

(d} Cash and cash equivi1lents 

{e) 

ror 1he purpose (,f the statement or cash flo,vs. cash and cash equivalents co111prise cash in hand. deposit 
held on call with bank and othei· bank balances. 

ReYenue recognition 

Revenue is recognised upon the delivery of goods and perfor111a11ce of services and the acceprnnce by 

customers. 

8 
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Guyana Marketing Corporation 
Nutt'S to the linnncial statements 
D�L'CITJ ber 31, 2010 
(Expressed in Guyana Dollar·s) 

3. Significant acco11nting policies, continued

( f} Provisions

(g) 

Pro\'isions are recognised when the Corporation has a present legal or constructive obligation ns a result of 
p�isl c1-t'nls, i: i, probabk· 1ha1 an outflow embodying economic benefits will be required 10 settle the 
obligation. and a reliable estimate of the amocinl of the obligation can be made. 

Furciu11 Currencies ,., 

Transacrions involving foreign currencies are translared at the exchange rares ruling ac the dates of these 
transacrions .. .'l,t the year end, all assets and liabilities denominated in forc:ign currencies are translatecl to 
Guyana dollars at the exchange rate ruling at that date . Gains and losses arising from rhe settlement of 
1ra11sactio11s and 1·rom the translation or monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign cur-rencie,, 
Me 1·ecognised in the starernent at' comprehensive income. 

(h) Retirement Benefit Plan

The Corporarion operates a defined contribution pension plan adminisrrated by Clico Life and Gener,tl
ln�ura11ce C1111pany (S.A.) Limited. The Corporarion's contr·ihutions aroc charged to the statement t•f
comprehensive income. DL1ring 2009 Clico was faced with l�nancial difficulties and has been placed under
____J_utli;;.ial Ma11.1ge1ne-11-t�he-C�pom�i-0n has s-i1-\Ge r:;ease� pa7ment of �i:emi1c1nl-l:0-Cl-irn-c- A-ll cemribt+fi-om
111,1de between September 24. 2009 and December �I. 2010 are held in a special bank accQunl L111til a
deers ion is macle by management to either revise its membership with the Clico Plan or the creation of .i
ne11· scheme. In January, 2011 an a111ou111 totalling $10.590,787 was recovered from Clico in relation to this
pension scheme.

(i) Government grants

Government grants received to compensate the Corporation's costs are recognised in rhe sratement t�f
comprehensi1e income in the period in which these costs are incurred.

(j) Impairment ol'long-lived assets

In acc,,rdance 11·ith best practice. long lived assets. such as plant. and equipment are reviewed for
impairment 11henever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying a111oun1 01'.�11 asset may
nL•I be recoverable. Recovernbility of assets to be held and used is measured by a comp,rrison of the
carrying. amounr uf an asset to estimated undiscounted futur·e cash flows expected lo be generated by rhe
asset. If the can') ing amount of an asset exceeds its esrimated funrre cash flows, an impairment charge is
recognised as the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset.

(k) Taxation

This C,,rpormion is exempred from corporarion and properry tax.
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\01es ju ihe· ri11a11dai sh,1c111e111� 
December 31, 2010 
(Expressed in Guyana dollars) 

4 (i) Property, pla11t and equipment 

Cost 

Al. I January 20 I 0 

Additions 

Disposal 

At 31 December 20 I 0 

Accumulated dep,·eciation 

At I January2010 

Land 

3,458,037 

3,458,037 

Freehold 
Building 

9,472,399 

(9,472,399) 

3,916,449 

Leasehold 
Buildings 

! 

28,267,165 

2,000,000 

30,267,165 

981. 902

Construc!ion 
work in 
progress 

10,000,000 

10,000,000 

Machinery 
& 

Equipment 

i 

16,722,250 

60,262,930 

76,985,180 

8,698,249 

Furniture & 
Fittings 

I 0,952, 160 

3,174,943 

14,127, I 03 

6.375.526 

Motor 
Vehicles 

$ 

7.S97,05tl

30.605,356 

38.502,410 

3.620,927 

i Charges for the year 771,457 3,491,293 1,025,170 3,923,564 

•. I 

: .. .J 

r..1 
1··,-1
LJ 

: I 
• I·--

u 

... _, 

Wrillen back on disposal 

At 31 December 2010 

Net book value 

(3,916,449) 

1,753,359 12,189,542 7,400,696 7.544,491 

Al 31 December 20 I 0 3,458,037 28,513,806 10,000,000 64,795,638 6,726,407 30,957,919 

Net book va.lne 
Ar JI December 2009 3.458,037 5,555,950 27,285,263 8,024,001 4,576,634 4.276, 127 

4 (ii) The freehold land and building were revalued in 1989 based on professional advice received, the surplus of $ 11.945,965 arising out ol' 
this revaluation has been credited to capital reserves. 

4 (iii) Included in land and building is an amount of$ 60,729 represe1\ting the value ofa building situated on land owned by the Government 
of Guyana. 

4 (iv) Leasehold bui I dings comprise of construction costs of$ I 9,8 I 0,4 72 at the Central Packaging Faci I ily (Sophia) and $8,703,334 at the 
Parika Agro-Packaging Facility. 

10 

Total 

76,769,065 

I 06,043,229 

(9,472,399) 

173,339,895 

23.593,053 

9,211,484 

(3,916,449) 

28,888,088 

144,451,807 

53,176,012 
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Gu_nrn� Marketing Corporation 
Notes tu the linancial statements 
Deccm!lcr 31,·::1010 
(E.\p1·essed in Guyana Dollars) 

5. 

6. 

7. 

-s. 

9. 

In ventQries 
2010 2009 

1 � 

Goods for resale 4,728,954 1,542,872 

Receivables and prepayments 
2010 2009 

� � 

·rr:1,k rt..:c:i, ables :is.,, 79 169.94:, 
Sundry receivables 147,608 7.925,933 
Prc-payrnenrs 2,277,000 

'J ,463,087 8.095,876 

Casll and ueposits 
2010 2009 

i � 

Cash in hand and bank 634,572,616 669,653,470 

fra)•ablEll11dacl'Tff\llS-
2010 2009 

� � 

Sundry creditors 3.430,0 I 0 1,496,472 
·Accruals 17.509,559 3.168,893 

20,939,569 4.665,365 

Deferred Income 
Th is represents: 
(i) The balance of Fertilizer Subvention received on September 18, 2008. to be used for pmchasing of fertilizer

for resale to rarrners at a subsidized cost.
tii) Unu1il1zed l"u11ds from the following grants: Farmers' Assis1ance Programme. ALBA Fund, El Nino Fund. 

Bu:..ton Project. ASDLI-IVlOU Fund, IVlarket Identification Study. Development of lvlai-1,er and Enterprise 
Information System, Competitive Assessment Study. North nnd South Pakaraima Project. Tosliao's Council 
and Land Uti I ization Project. 

I 0. Cost or s,lles 

Opening stock 
Purch,is�, 

Less clusing stock 

11 

2010 

i 

1.542,87"2 
19,412.576 
�0.955,-HS 
(_-l,728,954) 
16,226,494 

2009 

� 

3 304,190 
22.045,65-1 
25.349,84-1 
( 1.542,872) 
23.806,972 

( 

I 
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Cu_n11rn Marketing Corporation 

Noll', to the financial statements 

Dtccmbt'r 31, 20 I U 

{li:xprcssed in Guymrn Dolla1·s) 

,,-� I I. Selling and distribution 
; 

2010 2009 

� � 

Advertising 7.80 I, 181 3,086,094 
Grow More Food Expenses 80,000 
El t\ ino Expenses 15.178,819 9,261,407 
Buxcun E.\penses 2.541,760 3,016,934 

-
/\ gri fest Expenses I I ,:'.51,098 
ASDU bpenses ,159.760 193,395 
Farmers' Assistancc Expenses 12,900 94)24,397
h.•nilizer Expenses 35,032,500
Tradecom Workshop -136,111
Land Urilizacion Project 3.077.196 
Toshao's Council Expenses 8.921,859 

I 
AL.BA Expenses 6.470.808 
Market Identification Study 1.548,291 
National Exhibition 1.478,588 
thcrseas E.,hibirion 1,291,929 820,542 

l 
48,863,091 157.422,478 

' 12. Adminis1rntive

2010 2009 
r 

I � 

-
Audit fees 1,250,000 2,573,035 

J r-
Oeprecintion 9,21 1,484 3,-158,138 
Donations 253,502 614,777 
Electricity 2.143.6S1 2,880,408 
E111ploy111ent cost 4:>.026.707 39,177,966 
l-',pc,n cl-i..:urnents 25.775 16,350 

L Cem:ral e:xpense I 0,296.613 1,460,303 
Insurance 706.802 607,290 

,-·· 
Internet and telex charges 35,000 
Legal fees 67.400 365,000 
Meals and t:ntertai11111enr 275,912 1,379,464 
Of lice c\ penses :U95.04 I. 2,651,465 

·-
Packaging and wrapping 214,800 359,780 

Rates and taxes 1,013,317 767,938 
Rental 3,015,000 l ,:i20,000

Repairs and maintenance 7,525,255 4,725,296
-

S.:curir:, 5.017.:'i83 4.603,90:i

SL;,iti,1n<"ry and printing 1.031.358 2,•/21,261

Sub�criprion I 65.210 198,563 

Telephone 1.398,()35 I .355,00'.: 

Trnnsponat ion and traveling 1.778.114 I .650,520 

Cunsulrancy 10.000 

Custom duties 31,400 15,000 

V;:iluati,111 Fees 45,]68 

Spoilage 43,959 

91,942,316 73,336,461 

12 



Guyana Marketing Corporation 
No1es to the financial statements 
Oerem ber 3 I ,_2010 
tExp,·essed in Guyana Dolla,-s) 

13. Financial

Bank charges 
:'J igh_t Deposit Bags 

14. Government Grant

Subsidy Capital 
Subsidy - Month!:, Subvention 
Fen i I izer Subvention 
Farmers' Assistance Programme 
Trndecom Income 
P/\S - Fund 
f:I Nino Fund 
1311:xron l,roject h111d 
ASDU-MOU Fund 
F.AO-TCPGUY23 I 0/Agriculture Fund 
r---larket Identification Study 
Competitive Assessment Swdy 
ID.S HACJ's-Co.unciJ Eu.nd 
Land Uti I ization Project 

15. Other I 11cume

2010 

i 

213.067 

213,067 

2010 

� 
13.200,000 
6:,401,812 

2,000 
2,873.750 

7.600,015 
1.548,291 
4.828,70 I 

2.400,000 
306,000 

1..0.,.6.56,0.0.()_ 
1,013,J I 7 

I 06,829,886 

2009 

i 

158,368 
83,520 

241,888 

2009 

� 
5,000,000 

58.3 18,865 
35.043,61 � 
94.324,397 

540,000 
165,000 

9_26 I ,407 
3.ll 16,9.,'1

193,395
4.238,000 

210.101,611 

Included in other income is a total of $81.100.327 which represents Bolivarian Alliance for the Peoples of Our
America (ALBA) Funds used for the acquisition of refrigerated trucks and containers.

l 6.

17. 

Directors emoluments 2010 2009 

! ! 
l{emunerntion for serving as Directors 

Ci. Da Silva - Chairman 55,000 30,000 
Ms. Vilma Da Sil"a 4'1.000 24,000 
Dr. Leslie Chin 44.000 24,000 
0. Homenauth 44.!J00 2'1,000 
P. l)ersaucl 44,000 24,000 
I{. Ali 44,000 24,00(1 

D. Doodnauth 44,000 24,000 
B. Sears 44,000 2'1,000 
C. Khan - Ptolem) Reid Rehabilitation Centre '14.000 24,000 
.I . f\'lcK..:nzi� 44,000 24,000 

451,000 246,000 

Key management personnel 

Five (5) individuals are considered as key management personnel. Du1·ing the _vear remuneration paid to these 
i11dividu,ils a111ou11t�d to G'.li I 1. l-!5.900 (2009-G$ I 1,63J.400). 

13 

I 



\.._ 

r-
1 

I -

I 

I 

Gu,1ana Marketing Corporation 
Noics 10 the linnncial statements 
December 31, 2010 
(l<�xpressed in Guyana Dollars) 

IS. Fi11:111cial risk management 

(i) Liquidity risk

1'11e comrac1ual undiscounred cashflows associated with the Corporation's financial liabilities of $17.509,559 
(2009-$3.168,893) are expected to fall due within 3 months of the balance sheer date. The Corporacion manages 
its exposure ro liquidity risk by projecting expected cashtlows and managing tinancing to meet temporary short 
fol ls in c,1sh flows. 

As at th{· �,ear end. accounts receivable of $2,461.087 (2009 - $8.095.876) were neither past due nor impaired 
and were fully performing. None of the accounts receivable thal are fully performing were renegotiated during 
the year. Managemenr considers the credit risk on the balances due from third parties to be mininrnl given the 
nature 011h� items. 

(iii) Foreign currency risk 

The Corporation's exposure to foreign exchange risk is limited by the denomination of the underlying 
transaction in stable foreign currencies. At Statement of Financial Position date there 1-vere nti assets or liabilities 
de1w111inmeJ in foreign currencies. 

(ii') Fair value 

The following table presents 1he carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the Corporation's financial 
instruments. 

Finuncial assets 
Cash and cash equivalents (I) 
Ac1.:ounts receivable and prepayments (2) 

Financial liabilitit!S 
Accounts payable and 
accrued liabilities l2) 

(I) Recorded at market value.

2010 
Carrying Value 

� 

634,572,616 
2,463,087 

20.CJ]9,569

Fair Value 

� 

634.572,616 
2,463,087 

20,939,569 

2009 
Carrying Value FHir Value 

� 1 

669.653.470 669,653,470 
8,095,876 8,095,876 

4,665)65 4,665,365 

,_2 l Recorded ar anl()nised cost. The fair value of accounts receivable. accounts payable and accrned liabilities is
equil'alenr to the carrying amount given the short maturicy period. 

(1') Interest rnlc risk 

The Corporation is not exposed to interest rate risk since ntme of its instruments are interest bearinl!,. 

19. ( ·0111mitment ancl Contingenl liability

I .egal proceedings
The Curpora1ion is the plaintiff in certain litigations. Management does not believe that the outcome of these
proceedings will have material adverse effect on the Corporations's result of operations and accordingly no
provision for contingencies is necessary.

14 
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185/PC: 46/2/2013 

Mr. Nizam Hassan 
General Manager 
Guyana Marketing C011)01;ation 
Robb & Alexander Streets 
Georgetown. 

Dear Mr. Hassan, 

RE: AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 
GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 

15 July 2013 

Please find attached nine (9) copies of the audited financial statements, together with the repmt
of the Auditor General, thereon. 

Should you need any fmther explanation, please do not hesitate to contact us. 

With best regards. 

Yours sincerely, 

.·,_· .. _ ..
. _ -.. -- .. · .. -- .-·· . ·.··, . . • . . , ·-.· ·-_-.. . · .· . ·- - .. :- .:: . •· ·' . -.-:,::::··.-:·:·.�·-,··•·• ....... -.::··.-.�- -···i:::-···: 
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL 
TO THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

THE GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 
ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 

15 July 2013 

Chru.tered Accotmtants TSD Lal and Company have audited on my behalf the financial statements 
of the Guyana Marketing Corporation for the year ended 31 December 2011, as set out on pages 2 
to 30. The audit was conducted in accordance with the Audit Act 2004. 

Management's responsibility_jor the .financial statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with International Finm1cial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's responsibility 

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I 
conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing issued by the 
International Federation of Accountants (IF AC) and those of the International Organisation of 
Supreme Audit Institutions (INTOSAI). Those standards require that I comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An 
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
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As required by the Audit Act 2004, I have reviewed the audit plan and procedures, working 
papers, report and opinion of the Chartered Accountants. I have also had detailed discussions 
with the Chartered Accountants on all matters of significance to the audit and had carried out 
additional examinations, as necessary, in arriving at my opinion. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for my audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In my opinion, the :financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects of the 
:financial position of Guyana Marketing Corporation as at 31 December 2011 and of its :financial 
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial 
Repo1iing Standards 

Report and Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

The financial statements comply with the requirements of the Companies Act 1991. 

AUDIT OFFICE 
63 HIGH STREET 
KINGSTON 
GEORGETOWN 
GUYANA 
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REPORT OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS TSD LAL & CO 

TO THE AUDITOR GENERAL 

ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF 

GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2011 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Guyana Marketing Corporation which comprise the statement of financial 

position as at 31 December 2011 and the statement of income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year 

then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes as set out on pages 2 to 30. 

Directors'/Mm,ngeme11t's Respo11sibi/ity for tlte Fi111111cial St11te111e11ts 

The Directors/ Management are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of tl1ese financial statements in accordance with 

International Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control 

relevant to tl1e preparntion and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 

or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the 

circumstances. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 

with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 

audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain nudit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The 

procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 

entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also 

includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 

management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opi11io11 

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects of the financial position of Guyana Marketing 

Corporation as at 3 I December 2011 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 

International Financial Reporting Standards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

The financial statements comply with the requirements of the Companies Act 1991. 

(p,e.,'t Cv � 
TSO LAL&CO. 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

(An Independent Correspondent Firm of 

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu) 

Date: May 16, 2013 

77 Brickdam, 

Stabroek, Georgetown, 

Guyana 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

r I 
STATEMENT OF INCOME 

I 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2011 

; I 
Notes W1 2010 

r I 
G$ G$ 

Turnover 5 6,402,473 19,613,416 

. I Cost of sales 5,579,109 16,226,494 

: I 
Gr oss profit 823,364 3,386,922 

Other income 6 14,823,902 33,199,771 

J Government grant 7 589,885,611 187,930,213 

605,532,877 224,516,906 

Selling and dis tribution 8 3,062,481 9,067,769 

I
Administrative expenses 9 492,019,672 131,737,638 

Profit before interest 110,450,724 83,711,499 

Financial expenses 10 826,131 213,067 

Profit for the year 109,624,593 83,498,432 

.1 

I 
I 

l 
"The accompanying notes form an· integr al part of these financial statements" 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 

Capital Government of Retained 
Guyana earnings Total 

G$ G$ G$ G$ 

At 1 January 2010 11,945,965 25,102,348 18,125,846 55,174,159 

Profit for the year 83,498,432 83,498,432 

Balance at 31 December,2010 11,945,965 25,102,348 101,624,278 138,672,591 

Profit for the year 109,624,593 109,624,593 

Balance at 31 December 2011 11,945,965 25,102,348 211,248,871 248,297,184 

"The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements". 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

I I 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011 

. i 

I 

ASSETS Notes 2011 2010 
r l Non current assets G$ G$ 
. I 

' I 
Property,plant and equipment 11 151,053,835 144,451,807 

i 
Current assets • I 

Stocks 12 341,000 4,728,954 
Debtors and prepayments 13 87,581,439 2,463,087 
Cash at bank 14 251,520,883 634,572,616 

-1 339,443,322 641,764,657 

TOT AL ASSETS 490,497,157 786,216,464 

_EQUIT'l...AN.D..LIABIL ITI ES 

Capital and reserves 

Capital 11 (a) 11,945,965 11,945,965 
Government of Guyana 15 25,102,348 25,102,348 
Retained earnings 211,248,871 101,624,278 

248,297,184 138,672,591 
Non current liability 

Deferred income 16 225,335,179 626,604,304 
Current liabilities 

Creditors and accruals 17 14,940,953 20,939,569 
Bank overdraft(unsecured) 18 1,923,841 

16,864,794 20,939,569 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 490,497 I 157 786,216,464 

"These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on .. /6.�d��/-, 2.D/3

.�'.. b�half of�ireclor 

...... ............................... / ............... Director 

"The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements". 
• 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 

Operating activities 

Profit for the year 

Adjustments for: 
Loss on disposal of asset 
Deprication 

Operating proflt before working capital changes 

Decrease/(increase) in stocks 
Decrease/(increase) in debtors and prepayments 
lncrease/(decrease) in creditors and accruals 
Decrease in deferred income 

Net cash provided by/used in) operating activities 

Investing activities 

Purchase of fixed assets 

Net cash used In investing activities 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 

Consisting: 
Cash on hand and bank 
Bank overdraft 

2011 
G$ 

109,624,593 

239,392 
19,098,080 

128,962,065 

4,387,954 
(85,118,352) 

(5,998,616) 
(401,269,125) 

(359,036,074) 

(25,939,500) 

(25,939,500) 

(384,975,574) 

634,572,616 

249,597,042 

251,520,883 
1,923,841 

249,597,042 

"The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements". 

5 

2010 
G$ 

83,498,432 

5,555,950 
9,211,484 

98,265,866 

(3, 186,082) 
5,632,789 

16,274,204 
(46,024,402) 

70,962,375 

(106,043,229) 

(106,043,229) 

(35,080,854) 

669,653,470 

634,572,616 

634,572,616 

634,572,616 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

I. Incorporation and activities

The Corporation was incorporated in Guyana under Order 97. of 1963, made under the
Public Corporation Ordinance and is involved in the facilitation for exportation of non -
traditional fresh and processed agricultural products.

2. New and revised standards and interpretations

Effective for the current year end

Amendments to Standards 

IFRS 1 Short term Disclosure Exemption - IFRS 7 
IFRS 1 Short term Exemption - IFRS 9 

IFRS 1 Three amendments to IFRS 1 -
Changes in accounting policies, 
deemed cost exemption for event-driven fair value 
measurements and 
deemed cost (rate-regulated entities) 

IFRS 3 Amendments to IFRS3 (2008) 
IFRS 7 Amendments as part ofimprovements to IFRSs 2010 
IAS 1 Amendments as part oflmprovements to IFRSs 2010 
IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures 
IAS 27(2008) Amendments as part of 

Improvements to IFRSs 2010 
IAS 32 Classification of Rights Issues 
IAS 34 Amendments as part of Improvements to IFRSs 2010 

6 

Effective for 
annual 

periods 
beginning 
on or after 

1 July 2010 
On adoption of 

1 January 2011 
1 July2010 
I January 2011 
1 January 2011 
I January 2011 

1 July 2010 
1 February 2010 
1 January 2011 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

New and revised standards and interpretations - cont'd

Effective for the current year end - cont'd 

New Interpretations 

IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with 
Equity Instruments 

Amendments to Interpretations 

IFRIC 13 Amendments as part of Improvements to IFRSs 2010 

IFRIC 14 Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement 

Available for early adoption for the current year end 

New and Amended Standard 

IFRS 1 Removal of Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters 
IFRS 1 Severe Hyperinflation 
IFRS 7 Enhanced Derecognition Disclosure Requirements 

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification and 
Measurement 
IFRS 9 Additions for Financial Liability Accounting 
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements 
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 
IAS 27(2011) Separate Financial Statements 
IAS 28(2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 

7 

Effective for annual 
periods beginning 
on or after 

1 July 2010 

1 January 2011 

1 January 2011 

1 July 2011 
1 July 2011 
1 July 2011 

1 January 2015 
1 January 2015 
1 January 2013 
1 January 2013 
1 January 2013 
1 January 2013 
1 January 2013 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

2. New and revised standards and interpretations - cont'd

Available for early adoption for the current year end - cont'd 

New and Amended Standards-cont'd 

IFRS 13 Eair Value Measurement 
IAS 1(2011) Amendments to IAS 1 - Presentation of 
Other Comprehensive Income 
IAS 12 Amendments to IAS 12- Income Taxes 
IAS 19 Amendments to IAS 19 - Employee Benefits 

New interpretation 

IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a 
Surface Mine 

The Company has not opted for early adoption. 

1 January 2013 

1 July2012 
1 January 2012 
1 January 2013 

1 January 2013 

The standards and amendments that are expected to impact the Company's 
accounting policies, when adopted, are explained below. 

IFRS 7 
The amendments to IFRS 7 increase the disclosure requirements for transactions 
involving transfers of financial assets and are intended to provide greater 
transparency around risk exposures when a financial asset is transferred. The 
directors do not anticipate that these amendments to IFRS 7 will have a significant 
effect on the Company's disclosures 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

2. New and revised standards and interpretations - cont'd

IFRS 9 

IFRS 9 was issued in November 2009 and was initially required to be applied 
from 1 January 2013. However, new requirements were added in November 2010 
and the revised date for adoption is now 1 January 2015. This standard specifies 
how an entity should classify and measure its financial assets. It requires all 
financial assets to be classified in their entirety on the basis of the entity's 
business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow 
characteristics of the financial assets. Financial assets are to be initially measured 
at fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit 
and loss, particular transaction costs. Subsequently, financial assets are to be 
measured either at amortised cost or fair value. 
The application of IFRS 9 may have significant impact on amounts reported in 
respect of the Company's financial assets and financial liabilities However, it is 
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed 
review has been completed. 
When adopted, the standard will be applied retrospectively in accordance with 
IAS 8 

IFRS 13 

IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value measurements and 
disclosures about fair value measurements. The Standard defines fair value, 
establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and requires disclosures about 
fair value measurements. It applies to both financial instrument items and non­
financial instrument items for which other IFRSs require or permit fair value 
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements, except in specified 
circumstances. 
When adopted, the application of the new Standard may affect the amounts 
reported in the financial statements and result in more extensive disclosures in the 
financial statements. 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

New and revised standards and interpretations - cont'd 

The amendments to IAS 1 retain the option to present profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income in either a single statement or in two separate but 
consecutive statements. However, the amendments to IAS 1 require additional 
disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive income section such that items 
of other comprehensive income are grouped into two categories: ( a) items that 
will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items that will be 
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are met. 
Income tax on items of other comprehensive income is required to be allocated on 
the same basis. 
The presentation of items of other comprehensive income will be modified 
accordingly when the amendments are applied in the future accounting periods. 

Apart from the foregoing, none of the above new standards, interpretations and 
amendments to standards is expected to have a significant impact on the 
Company's accounting policies when adopted. 

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act.

(b) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of certain fixed assets. The principal
accoll11ting policies are set out below.
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3. 

GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Summary of significant accounting policies-cont'd 

(c) Revenue and expense recognition

Revenue is recognized in the statement of income on an accrual basis at the 
fair value of the consideration received. 

Expenses are recognized on an accruals basis. 

( d) Taxation

The Corporation is exempt from corporation and prope1iy taxes. 

(e) Foreign cunencies

Transactions in currencies other than Guyana dollars are recorded at the rates 
of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. 
At the end of each reporting period, monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated to Guyana dollars at the 
Cambio rates prevailing on that date or at rates agreed by the Bank of Guyana. 
Non-monetary assets and liabilities carried at fair value that are denominated 
in foreign currencies are retranslated at rates prevailing on the date when the 
fair value was determined. Gains or losses arising on retranslation are included in 
the profit or loss for the period, except for exchange differences arising on non­
monetary assets and liabilities where changes in fair value are recognized in the 
statement of changes in equity. 

11 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Summary of significant accounting policies-cont'd 

(f) Fixed assets and depreciation

Freehold land and buildings held for use in the supply of goods and services or for 
administrative purposes are stated in the statement of financial position at their 
revalued amounts. Revalued amounts are taken as the fair value at the date of 
revaluation less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment loss. 

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such land and buildings is 
credited to capital reserve. 

Depreciation on revalued buildings is charged to profit or loss. On the subsequent 
sale or retirement of a revalued land or buildings, the attributable revaluation surplus 
remaining in the capital reserve is transferred to the statement of comprehensive 
income. 

Motor vehicles and machinery and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and any recognised impairment loss. 
No depreciation is provided on freehold land and construction work-in-progress. 
Depreci-atrorr-of otherfix:ed assets-is-ca1cul

a

ted-on the straight i-i"ne methodafrfiles 
sufficient to write off the cost or valuation of these assets to their residual values over 
their estimated  useful lives as follows: 

Building 
Motor vehicle 
Machinery and equipment 
Furniture and Fittings 

2 % 
25 % 
10 % 
12.50% 

Assets acquired during the year are depreciated from the date of acquisition. 

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever there is objective evidence to indicate 
that the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 
The excess of the carrying amount above the recoverable amount is written off to the 
profit or loss. 

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of fixed assets is 
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of 
the asset and is recognized in profit or loss. 

(g) Stocks

Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value based on the first-in­
first-out method. Net realizable value is the selling price in the normal course of 
business less selling expenses. 
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3. 

GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Summary of significant accounting policies-cont'd 

(h) Financial liabilities

The Company's financial liabilities are classified as other financial liabilities.

(i) Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash and sho1t term funds are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash
commitments rather than investment or other purposes ..

These are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, with maturity dates of three
(3) months or less.

U) Bank borrowings

Interest bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recognized at amortised cost.

(k) Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual a1Tangement.

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value,
net of transaction costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense is recognised on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the a11101tised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when the company's obligations are
discharged, cancelled or expire.

13 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Summary of significant accounting policies-cont'd 

(I) Financial assets

Investments are recognized and derecognized on trade date where the purchase or 
sale of an investment is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the 
investment within the timeframe established by the market concerned, and are 
initially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs. 

Trade and other receivables are measured at amortised cost. Appropriate allowances 
for estimated unrecoverable amounts are recognized in profit and loss when there is 
objective evidence that the asset is impaired. The allowance recognized is based on 
management's evaluation of the collectability of the receivables. 

(m) Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a 
financial asset and allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective 
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts 
(mcludmg all fees on points paid or received7hat fonn7rll7 nte-gral pan:-of-tl1e­
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the 
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period. 

(n) Revaluation reserve

This represents the surplus arising from the revaluation of land and buildings. This 
reserve is not distributable. 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Summary of significant accounting policies-cont'd 

(o) Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the corporation reviews the carrying amounts of
its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
corporation estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs .

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. If
the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.

(p) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the company will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of each reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

(q) Business reporting divisions
A business reporting division is a component of an entity that is engaged in providing
products or services that are subject to risks and returns that are different from those
of other business divisions. A geographical division is engaged in providing products
or a service within a particular economic environment that are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of divisions operating in other economic
environments.
The company's operations are considered a single business unit with certain activities
segmented along geographical lines viz Guyana and outside of Guyana.
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Summary of significant accounting policies-cont'd 
(r) Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each 
reporting period. Financial assets are impaired when there is objective 
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after initial 
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the 
investment have been impacted. 

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment is 
the difference between the assets carrying amount and the present value of the 
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset's original 
effective interest rate. 

(s) Derecognition of financial assets

The company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights 
to the cash flows from the asset expire; or it transfers the financial asset and 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another 
entity._Jf the company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks 
and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the 
corporation recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated 
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the company retains substantially 
all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the 
company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a 
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. 

Government Grants 

Government grants received to compensate the Company's cost are recognised 
in the income statement in the period in which these costs are incurred . 

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty 

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, which are described in 
note 3, the directors are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions 
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent 
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on 
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual 
results may differ from these estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Revisions to accounting estimates are r€::cognised in the period in which the 
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the 
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty - cont'd 

Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key 
sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk 
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
in the financial statements: 

i) Trade, other receivables and prepayments

On a regular basis, management reviews trade and other receivables to 
assess impairment. Based on information available as to the likely 
impairment in cash flows, decisions are taken in determining appropriate 
provisions to be made for impairment. 

ii) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Management reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and 
equipment at the end of each year to detennine whether the useful lives of 
property, plant and equipment should remain the same. 

iii) Impairment of financial assets

Management makes judgement at each reporting date to determine 
whether financial assets are impaired. Financial assets are impaired when 
the carrying value is greater that the recoverable amount and there is 
objective evidence of impairment. The recoverable amount is the present 
value of the future cash flows. 

17 
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JGUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

. I 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

, I 2011 2010 

. i G$ G$ 

' i 

I 
5 Turnover 6,402,473 19,613,416 

. I 
Turnover represents goods sold to third parties . 

I 6 Other Income 

Income Receivables - T/Phone 16,072 52,457 
. I 

Promotion 3,274,400 10,866,379 , I Pack House Fees 1,480,900 1,378,910 

I l 
Container plugup charges 57,700 

I 
Rental of building 480,000 720,000 
Miscellaneous 1,804,110 1,431,671 

J 
Cash Overage i,079 
Refund 586,981 1,540,597 

, I 
Sales of forms/documents 832,460 509,849 
Income from sale of tender 85,000 

. I Loss on Disposal (239,392) (5,555,950) 
�ezer I rucITncome ITTlo,ffOo -cr-93,500 
Bank interest received 2,823,371 
Contribution Fund 21,918,579 
Read Building Fund 2,870,000 

14,823,902 33,199,771 
7 Government Grants 

Subsidy Capital 13,000,000 13,200,000 
Subsidy- Money subvention 80,231,976 62,401,812 
ALBA Fund 17,576,531 81,100,327 
Market Identification Study 2,400,000 
Competitive Asssessment Study 312,000 306,000 
Development of Market & Ent. 6,636,677 

-I
Fertilizer subvention 451,490,366 2,000 
Farmer's Assistance Programme 459,650 2,873,750 
El Nino 3,978,794 7,600,015 
La Nina 5,861,300 
Buxton project 915,390 1,548,291 
ASDU-MOU 945,487 4,828,701 
North and South Pakarima project 2,468,500 
Toshao's Council 10,656,000 
Land Utilization Project 4,008,940 1,013,317 
Douchfour Project - NDIA 2,000,000 

589,885,611 187,930,213 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

8 Selling and distrubution 
Advertising 
National Exhibition 

9 Administrative expenses 
Alba expense 
Audit fees 
Buxton expenditure 
Cleaning & sanitation 
Christmas celebration 
Computer expenses 
Customs duties 
Depreciation 
Donations 
Electricity 
El Nino expense 
Employment cost 
Export documents 
Farmer's connection 
Fertilizer expenses 
General expenses 
General consultancy_ 
Hotel 5icoumroo�tion::::'l r,:, ,: .:. :·'1•· / 

Hope Douchfour farmers 
Insurance 
La Nina expense 
Land utilization project 
Legal fees 
Market identification study 
Grow more food expenses 
ASDU expenses 
Overseas exhibition 

Meals & entertainment 
MOA expenses 

Balance carried forward 

W1 
G$ 

2,323,721 
738,760 

3,062,481 

4,196,632 
428,655 
915,390 
478,119 
232,318 
492,164 
514,185 

19,098,480 
877,710 

1,301,844 
4,028,958 

51,034,032 

180,000 
366,809,811 

1,949,797 

:J .. :f.1°:.'·' 5,000
407,560 

2,000,000 
669,876 

6,628,404 
1,710,950 

75,400 
27,840 

96,860 
1,076,174 

465,236,159 

19 

2010 
G$ 

7,589,181 
1,478,588 

9,067,769 

6,470,808 
1,250,000 
2,541,760 

31,400 
9,211,484 

253,502 
2,143,681 

15,178,819 
43,026,707 

25,775 
12,900 

10,296,613 

706,802 

3,077,196 
67,400 

1,548,291 
80,000 

459,760 
1,291,929 

275,912 

97,950,739 
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I NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

f I 
9 Administrative expenses 2011 2010 

G$ G$ 

: I 
Balance brought forward 465,236, 159 97,950,739 
Offiice expenses 13,944 3,395,041 
Packaging & wrapping 214,800 

; I Photocopying 60,407 
Postage 1,000 

··1 
Promotional expenses 2,772,077 212,000 

' Rates & taxes 380,200 1,013,317 
, I Relocation cost 414,760 

Rental 3,000,000 3,015,000 

� I Repairs & maintainance 3,464,696 7,525,255 
Security 3,905,504 5,017,583 

u 
Staff gift voucher 1,069,500 
Stationery & printing 1,221,611 1,031,358 

l I Subscription 108,640 165,210 

i I 
Sundry 274,357 
Telephone 1,233,738 1,398,035 
i::oshao cotmcil expenses 6�,5-'1-3 8,9-2-:1,859 

: I 
Training - overseas 629,196 
Transportation & travel 3,681,868 1,778,114 
Consultancy 10,000 

• I Valuation fees 45,368 
Vehicle expenses 3,888,143 
Bad debts 38,479 
Spoilage 86,880 43,959 

492,019,672 131,737,638 

I 
10 Financial expenses 

_J 
_I Bank charges 177,937 213,067 

Bank interest 564,674 

. I 
Night deposit bags 83,520 

826,131 213,067 

20 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

'J, 1 Fixed assets 
Freehold Construction Machine!}'. 
land and work in and Furniture & Motor Total 
buildings grogress eguigment fittings vehicles 

G$ G$ G$ 
(a) Cost/valuation

G$ G$ G$ 

At 1 January 2011 33,725,202 10,000,000 76,985,180 14127103 38,502,410 173,339,895 
Additions - 9,427,577 10,845,556 129,317 5,537,050 25,939,500 
Disposal - - (1,684,562) {600,411) - (2,284,973) 

At 31 December 2011 33,725,202 19,427,577 86,146,174 13,656,009 44,039,460 196,994,422 

Depreciation 

At 1 January 2010 1,753,359 - 12,189,542 7,400,696 7,544,491 28,888,088 
Charge for the year 605,343 - 7,948,470 1,203,202 9,341,065 19,098,080 

Wretten back on disposal - - (1,449,538) (596,043) - {2,045,581) 

At 31 December 2011 2,358,702 - 18,688,474 8,007,855 16,885,556 45,940,587 

Net book values: 

At 31 December 2011 31,366,500 19,427,577 67,457,700 5,648,154 27,153,904 151,053,835 

At 31 January 2011 31,971,843 10,000,000 64,795,638 6,726,407 30,957,919 144,451,807 

(a) The freehold land and building were revalued in 1989 based on professional advice received.The surplus of $ 11,945,965 arising on this
revaluation was credited to revaluation reserve.

(b) Included in land and building is an amount of $60,729 representing the value of a building ,construction cost of $19,810,472 at Central Packaging
Facility (Sophia) and $8703,334 at the Parika Agro-Packaging Facility situated on land owned by the Government of Guyana.

21 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

12 Stocks 

Finished goods 

2011 
G$ 
341,000 

The costs of inventory recognised as expense during the period with respect to the 

operations was G$ 5,579,109 (2010 - G$16,226,494) 

The cost of inventory recognised as an expense includes G$ 86,880 in respec t of 

goods written off. (2010 - G$43,959 ) 

All inventories are expected to be recovered within 12 months. 

13 Debtors and prepayments 

14 

Trade debtors 
Other debtors 
Prepayments 

Cash at bank 

The interest rates on fixed depos it and short term 
deposit accounts are at varing rates from 2% to 4.5% 
(2010- 4.5%) 

15 Government of Guyana 

22 

2011 
G$ 

86,994,711 
586,728 

87,581,439 

251,520,883 

25,102,348 

2010 
G$ 

4,728,954 

2010 
G$ 

38,479 
147,608 

2,277,000 

2,463,087 

634,572,616 

25,102,348 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

2011 2010 
G$ G$ 

Deferred income 

Opening balance 626,604,304 672,628,706 
Received during the year 95,384,510 55,955,003 
Expended during the year (496,653,635) (101,979,405) 

Closing balance 225,335,179 626,604,304 

This reresents: 
(i) The balance of Fertiliser Subvention received on September 18,2008, to be used for

purchaseing of fertiliser for resale to farmers at a subsidised cost.

(II) Unutilised funds from the following grants: Farmers' Assistance Programme,ALBA Funds,
EL Nino Funds,Buxton Project, ASDU-MOU Funds,Market Identification Study,Development

of Market and Enterprise Information System,Competitive Assessment Study,North and
South Pakaraima Project,Toshao's Council and Land Utilisation Project.

2011 2010 
G$ G$ 

Creditors and accruals 

Sundry creditors 13,475,225 3,430,010 

Accruals 1,465,728 17,509,559 

14,940,953 20,939,569 

Republic Bank (Guyana) Limited 

Bank Overdraft (unsecured) 1,923,841 

Rate of interest 18.25 
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19 Analysis of financial assets and liabilities by measurement basis 

Other 

' I Financial assets 

Loans and and liabilities at 

receivable amortised cost Total 

: I 
G$ G$ G$ 

2011 

Assets 

: I Debtors and prepayments 87,581,439 87,581,439 

Cash on hand and at bank 251,520,883 251,520,883 

: I 
87,581,439 251,520,883 339,102,322 

Liabilities 

Creditors and accruals 14,940,953 14,940,953 

8-ank--overdraftt\Jn-secured} -----1,923";8-41 -1, 9.23-;-841

16,864,794 16,864,794 

2010 

Assets 

Debtors and prepayments 2,463,087 2,463,087 

Cash on hand and at bank 634,572,616 634,572,616 

-, 2,463,087 634,572,616 637,035,703 

-/ 
Liabilities 

Creditors and accruals 20,939,569 20,939,569 
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20 Financial risk management 

Financial risk management objectives 

GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

The company's management monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the 
corporation through internal risk reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These 

risks Include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. 

The company seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by the use of techniques that are governed by 

management's policies on foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and credit risk which are approved by the board 
of directors. 

The company's management reports monthly to the board of directors on matters relating to risk and 

management of risk. 

(a) Market risk 

The company's activities expose it to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates 
and Interest rates. The company uses interest rate sensitivity and exposure limits to financial instruments to manage 

Its exposure to Interest rate and foreign currency risk. There has been no change in the company's exposure to 

market risks or the manner in which it manages these risks. 

(I) Interest rate risk 

Interest rate sensitivity analysis. 

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates 

for all financial instruments at the end of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming 
the amounts of the financial instruments at the end of the reporting period were In existence 

throughout the whole-year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest 

rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment of the 
reasonable possible change in interest rates. 

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all the other variables were held constant. the Company's 
profit for the year e would increase/decrease by G$5,481,230 (201 0: G$4, 174,922). This is mainly 

attributable to the Company's exposure to interest rates on its balances at banks. 
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20 Financial risk management 
(a) Market risk-cont'd
(i) Interest rate risk-cont'd

GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market 
interest rates. The company is exposed to various risks that are associated with the effects 
in interest rates. This impacts directly on its cash flows. 

The company management continually monitors and manages these risks through the use of 
appropriate tools and implements relevaant strategies to hedge against any adverse effects. 

Interest risk tables 
Average 

interest rate 

Assets 

Debtors and prepayments 

Cash at bank 4.50 

Liabilities 

Creditors and accruals 

Bank overdraft (unsecured) 18.25 

Interest sensitivity gap 

Assets 

Debtors and prepayments 

Cash at bank 4.50 

Llabllltles 
Creditors and accruals 

Interest sensitivity gap 

1 year 
G$ 

251,520,883 

251,520,883 

1,923,841 

1,923,841 

249,597,042 

Within 
1 year 

G$ 

634,572,616 

634,572,616 

634,572,616 

26 

Maturing 
31-12-2011 
Non-interest 

bearing 
G$ 

87,581,439 

87,581,439 

14,940,953 

14,940,953 

Maturing 
31-12-2010 
Non-interest 

bearing 
G$ 

2,463,087 

2,463,087 

20,939,569 

20,939,569 

Total 
G$ 

87,581,439 

251,520,883 

339,102,322 

14,940,953 

1,923,841 

16,864,794 

Total 
G$ 

2,463,087 

634,572,616 

637,035,703 

20,939,569 

20,939,569 

I 

I 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

20 Financial risk management - cont'd 

(a) Market risk-cont'd

(ii) Currency risk

The Company's exposure to the effects of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates is minin 
At the end of the financial year there were no assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencie 

(iii) Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of financial Instruments will fluctuate as a result of changes in n 
prices whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual security of its issuer 
factors affecting all securities traded in the market. Management continually identifies the risk anc 
diversifies the portfolio in order to minimize the risk. 

The company is not significantly exposed to other price risks arising from equity investments. 
(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet its comm 

The company manages its liquidity risk by maintaining an appropriate level of resources in liquid c 

The following table shows the distribution of assets and liabilities by maturity: 

Assets 

Debtors and prepayments 

Cash on hand and at bank 

Liabilities 

Creditors and accruals 

Bank overdraft (secured) 

Net assets 

Assets 

Debtors and prepayments 

Cash on hand and at bank 

Liabilities· 

Creditors and accruals 

Net assets 

Maturing 
2011 

Within 1 year 
On Demand Due 3 - 12 mths 

G$ G$ 

87,581,439 

87,581,439 

1,923,841 

1,923,841 

85,657,598 

251,520,883 

251,520,883 

14,940,953 

14,940,953 

236,579,930 

Maturing 
2010 

Within 1 year 
On Demand Due 3 - 12 mths 

G$ G$ 

2,463,087 

2,463,087 

2,463,087 

634,572,616 

634,572,616 

20,939,569 

20,939,569 

613,633,047 

G$ 

87,581,439 

251,520,883 

339,102,322 

14,940,953 

1,923,841 

16,864,794 

322,237,528 

G$ 

2,463,087 

634,572,616 

637,035,703 

20,939,569 

20,939,569. 

616,096,134 
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NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

20 Financial risk management - cont'd 

(c) Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk that financial loss arises from failure of a customer to meet its obligations under a
contract, ii arises in the case of the corporation, principally from debtors and cash resources holdings.

Cash and bank includes balances held at financial institutions. These banks have been assessed by the Directors
as being credit worthly, with very strong capacity to meet their obligations as they fall due.

The company's exposure to credit risk is continuously monitored to ensure that amounts are recovered.
Management implicitly monitors the analysis of credit risk portfolio.
The company does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of
counterparties having similar characteristics.

Maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of any collateral and other credit enhancements.

The table below shows the Corporation's maximum exposure to credit risk.

2011 2010 
Gross maximum exposure: G$ G$ 

Debtors (i) 87,581,439 2,463,087 

Cash resources at banks (ii) 251,520,883 634,572,616 

Total credit risk exposure 339,102,322 637,035,703 

Where financial instruments are recorded at fair value the amounts shown above represents the current credit risk 
exposure but not the maximum risk exposure that could arise in the future as a result of changes in values. 

(i) This represent trade debtors which are collectible

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents include balances held with commercial banks.These banks have been
assessed by the corporation as being credit worthy,with very strong capacity to meet their
obligations as they fall due. 

Concentration of risk is managed by clienUcounterparty, by geographical region and by industry sector 
as detailed in the following: 

Geographical sectors 

The company's maximum credit exposure, after taking account of credit loss provisions established 

can be analysed by the following geographical sectors based on the country of domicile of counterparties: 

2011 2010 
G$ G$ 

Guyana 87,581,439 2,463,087 

The above balances are classified as follows:. 

28 

I 

I 



I . 
I

I ; I

1 I 

I : I
I :1
I i I
i I

I ; I
!�

[ I 

I : I
I : I
l __ I

I j

I �1 

I -- I

I J 
__I 

I I

I 

GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

20 Financial risk management - cont'd 

(c) Credit risk-cont'd

Current 

21 Capital risk management 

2011 
G$ 

87,581,439 

2010 
G$ 

2,463,087 

The company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern , 

maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. 

The company's overall strategy remains unchanged from 2010. 

The capital structure of the company consists of cash equivalents and equity attributable to the 

Government of Guyana, comprising capital, reserves and retained earnings. 

29 
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22 Fair value of financial instruments 

GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Fair values have been determined as follows: 

Assets 

Debtors and prepayments 

Cash at bank 

Liabilities 

Creditors and accruals 

Bank overdraft 

Car�ing value 
G$ 

87,581,439 

251,520,883 

339,102,322 

14,940,953 

1,923,841 

16,864,794 

2011 
Fair value 

G$ 

87,581,439 

251,520,883 

339,102,322 

14,940,953 

1,923,841 

16,864,794 

Valuation techniques and assumptions applied for the purposes of measuring fair value: 

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities were determined as follows: 

2010 
Car!)'.ing value Fair value 

G$ G$ 

2,463,087 2,463,087 

634,572,616 634,572,616 

637,035,703 637,035,703 

20,939,569 20,939,569 

20,939,569 20,939,569 

(a) Debtors are net of specific and other provisions for impairment. The fair value of debtors is based on expected realisation of
outstanding balances taking into account the corporation's history with respect to delinquencies.

(b) Financial instruments where the carrying amounts are equal to fair value:- Due to the short maturity, the carrying amounts of
certain financial instruments are assumed to approximate their fair value. These includes cash debtors and prepayment
and creditors and accruals.

23 Pending litigation 

There is no pending litigation. 
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48/PC: 46/2/2014 

Mr. Nizam Hassan 
General Manager 
Guyana Marketing Corporation 
Robb & Alexander Streets 
Georgetown. 

Dear Mr. Hassan, 

26 February 2014 

RE: AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 
GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012 

Please find attached five (5) copies of the audited :financial statements, together with the report of 
the Auditor General, thereon. 

Should you need any further explanation, please do not hesitate to contact us. 

With best regards. 

Yours sincerely, 
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26 February 2014 

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL 
TO THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

THE GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 
ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012 

Chartered Accountants TSD Lal and Company have audited 011 my behalf the financial statements 
of the Guyana Marketing Corporation for the year ended 31 December 2012, as set out 011 pages 2 
to 30. The audit was conducted in accordance with the Audit Act 2004. 

_Jv.lan.agemen/J r.esp.onsib.ility for the .financial statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standmds, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's responsibility 

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I 
conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing issued by the 
International Federation of Accountants (IF AC), and those of the International Organisation of 
Supreme Audit Institutions (INTOSAI). Those standards require that I comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An 
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of .the accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
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As required by the Audit Act 2004, I have reviewed the audit plan and procedures, working 
papers, report and opinion of the Chartered Accountants. I have also had detailed discussions 
with the Chartered Accountants on all matters of significance to the audit and had carried out 
additional examinations, as necessary, in arriving at my opinion. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for my audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the 
financial position of Guyana Marketing Corporation as at 31 December 2012, and of its financial 
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards and comply with the requirements of the Public Corporation Ordinance. 

AUDIT OFFICE 
63 HIGH STREET 
KINGSTON 
GEORGETOWN 

GUYANA 
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REPORT OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS TSO LAI., & CO 

TO THE AUDITOR GENERAL 

ON THE FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS OF 

GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 I DECEMBER, 2012 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Guyana Marketing Corporntion which comprise the statement of financial 

position as at 31 December 2012 and the statement of income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash 11ows for the year 

then ended, and a summary ofsignilicant accounting policies and other explanatory notes as set out on pages 2 to 30. 

Directors1/Manageme11t's Respousibility for the Fim111cial Stateme11ts 

The Directors/ Management are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 

International Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control 

relevant to the preparntion and fair presentation of financial statements Uiat are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 

or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the 

circumstances. 

A11tlitors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 

with International Standards 011 Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perfonn the 

audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The 

procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 

entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also 

includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 

management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opi11io11 

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects of the financial position of Guyana Marketing 

Corporation as at 31 December 2012 and of its financial performance and its cash Ilows for the year then ended in accordance with 

lntemational Finm1cial Reporting Standards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulntory Requirements 

Tiie financial statements comply with the requirements of the Pub I ic Corporation Ordinance. 

?S,,dtdft:v 
TSDLAL&CO. 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

(An Independent Correspondent Firm of 

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu) 

Date: January 24, 20 I 4 

77 Brickdam, 

Stabroek, Georgetown, 

Guyana 

I 

I 

I 



I r I 

I . I
I ,-, 
r r-,

I [ I
I f ·1 
r1 

I] 
I [J
I r I 
[) 

GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

STATEMENT OF INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2012 

Turnover 

Cost of sales 

Gross profit 

Other income 

Government grant 

Selling and distribution 

Administrative expenses 

Profit before interest 

Financial expenses 

Profit for the year 

Notes 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

2012 

G$ 

8,583,289 

7,021,503 

1,561,786 

6,510,486 

122,597,336 

130,669,608 

1,269,337 

120,537,623 

8,862,648 

445,404 

8,417,244 

2011 

G$ 

6,402,473 

5,579,109 

823,364 

14,823,902 

589,885,611 

605,532,877 

3,062,481 

492,019,672 

110,450,724 

826,131 

109,624,593 

"The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements" 
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Balance at 1 January 2011 

Write back of reserve 

GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012 

Capital 
Reserve 

G$ 

11,945,965 

(11,945,965) 

Government of 
Guyana 

G$ 

25,102,348 

Balance at 1 January 2011 (Restated) 

Profit for the year 

25,102,348 

Balance at 31 December,2011 

Profit for the year 

Balance at 31 December 2012 

25,102,348 

25,102,348 

Reta ined 
earnings 

G$ 

101,624,278 

101,624,278 

109,624,593 

211,248,871 

8,417,244 

219,666,115 

"The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements" . 

Total 
G$ 

138,672,591 

(11,945,965) 

126,726,626 

109,624,593 

236,351,219 

8,417,244 

244,768,463 
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ASSETS 

Non current assets 

Property,plant and equipment 

Current assets 

Stocks 
Debtors and prepayments 
Cash at bank 

TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Capital and reserves 

Government of Guyana 
Retained earnings 

Non current liability 

Deferred income 
Current liabilities 

Creditors and accruals 
Bank overdraft(unsecured) 

GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2012 

Notes 2012 
G$ 

11 147,377,981 

12 2,767,957 
13 87,379,411 
14 233,867,828 

324,015,196 

471,393,177 

15 25,102,348 
219,666,115 
24{768,463 

16 223,560,269 

17 3,064,445 
18 

3,064,445 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 471,393,177 

2011 
G$ 

Restated 

139,107,870 

341,000 
87,581,439 

251,520,883 

339,443,322 

478,551,192 

25,102,348 
211,248,871 
236,351,219 

225,335,179 

14,940,953 
1,923,841 
16,864,794 

478,551,192 

-

"These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on .V&.Y'!!.'¼ 21?,,l!)l'r 

�� ��
h�lf �f ���/ Director 

............... ::;�� �c�;�� f�;�

D

��:::gra l part of these financial statementa" 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012 

Operating activities 

Profit for the year 

Adjustments for: 
Loss on disposal of asset 
Depreciation 

Operating profit before working capital changes 

Decrease/(increase) in stocks 
Decrease/(increase) in debtors and prepayments 
Decrease in creditors and accruals 
Decrease in deferred income 

Net cash provided by/used in) operating activities 

Investing activities 

Purchase of fixed assets 

Net cash used in Investing activities 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 

Consisting: 
Cash on hand and bank 
Bank overdraft 

2012 
G$ 

8,417,244 

20,203,082 

28,620,326 

(2,426,957) 
202,028 

(11,876,508) 
(1,774,910) 

12,743,979 

(28,473,193) 

(28,473,193) 

(15,729,214) 

249,597,042 

233,867,828 

233,867,828 

233,867,828 

"The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements". 

5 

2011 
G$ 

109,624,593 

239,392 
19,098,080 

128,962,065 

4,387,954 
(85,118,352) 

(5,998,616) 
(401,269,125) 

(359,036,074) 

(25,939,500) 

(25,939,500) 

(384,975,574) 

634,572,616 

249,597,042 

251,520,883 
1,923,841 

249,597,042 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Incorporation and activities 

The Corporation was incorporated in Guyana under Order 97. of 1963, made under the 
Public Corporation Ordinance and is involved in the facilitation for exportation of non -
traditional fresh and processed agricultural products. 

New and revised standards and interp1·etations 

Effective for the current year end 

Amended and revised standards 

IFRS 1 

IFRS 1 

IFRS 7 

IAS 12 

Removal of Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters 

Severe Hyperinflation 

Enhanced De-recognition Disclosure Requirements 

Amendments to IAS 12 - Income Taxes 

Available for early adoption for the current xear end 

New and Amended Standards 

IFRS 9 

IFRS 9 

IFRS 10 

IFRS 11 

IFRS 12 

Financial Instruments: Classification and 
Measurement 

Additions for Financial Liability Accounting 

Consolidated Financial Statements 

Joint Arrangements 

Disclosure oflnterests in Other Entities 

IAS 27(2011) Separate Financial Statements 
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Effective for 
annual 
periods 
beginning 
on or after 

I July 2011 

I July 2011 

l July 2011

l January 2012

I January 2015 

l January 2015

I January 2013 

I January 2013 

1 January2013 

l January 2013
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

New and revised standards and interpretations - cont'd 

Available for e�rly adoption for the current year end cont'd 

New and amended standards - cont'd 

IAS 28(2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 

IAS I (2011) Amendments to IAS I - Presentation of 
Other Comprehensive Income 

IAS 19 Amendments to [AS 19 - Employee Benefits 

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments - Offsetting Financial Assets and 
Financial Liabilities 

IAS 32 Financial Instruments - Offsetting Financial Assets and 
Financial Liabilities 

IFRS I First-time Adoption ofinternational Financial 
Rep011ing Standards (Government loans) 

IFRS I Amendments as part of improvements to IFRSs 2011 

IAS I Amendments as patt of improvements to fFRSs 2011 

IAS I 6 Amendments as pa1t of improvements to IFRSs 2011 

IAS 32 Amendments as pa1t of improvements to IFRSs 2011 

IAS 34 Amendments as pa1t of improvements to IFRSs 2011 

1FRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 
(Transitional arrangements) 

7 

Effective for annual 
periods beginning 
on or after 

l January 2013

l January 2013

I July 2012 

I January 2013 

1 January 2013 

l January 2014

1 January 2013 

1 January 2013 

1 January 2013 

I January 2013 

1 January 2013 

1 January 2013 

1 January2013 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

New and revised standards and interpretations - cont'd 

Available for early adoption for the current year end cont'd 

New and Amended Standards cont'd 

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements (Transitional arrangements) 

IFRS 12 Disclosure oflnterests in Other Entities 
(Transitional arrangements) 

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements (Exemptions) 

IFRS 12 Disclosure oflnterests in Other Entities (Exemptions) 

IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements (Exemptions) 

New interpretation 

IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a 
Surface Mine 

The Corporation has not opted for early adoption. 

Effective for 
annual 
periods 
beginning 

on or after 

l January 2013

I January 2013 

l January 2014

I January 2014 

1 January 2014 

l January 2013

The standards and amendments that are expected to impact the Corporation's 
accounting policies, when adopted, are explained below. 

IFRS 7 
The amendments to IFRS 7 increase the disclosure requirements for transactions 
involving transfers of financial assets and are intended to provide greater 
transparency around risk exposures when a financial asset is transfened. The 
directors do not anticipate that these amendments to IFRS 7 will have a 
significant effect on the Corporation's disclosures 

8 



r ) 

; ! 

r l 

"�I 

, I

� l 
; I 
. i 

- ) 

.1 
··
1

:-J 

_J 

. l 

l 

GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

2. New and revised standards and interpretations - cont'd

IFRS 9 

IFRS 9 was issued in November 2009 and was initially required to be applied 
from 1 January 2013. However, new requirements were added in November 2010 
and the revised date for adoption is now 1 January 2015. This standard specifies 
how an entity should classify and measure its financial assets. It requires all 
financial assets to be classified in their entirety on the basis of the entity's 
business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow 
characteristics of the financial assets. Financial assets are to be initially measured 
at fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit 
and loss, paiiicular transaction costs. Subsequently, financial assets are to be 
measured either at amo1tised cost or fair value. 
The application of IFRS 9 may have significant impact on amounts reported in 
respect of the Corporation's financial assets and financial liabilities However, it is 
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed 
review has been completed. 
When adopted, the standard will be applied retrospectively in accordance with 
IAS 8 

IFRS 13 

IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value measurements and 
disclosures about fair value measurements. The Standard defines fair value, 
establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and requires disclosures about 
fair value measurements. It applies to both financial instrument items and non­
financial instrument items for which other IFRSs require or permit fair value 
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements, except in specified 
circumstances. 
When adopted, the application of the new Standard may affect the ainounts 
repo1ted in the financial statements and result in more extensive disclosures in the 
financial statements. 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

2. New and revised standards and interpretations - cont'd

The amendments to IAS 1 retain the option to present profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income in either a single statement or in two separate but 
consecutive statements. However, the amendments to IAS 1 require additional 
disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive income section such that items 
of other comprehensive income are grouped into two categories: (a) items· that 
will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items that will be 
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are met. 
Income tax on items of other comprehensive income is required to be allocated on 
the same basis. 
The presentation of items of other comprehensive income will be modified 
accordingly when the amendments are applied in the future accounting periods. 

Apart from the foregoing, none of the above new standards, interpretations and 
amendments to standards is expected to have a significant impact on the 
Corporation's accounting policies when adopted . 

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards.

(b) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost 
convention.The principal accounting policies are set out below. 

10 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

3. Summary of significant accounting policies-cont'd

(c) Revenue and expense recognition

Revenue is recognized in the statement of income on an accrual basis at the 
fair value of the consideration received. 

Expenses are recognized on an accruals basis. 

(d) Taxation

The Corporation is exempt from corporation and property taxes. 

(e) Foreign cunencies

Transactions in currencies other than Guyana dollars are recorded at the rates 
of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. 
At the end of each rep01ting period, monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated to Guyana dollars at the 
Cambia rates prevailing on that date or at rates agreed by the Bank of Guyana. 
Non-monetary assets and liabilities canied at fair value that are denominated 
in foreign currencies are retranslated at rates prevailing on the date when the 
fair value was detennined. Gains or losses arising on retranslation are included in 
the profit or loss for the period, except for exchange differences arising on non­
monetary assets and liabilities where changes in fair value are recognized in the 
statement of changes in equity . 
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3. 

GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Summary of significant accounting policies-cont'd 

(t) Fixed assets and depreciation

Freehold land and buildings held for use in the supply of goods and services or for
administrative purposes are stated in the statement of financial position at their
revalued amounts. Revalued amounts are taken as the fair value at the date of
revaluation less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment loss.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such land and buildings 1s
credited to capital reserve.

Depreciation on revalued buildings is charged to profit or loss. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of a revalued land or buildings, the attributable revaluation surplus
remaining in the capital reserve is transferred to the statement of comprehensive
income.

Motor vehicles and machinery and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any recognised impairment loss.
No depreciation is provided on freehold land and construction work-in-progress.
Depreciation of other fixed assets is calculated on the straight line method at rates
sufficient to write off the cost or valuation of these assets to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

Building 
Motor vehicle 
Machinery and equipment 
Furniture and Fittings 

2% 
25% 
10% 
12.50% 

Assets acquired during the year are depreciated from the date of acquisition. 

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever there is objective evidence to indicate 
that the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 
The excess of the carrying amount above the recoverable amount is written off to the 
profit or loss. 

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of fixed assets is 
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of 
the asset and is recognized in profit or loss. 

(g) Stocks

Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value based on the first-in­
first-out method. Net realizable value is the selling price in the normal course of
business less selling expenses.

12 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Summary of significant accounting policies-cont'd 

(h) Financial liabilities

The Corporation's financial liabilities are classified as other financial liabilities.

(i) Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash and short term funds are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash
commitments rather than investment or other purposes.

These are readily conve1tible to known amounts of cash, with maturity dates of three
(3) months or less.

U) Bank borrowings

lnterest bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recognized at amortised cost.

(k) Classification as debt or equity

Bebt and-equity instmments are---ciassitied as e1tl1er fihanciaf lial5i1ities or as equity 111
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

Other financial liabilities, including bo1Towings, are initially measured at fair value,
net of transaction costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amo1tised cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense is recognised on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial I iability and of al locating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

The Corporation derecognizes financial liabilities when its obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expire.
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3. 

GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Summary of significant accounting policies-cont'd 

(I) Financial assets

Trade and other receivables are measured at amortised cost. Appropriate allowances 
for estimated unrecoverable amounts are recognized in profit and loss when there is 
objective evidence that the asset is impaired. The allowance recognized is based on 
management's evaluation of the collectability of the receivables. 

(m) Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a 
financial asset and allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective 
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts 
(including all fees on points paid or received that form an integral part of the 
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the 
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period. 

14 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Summary of significant accounting policies-cont'd 

(n) Impairment of t angible assets

At the end of each repo1ting period, the corporation reviews the carrying amounts of 
its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have 
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of 
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). 
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the 
corporation estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the 
asset belongs. 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. If 
the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, 
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment 
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at 
a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation 
decrease. 

(o) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the corporation has a present obligation (legal or 
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the corporation will be 
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of 
the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the 
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of each reporting 
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. 

(p) Business repo1ting divisions
A business reporting division is a component of an entity that is engaged in providing
products or services that are subject to risks and returns that are different from those
of other business divisions. A geographical division is engaged in providing products
or a service within a pa1ticular economic environment that are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of divisions operating in other economic
environments.
The corporation's operations are considered a single business unit with certain
activities segmented along geographical I ines viz Guyana and outside of Guyana.

(q) Deferred Income
This represents fertilizer subvention and grants from various agencies.This balance is 
written off to income when utilized.
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

3. Summary of significant accounting policies-cont'd
(r) Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each
reporting period. Financial assets are impaired when there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occuned after initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
investment have been impacted.

For financial assets carried at am011ised cost, the amount of the impairment is
the difference between the assets carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate.

(s) Derecognition of financial assets

The corporation derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire; or it transfers the financial asset
and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the corporation neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the
corporation recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the corporation retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the corporation continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

(t) Government Grants

Government grants received to compensate the Corporation's cost are recognised 
in the income statement in the period in which these costs are incuned. 

4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation unce11ainty 

In the application of the Corporation's accounting policies, which are described in 
note 3, the directors are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions 
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent 
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on 
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual 
results n1ay differ from these estimates. 

The estimates and .underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the 
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the 
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods ... 

16 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty - cont'd 

Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key 
sources of estimation uncertainty at the repo1iing date, that have a significant risk 
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
in the financial statements: 

i) Trade, other receivables and prepayments

On a regular basis, management reviews trade and other receivables to
assess impairment. Based on infom1ation available as to the likely
impairment in cash flows, decisions are taken in determining appropriate
provisions to be made for impairment.

Hf Useful lives of property, plant and equipment 

iii) 

Management reviews the estimated useful lives of prope1iy, plant and 
equipment at the end of each year to detem1ine whether the useful lives of 
property, plant and equipment should remain the same. 

Impairment of financial assets 

Management makes judgement at each reporting date to determine 
whether financial assets are impaired. Financial assets are impaired when 
the call"ying value is greater that the recoverable amount and there is 
objective evidence of impairment. The recoverable amount is the present 
value of the future cash flows. 
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l r \ GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

• I 
2012 2011 

I G$ G$ 

I ' I 

' ! 5 Turnover 8,583,289 6,402,473 

I � I 
Turnover represents goods sold to third parties. 

'. I 
6 Other Income 

I � I
Income Receivables - T/Phone 7,893 16,072 

Promotion 450,000 3,274,400 

Pack House Fees 1,985,850 1,480,900 

I '. ! 
Rental of building 970,000 480,000 

Miscellaneous 1,943,284 1,804,110 

Cash Overage 6,725 

: I Refund 586,981 

LI Sales of forms/documents 1,002,280 832,460 
Income from sale of tender 20,000 

l . l
Loss on Disposal (239,392) 

Freezer Truck Income 895,000 

Bank interest received 124,454 2,823,371 

I l
Read Building Fund 2,870,000 

6,510,486 14,823,902 

7 Government Grants 

I I Subsidy Capital 9,200,000 13,000,000 

Subsidy- Money subvention 91,295,964 80,231,976 

ALBA Fund 844,874 17,576,531 

I I Market Identification Study 1,551,621 

Competitive Asssessment Study 1,688,000 312,000 

.l 
Development of Market & Ent. 3,363,323 6,636,677 

l 
Fertilizer subvention 282,569 451,490,366 

Farmer's Assistance Programme 459,650 

�I 
El Nino 4,168,859 3,978,794 

I 
La Nina 478,325 5,861,300 

Buxton project 300,000 915,390 

I 
ASDU - MOU 945,487 

I
North and South Pakarima project 54,700 2,468,500 
HFLAC Project 694,000 

I 
Land Utilization Project 2,561,050 4,008,940 

I 
Douchfour Project - NOIA 4,163,932 2,000,000 
Linking Farmers Market 1,950,119 

122,597,336 589,885,611 

18 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 
NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

2012 

G$ 

Selling and distrubution 
Advertising 1,104,230 

National Exhibition 
Packaging Expenses 92,420 

Freight & Airways 72,687 

1,269,337 

Administrative expenses 
Linking Farmers to Market 2,490,025 

Logistical & HFLAC Expense 1,911,668 

Market identification study 3,221,351 

Land Utilization 2,480,721 

Alba expense 552,660 

Audit fees 918,024 

Buxton expenditure 131,130 

Cleaning & sanitation 543,912 

Hope/Douchfour Farmers Project 2,291,519 

Christmas celebration 1,359,874 

Stipend for price report 291._Q_OO 

Computer expenses 626,870 

Customs duties 33,888 

Depreciation 20,202,682 

Donations 170,536 

Electricity 2,980,850 

El Nino expense 2,085,623 

Employment cost 54,662,728 

Farmer's connection 
Fertilizer expenses 30,000 

General expenses 1,872,413 

General consultancy 
Hotel accomodation 
Balance carried forward 98,857,474 

19 
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2011 

G$ 

2,323,721 

738,760 

3,062,481 

4,196,632 

428,655 

915,390 

478,119 

232,318 

492,164 

514,185 

19,098,480 

877,710 

1,301,844 

4,028,958 

51,034,032 

180,000 

366,809,811 

1,322,797 

5,000 

407,560 

452,323,655 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

9 Administrative expenses - cont'd 2012 

Balance brought forward 

Hope Douchfour farmers 

Insurance 

La Nina expense 

Meals & entertainment 

MOA expenses 

Land utilization project 

Legal fees 

Market identification study 

Offiice expenses 

Photocopying 

Postage 

Promotional expenses 

Directors Fees 

Rates & taxes 

Relocation cost 

Rental 

Repairs & maintainance 

Security 

Staff gift voucher 

Stationery & printing 

Subscription 

Sundry 

Telephone 

Toshao council expenses 

Training - overseas 

Transportation & travel 

Fuel and lubricant 

Bad debts 

Spoilage 

10 Financial expenses

Bank charges 
Night deposit bags 
With holding tax 

20 

G$ 

98,857,474 

901,438 

808,007 

75,400 

341,564 

996,016 

391,000 

515,454 

3,000,000 

3,398,586 

4,692,205 

1,051,165 

26,160 

1,502,521 

47,620 

404,208 

3,332,805 

196,000 

120,537,623 

85,949 
83,520 

275,935 

445,404 

2011 

G$ 

452,323,655 

2,000,000 

669,876 

6,628,404 

96,860 

1,076,174 

1,710,950 

75,400 

27,840 

13,944 

60,407 

1,000 

2,772,077 

627,000 

380,200 

414,760 

3,000,000 

3,464,696 

3,905,504 

1,069,500 

1,221,611 

108,640 

274,357 

1,233,738 

538,513 

629,196 

3,681,868 

3,888,143 

38,479 

86,880 

492,019,672 

177,937 
83,520 

564,674 

826,131 

1 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 
11 fixed assets 

Freehold Machine[Y 
land and and Furniture & Motor Construction Total 
buildings egui12ment fittings vehicles work in 

G$ G$ I 
G$ G$ 12rogress G$ 

(a) Cost G$ 

At 1 January 2012 I 21,779,237 86,146,174 13656009 44,039,460 19,427,577 165,620,880 
Additions 7,915,964 5,771,797 14,785,432 13,687,761 
Transfer 34,213,009 (34,213,009) 34,213,009 

At 31 December 2012 �992,246 94,062,138 19,427,806 44,039,460 _ 21_3,521 _,§§_0 

Depreciation
I 

At 1 January 2012 I 2,358,702 18,688,474 8,007,855 16,885,556 45,940,587 
Charge for the year 719,375 8,465,395 1,392,053 9,626,259 - 20,203,082

At 31 December 2012 3,078,077 27,153,869 9,399,908 26,511,815 66,143,669

Net book values: I 

At 31 December 2012 52,914,169 66,908,269 10,027,898 17,527,645 147,377,981 

At 31 December 2011 19,420,535 67,457,700 5,648,154 27,153,904 19,427,577 139,107,870 

(a) Included in land and building is an amount of $60,729 representing the value of a building situated on land owned by the Government of Guyana.

21 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

2012 
G$ 

Finished goods 2,767,957 

All inventories are expected to be recovered within 12 months. 

13 Debtors and prepayments 
2012 
G$ 

Trade debtors 86,995,411 
Other debtors 384,000 

87,379,411 

14 Cash at bank 233,867,828 

The interest rates on fixed deposit and short term 
deposit accounts are at varing rates from 2% to 4.5% 
(2011 - 4.5%) 

15 Government of Guyana 25,102,348 

22 

2011 
G$ 
341,000 

2011 
G$ 

86,994,711 
586,728 

87,581,439 

251,520,883 

25,102,348 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

2012 
G$ 

2011 
G$ 

16 Deferred income 

17 

18 

Opening balance 
Received during the year 
Expended du ring the year 

225,335,179 
19,848,137 

(21,623,047) 

626,604,304 
95,384,510 

(496,653,635) 

Closing balance 223,560,269 

This represents: 
(i) The balance of Fertiliser Subvention received on September 18,2008, to be used for 

purchasing of fertiliser for resale to farmers at a subsidised cost.

(II) Unutilised funds from the following grants: Farmers' Assistance Programme,ALBA Funds,
EL Nino Funds,Buxton Project, ASDU-MOU Funds.Market Identification Study.Development

of Market and Enterprise Information System.Competitive Assessment Study.North and 
South Pakaraima Project,Toshao's Council and Land Utilisation Project. 

2012 
G$ 

Creditors and accruals 

Sundry creditors 

Accruals 3,064,445 

3,064,445 

Republic Bank (Guyana) Limited 

Bank Overdraft (unsecured) 

Rate of interest 

225,335,179 

2011 
G$ 

13,475,225 

1,465,728 

14,940,953 

1,923,841 

18.25 

19 Related party transactions 

Parties are considerd to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party 
or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operating decisions. 

Key Management personnel 
The Corporation's 5 (2011 - 5) key mamagement personnel comprises its General Manager and 

Executive Managers.The remuneration paid during the year to Executive Managers is included 
in administrative expenses.During the year remuneration paid to these individuals amounted to 
$17,721,841 (2011 -$16,632,048) 

Directors' fees paid during the year: 

P. Cheong 
P.R. Roopnarine
R. Sukhai 
V. De Silva 
B. Dwarka
D. Doodnauth 
L. Chin 
B. Sears 
J. McKenzie 
G. Khan 
P. Persaud 
J. Bhoejedat 
J. David 
D. Dhanraj
T. David
R. Jagarnauth 
M. Nadir 
0. Homenauth

A. Ameerally 
M. Qualander 
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2012 

G$ 

35,000 
28,000 
28,000 
28,000 
16,000 
28,000 
16,000 
28,000 
16,000 
16,000 
16,000 
20,000 
16,000 
28,000 
12,000 
12,000 
12,000 
12,000 

12,000 
12,000 

391,000 

2011 

G$ 

55,000 
44,000 
44,000 
44,000 
44,000 
44,000 
44,000 
44,000 
44,000 
44,000 
44,000 
44,000 
44,000 
44,000 

627,000 

I 

I 

• 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Analysis of financial assets and liabilities by measurement basis 

2012 

Assets 

Debtors and prepayments. 

Cash on hand and at bank 

Liabilities 

Creditors and accruals 

2011 

Assets 

Debtors and prepayments 

Cash on hand and at bank 

Liabilities 

Creditors and accruals 

Bank overdraft 

24 

Loans and 
receivable 

G$ 

87,379,411 

87,379,411 

87,581,439 

87,581,439 

Other 
Financial assets 
and liabilities at 
amortised cost 

G$ 

233,867,828 

233,867,828 

3,064,445 

251,520,883 

251,520,883 

14,940,953 

1,923,841 
16,864,794 

Total 
G$ 

87,379,411 

233,867,828 

321,247,239 

3,064,445 

87,581,439 

251,520,883 

339,102,322 

14,940,953 

1,923,841 
16,864,794 
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21 Financial risk management 

Financial risk management objectives 

GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

The corporation's management monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the 
corporation through internal risk reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These 
risks include market risk {currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. 

The corporation seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by the use of techniques that are governed by 
management's policies on foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and credit risk which are approved by the board 
of directors. 
The corporation's management reports monthly to the board of directors on matters relating to risk and 
management of risk. 

{a) Market risk 

The corporation's activities expose it to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates 
and interest rates. The corporation uses interest rate sensitivity and exposure limits to financial instruments to manage 
its exposure to interest rate and foreign currency risk. There has been no change in the corporation's exposure to 
market risks or the manner in which it manages these risks. 

{i) interest rate risk 

Interest rate sensitivity analysis. 

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates 
for all financial instruments at the end of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming 
the amounts of the financial instruments at the end of the reporting period were in existence 
throughout the whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest 
rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment of the 
reasonable possible change in interest rates. 

if interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all the other variables were held constant, the Corporation's 
profit for the year would increase/decrease by G$1, 169,339 (2011: G$1,257,604). This is mainly 
attributable to the Corporation's exposure to interest rates on its balances at banks . 

25 
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21 Financial risk management 
(a) Market risk-cont'd
(i) Interest rate risk-cont'd

GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market 
interest rates. The corporation is exposed to various risks that are associated with the effects 

in interest rates. This impacts directly on its cash flows. 

The corporation's management continually monitors and manages these risks through the use of 
appropriate tools and implements relevaant strategies to hedge against any adverse effects. 

Interest risk tables 

Average Maturing 

interest rate 2012 

Non-interest 

1 year bearing 

G$ G$ 

Assets 

Debtors and prepayments 87,379,411 

Cash at bank 2 - 4.5 233,867,828 

233,867,828 87,379,411 

Liabilities 

Creditors and accruals 3,064,445 

Interest sensitivity gap 233,867,828 

Maturing 

31-12-2011

Within Non-interest

1 year bearing 

G$ G$ 

Assets 

Debtors and prepayments 87,581,439 

Cash at bank 4.50 251,520,883 

251,520,883 87,581,439 

Liabilities 

Creditors and accruals 14,940,953 

Bank Overdraft 18.25 1,923,841 

1,923,841 14,940,953 

Interest sensitivity gap 249,597,042 

26 

Total 

G$ 

87,379,411 

233,867,828 

321,247,239 

3,064,445 

Total 

G$ 

87,581,439 

251,520,883 

339,102,322 

14,940,953 

1,923,841 

16,864,794 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

21 Financial risk management • cont'd 

(a) Market risk-cont'd 

(II) Currency risk 

The Corporation's exposure to the effects ot fluctuations In foreign currency exchange rates is 
minimal.At the end ot the financial year there were no assets or liabilities denominated In 
1ore1gn currencies. 

(Iii) Price risk 

Price risk Is the risk that the value of financial Instruments will fluctuate as a result of changes In market 
prices whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual security of its issuer or 
factors affecting all secvrities traded In the market. Management continually identifies the risk and 
diversifies the portfolio In order to minimize the risk. 

The corporation is not significantly exposed to other price risks arising from equity investmenls. 
(b) liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the corporation will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet Its 
commitments associated with payables. 
The corporation manages its liquidity risk by maintaining an appropriate level of resources in 
liquid or near liquid form. 
The following table shows the distribution of assets and liabllities by maturity: 

Assets 

Deblors and prepayments 

Cash on hand and at bank 

Llabilltles 

Creditors and accruals 

Net assets 

Assets 

Debtors and prepayments 

Cash on hand and at bank 

Llab/llt/es 

Creditors and accruals 

Bank Overdraft (Unsecured) 

Net assets 

Maturing 

Within 1 year 
On Demand Due 3 -12 mths 

G$ G$ 

87,379,411 

233,867,828 

87,379,411 233,867,B2B 

3,064,445 

87,379,411 230,803,383 

Maturing 
2011 

Within 1 year 
On Demand Due 3- 12 mtb� 

GS G$ 

87,581,439 

251,520,883 

87,581,439 251,520,883 

14,940,953 

1,923,841 

1,923,841 14,940,953 

85,657,598 236,579,930 

27 

G$ 

87,379,411 

233,867,828 

321,247,239 

3,064,445 

318,182,794 

G$ 

87,581,439 

251,520,883 

339,102,322 

14,940,953 

. 1,923,841 

16 864,794 

322.�37,528 

I 

I 



I. ; i
I � I
[-! 

l:.i 

IJ 

I r I 

l : J

I 1-1

Id

I LI

tU

I :. !

I ~ 

I 

J 

21 

GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Financial risk management - cont'd 

(c) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that financial loss arises from failure of a customer to meet its obligations under a

contract, it arises in the case of the corporation, principally from debtors and cash resources holdings.

Cash and bank includes balances held at financial institutions. These banks have been assessed by the Directors
as being credit worthly, with very strong capacity to meet their obligations as they fall due.

The corporation's exposure to credit risk is continuously monitored to ensure that amounts are recovered.
Management implicitly monitors the analysis of credit risk portfolio.
The corporation does not have any significant credit risk exposure lo any single counterparty or any group of

counterparties having similar characteristics.

Maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of any collateral and other credit enhancements.

The table below shows the Corporation's maximum exposure to credit risk.

2012 2011 

Gross maximum exposure: G$ G$ 

Debtors (i) 87,379,411 87,581,439 

Cash resources at banks (ii) 233,867,828 251,520,883 

Total credit risk exposure 321,247,239 339,102,322 

Where financial instruments are recorded at fair value the amounts shown above represents the current credit risk 

exposure but not the maximum risk exposure that could arise in the future as a result of changes in values. 

(i) This represent trade debtors which are collectible

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents include balances held with commercial banks.These banks have been
assessed by the corporation as being credit worthy ,with very strong capacity to meet their
obligations as they fall due.

Concentration of risk is managed by clienUcounterparty, by geographical region and by industry sector 
as detailed in the following: 

Geographical sectors 

The corporation's maximum credit exposure, after taking account of credit loss provisions established 

can be analysed by the following geographical sectors based on the country of domicile of counterparties: 

2012 2011 

G$ G$ 

Guyana 877,379,411 87,581,439 

The above balances are classified as follows:. 

28 
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21 Financial risk management- cont'd 

(c) Credit risk-cont'd

Current 

22 Capital risk management 

2012 
G$ 

87,379,411 

The corporation manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while 
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. 

The corporation's overall strategy remains unchanged from 2011. 

The capital structure of the corporation consists of cash equivalents and equity attributable to the 
Government of Guyana, comprising capital, reserves and retained earnings. 

29 

2011 
G$ 

87,581,439 
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23 Fair value of financial instruments 

GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Fair values have been determined as follows: 

2012 
Car!:}'.ing value Fair value 

Assets G$ G$ 

Debtors and prepayments 87,379,411 87,379,411 

Cash at bank 233,867,828 233,867,828 

321,247,239 321,247,239 

Liabilities 

Creditors and accruals 3,064,445 3,064,445 

Bank overdraft 

3,064,445 3,064,445 

Valuation techniques and assumptions applied for the purposes of measuring fair value: 

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities were determined as follows: 

2011 
Car!:}'.ing value Fair value 

G$ G$ 

87,581,439 87,581,439 

251,520,883 251,520,883 

339,102,322 339,102,322 

14,940,953 14,940,953 

1,923,841 1,923,841 

16,864,794 16,864,794 

I :.I (a) Debtors are net of specific and other provisions for impairment. The fair value of debtors is based on expected realisation of
outstanding balances taking into account the corporation's history with respect to delinquencies. 

l I (b) Financial instruments where the carrying amounts are equal to fair value:- Due to the short maturity, the carrying amounts of
certain financial instruments are assumed to approximate their fair value. These includes cash, debtors and prepayment
and creditors and accruals.
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24 Pending litigation 

There is no pending litigation. 
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273/PC: 46/2/2014 

Mr. Nizam Hassan 
General Manager 
Guyana Marketing Corporation 
Robb & Alexander Streets 
Georgetown. 

Dear Mr. Hassan, 

29 September 2014 

RE: AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 
GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 

Please find attached thirteen (13) copies of the audited financial statements, together with the 
report of the Auditor General, thereon. 

Should you need any further explanation, please do not hesitate to contact us. 

With best regards. 

Yours sincerely, 
��\1' OF�J6')_

(� >e--A /' 4'-\ � � I L��tct;J t:1 ·--'\'. 

. * 
* L.Ramkoomar _ /'-,,�jGtc,�N�� for Aua1lor General 
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29 September 2014 

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL 
TO THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

THE GUYANA MARXETING CORPORATION 
ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 

Chartered Accountants TSD Lal and Company have audited on my behalf the financial statements 
of the Guyana Marketing Corporation for the year ended 31 December 2013, as set out on pages 2 
to 30. The audit was conducted in accordance with the Audit Act 2004. 

1\1anage111enl 's responsibility.for the.financial statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 

in accordance \•Vith International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary lo enable the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's re.sponsibility 

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I 
conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing issued by the 
International Federation of Accountants (IF AC), and those of the International Organisation of 
Supreme Audit Institutions (INTOSAI). Those standards require that I comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
:financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the :financial 
statements, whether clue to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the pmpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An 
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of lhe financial statements. 

II 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 



I I

I l-
1 J. 

I l 
11 

11 

As required by the Audit Act 2004, I have reviewed the audit plan and procedures, working 
papers, report and opinion of the Chartered Accountants. I have also had detailed discussions 
with the Chartered Accountants on all matters of significance to the audit and had carried out 
additional examinations, as necessary, in arriving at my opinion. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for my audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the 
financial position of the Guyana Marketing Corporation as at 31 December 2013 and of its 
financial performance and cash flo-ws for the year then ended in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

The financial statements comply with the requirements of the Public Corporation Ordinance. 

AUDIT OFFICE 
63 HIGH STREET 
KINGSTON 
GEORGETOWN 
GUYANA 
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REPORT OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS TSD LAL & CO 

TO THE AUDITOR GENERAL 

ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF 

GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 20 I 3 

Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Guyana Marketing Corporation which comprise 
the statement of financial position as at 3 I December 2013 and the statement of income, statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory notes as set out on pages 2 to 30. 

Directors'/Ma11age111e11t's Responsibility for the Fi11a11cia/ Stateme11ts 
The Directors/ Management are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes: 
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and 
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the 
circumstances. 

Auditors' Respo11siblllty 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply 
with_ethica!__J·equir_ements_arui_plan aruLperfomLthe audit to----0.btain-reasonahl.e- assur-<Ulce---Whether--tl1-e­
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgement, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

Opi11io11 
In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects of the financial 
position of Guyana Marketing Corporation as at 31 December 2013 and of its financial performance and its 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Repotting Standards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
The financial statements comply with the requirements of the Public Corporation Ordinance . 

. ..-� � Uv\. \ � 
TSO LAL&CO. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Date: June 26, 2014 

77B rickdam 
Stabroek, Georgetown 
Guyana 
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Turnover 

Cost of sales 

Gross profit 

Other income 

Government grant 

Selling and distribution 

Administrative expenses 

Profit before interest 

Financial expenses 

Profit for the year 

GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

STATEMENT OF INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2013 

Notes 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

2013 

G$ 

35,736,099 

29,902,180 

5,833,919 

11,052,904 

145,805,757 

162,692,580 

3,666,174 

152,058,596 

6,967,810 

707,797 

6,260,013 

"The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements" 

2 

2012 

G$ 

8,583,289 

7,021,503 

1,561,786 

6,510,486 

122,597,336 

130,669,608 

1,269,337 

120,537,623 

8,862,648 

445,404 

8,417,244 
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Balance at 1 January 2012 

Profit for the year 

Balance at 31 December,2012 

Profit for the year 

GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 

Government of 
Guyana 

G$ 

25,102,348 

25,102,348 

Retained 
earnings 

G$ 

211,248,871 

8,417,244 

219,666,115 

6,260,013 

Balance at 31 December 2013 25,102,348 225,926,128 

"The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements". 

3 

I 

Total 

G$ 

236,351,219 

8,417,244 

244,768,463 

6,260,013 

251,028,476 
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ASSETS 

Non current assets 

Property,plant and equipment 

Current assets 

Stocks 
Debtors and prepayments 
Cash at bank 

TOT AL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Capital and reserves 

Government of Guyana 
Retained earnings 

Non current liability 

Deferred income 
Current liabilities 

Creditors and accruals 

GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 

11 

12 
13 
14 

15 

16 

17 

2013 
G$ 

156,102,360 

3,803,522 
87,359,701 

236,235,459 

327,398,682 

483,501,042 

25,102,348 
225,926,128 
251,028,476 

230,165,951 

2,306,615 

2,306,615 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 483,501,042 

"These financial statem

7

s were approved by the Board of Directors on JVM2/,,;,-0fl/' 

On beh�lf of the Board�
rec

l
or 

2012 
G$ 

147,377,981 

2,767,957 
87,379,411 

233,867,828 

324,015,196 

471,393,177 

25,102,348 
219,666,115 
244,768,463 

223,560,269 

3,064,445 

3,064,445 

471,393,177 

..
. 
... .. ::;h� a��::ot�s f�rm

0

��

e

::gral part of these financial statements"
. 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 

Operating activities 
Profit for the year 

Adjustments for: 
Loss on disposal of asset 
Depreciation 

Operating profit before working capital changes 

Increase in stocks 
Decrease in debtors and prepayments 
Decrease in creditors and accruals 
(Decrease)/increase in deferred income 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Investing activities 

Purchase of fixed assets 

Net cash used In investing activities 

Net increase/( decrease )in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 

Consisting: 
Cash on hand and bank 

2013 
G$ 

6,260,013 

10,408 
24,267,870 

30,538,291 

(1,035,565) 
19,710 

(757,830) 
6,605,682 

35,370,288 

(33,002,657) 

(33,002,657) 

2,367,631 

233,867,828 

236,235,459 

236,235,459 

"The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements". 

5 

G$ 

8,417,244 

20,203,082 

28,620,326 

(2,426,957) 
202,028 

(11,875,508) 
(1,774,910) 

12,744,979 

(28,473,193} 

(28,473,193) 

(15,728,214) 

249,597,042 

233,868,828 

233,867,828 

I 

r 



I I I _l 

I J 

j 

GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

1. Incorporation and activities. .
The Corporation was incorporated in Guyana under Order 97. of 1963, made under the
Public Corporation Ordinance and is involved in the facilitation for exportation of non -
traditional fresh and processed agricultural products.

2. New and revised standards and interpretations

Effect for the current year end 

New and Amended Standards 

IFRS IO Consolidated Financial Statements 
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements 
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 
IAS 19 Amendments to IAS 19 - Employee Benefits 
IAS 27(2011) Separate Financial Statements 
IAS 28(2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 
IAS 1(2011) Amendments to IAS 1 - Presentation of 
Other Comprehensive Income 
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments - Offsetting Financial Assets and 
Financial Liabilities 
IFRS 1 First-time Adoption oflnternational Financial 
Reporting Standards (Government loans) 
IFRS I Amendments as part of improvements to IFRSs 2011 
IAS I Amendments as part of improvements to IFRSs 2011 
IAS 16 Amendments as part of improvements to IFRSs 2011 
IAS 32 Amendments as part of improvements to IFRSs 2011 
IAS 34 Amendments as part of improvements to IFRSs 2011 
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 
(Transitional arrangements) 
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements (Transitional arrangements) 
IFRS 12 Disclosure oflnterests in Other Entities 
(Transitional arrangements) 

New interpretation 

IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a 
Surface Mine 

6 

Effective for annual 
periods beginning 

on or after 

1 January 2013 
1 January 2013 
1 January 2013 
1 January 2013 
1 January 2013 
1 January 2013 
1 January 2013 

1 July 2012 

1 January 2013 

1 January 2013 
1 January 2013 
I January 2013 
1 January 2013 
1 January 2013 
1 January 2013 

1 January 2013 
1 January 2013 

1 January 2013 

1 January 2013 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

2. New and revised standards and interpretations - cont'd

Available for early adoption for the current year end 

New and Amended Standards 

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures 
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification and 

Measurement 
IFRS 9 Additions for Financial Liability Accounting 
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements (Exemptions) 
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities (Exemptions) 
IAS 19 Employee Benefits 
TAS 27 Separate Financial S.tatements�Exempti-ons) 
IAS 32 Financial Instruments - Offsetting Financial Assets and 

Financial Liabilities 
IAS 36 Impairment of Assets 
TAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement 

New interpretation 
IFRTC 21 Levies 

The Company has not opted for early adoption. 

Effective for 
annual 
periods 
beginning 

on or after 

1 January 2017 

1 January 2017 
1 January2017 
1 January 2014 
1 January 2014 
1 July 2014 
-l J.anuary-2-01-4--

1 January 2014 
I January 2014 
I January 2014 

I January 2014 

The standards and amendments that are expected to have a material impact on the 
Company's accounting policies when adopted are explained below. 

IFRS 7 
This standard is closely linked to IFRS 9. In December 2011, the IASB issued an 
amendment which modifies the relief from restating comparative periods and the 
associated disclosures. 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

New and revised standards and interpretations - cont'd 

IFRS 9 
IFRS 9 was issued in November 2009 and was initially required to be applied 
from 1 January 2013. However, new requirements were added in November 2010 
and the revised date for adoption was set for 1 January 2015. However, in 
November 2013, consequential amendments were issued which removed the 
mandatory effective date. At a meeting the IASB tentatively decided that the 
mandatory effective date will be no earlier than annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 201 7. 
This standard specifies how an entity should classify and measure its financial 
assets. 
The application of IFRS 9 may have significant impact on amounts reported in 
respect of the Company's financial assets and financial liabilities However, it is 
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed 
review has been completed. 
When adopted, the standard will be applied retrospectively in accordance with 
IAS 8 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

New and revised standards and interpretations - cont'd 

IAS 32 
Amends the disclosure requirements in IFRS 7 Financial Instruments, to require 
information about all recognised financial instruments that are set off. 
The amendments also require disclosure of information about recognised financial 
instruments subject to enforceable master netting arrangements. 
The directors do not anticipate that the application of these amendments to IAS 32 
and IFRS 7 will have a significant impact on the Company's financial statements 
as the Company does not have any financial assets and financial liabilities that 
qualify for offset. 

IAS 36 
This amendment reduces the circumstances in which the recoverable amount of 
assets or cash-generating units is required to be disclosed. It clarifies the 
disclosures required and introduces an explicit requirement to disclose the 
discount rate used in determining impairment or reversals where recoverable 

�am01.llrt1.·s-determined-usirrg-a-present-vah1e-technique-. -
The directors anticipate that the application of this amendment may have a 
significant impact on amounts repo1ied in respect of the Company's financial 
assets and financial liabilities. However it is not practicable to provide a 
reasonable estimate of the effect until a detailed review has been completed. 
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. GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

New and revised standards and interpretations - cont'd 

IAS 39 
This amendment relates to Hedge accounting. 
The directors anticipate that this amendment will have no effect on the 
Company's financial statements as the Company does not engage in such 
activities. 

IFRIC 21 
This provides guidance on when to recognise a liability for a levy imposed by a 
government 
The directors anticipate that this interpretation will have no effect on the 
Company's financial statements as the Company is not subject to this. 

Summary of significant accounting policies 

(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards . 

(b) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost 
convention.The principal accounting policies are set out below . 

10 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE _ACCOUNTS 

Summary of significant accounting policies-cont'd 

( c) Revenue and expense recognition

Revenue is recognized in the statement of income on an accrual basis at the 
fair value of the consideration received. 

Expenses are recognized on an accruals basis. 

( d) Taxation

The Corporation is exempt from corporation and property taxes. 

Transactions in currencies other than Guyana dollars are recorded at the rates 
of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. 
At the end of each reporting period, monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated to Guyana dollars at the 
Cambia rates prevailing on that date or at rates agreed by the Bank of Guyana. 
Non-monetary assets and liabilities carried at fair value that are denominated 
in foreign currencies are retranslated at rates prevailing on the date when the 
fair value was determined. Gains or losses arising on retranslation are included in 
the profit or loss for the period, except for exchange differences arising on non­
monetary assets and liabilities where changes in fair value are recognized in the 
statement of changes in equity. 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Sumn_1ary of significant accounting policies-cont'd 

(t) Fixed assets and depreciation

Freehold land and buildings held for use in the supply of goods and services or for
administrative purposes are stated in the statement of financial position at their
revalued amounts. Revalued amounts are taken as the fair value at the date of
revaluation less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment loss.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such land and buildings is
credited to capital reserve.

Depreciation on revalued buildings is charged to profit or loss. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of a revalued land or buildings, the attributable revaluation surplus
remaining in the capital reserve is transferred to the statement of comprehensive
income.

Motor vehicles and machinery and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any recognised impairment loss.
No depreciation is provided on freehold land and construction work-in-progress.
Depreciation of other fixed assets is calculated on the straight line method at rates
sufficient to write off the cost or valuation of these assets to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

Building 
Motor vehicle 
Machinery and equipment 
Furniture and Fittings 

2% 
25 % 
10% 
12.50% 

Assets acquired during the year are depreciated from the date of acquisition. 

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever there is objective evidence to indicate 
that the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 
The excess of the carrying amount above the recoverable amount is written off to the 
profit or loss. 

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of fixed assets is 
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of 
the asset and is recognized in profit or loss. 

(g) Stocks

Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value based on the first-in­
first-out method. Net realizable value is the selling price in the normal course of
business less selling expenses.

12 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Summary of significant accounting policies-cont'd 

(b) Financial liabilities

The Corporation's financial liabilities are classified as other financial liabilities.

(i) Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash and short term funds are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash
commitments rather than investment or other purposes.

These are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, with maturity dates of three
(3) months or less.

U) Bank borrowings

Interest bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recognized at amortised cost.

(k) Classification as debt or equity

-------Uebt ancl equtfy mstruments are class1fieaaseifher financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value,
net of transaction costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense is recognised on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the ammiised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected ljfe of the financial liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

The Corporation derecognizes financial liabilities when its obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expire.
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Summary of significant accounting policies-cont'd 

(I) Financial assets

Trade and other receivables are measured at amortised cost. Appropriate allowances 
for estimated unrecoverable amounts are recognized in profit and loss when there is 
objective evidence that the asset is impaired. The allowance recognized is based on 
management's evaluation of the collectability of the receivables. 

(m) Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a 
financial asset and allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective 
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts 
(including all fees on points paid or received that form an integral part of the 
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the 
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period. 

14 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Summary of significant accounting policies-cont'd 

(n) Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the corporation reviews the carrying amounts of 
its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have 
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of 
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). 
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the 
corporation estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the 
asset belongs. 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. If 
the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, 
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment 
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at 
a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation 
decrease. 

( o) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the corporation has a present obligation (legal or 
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the corporation will be 
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of 
the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the 
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of each reporting 
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. 

(p) Business reporting divisions
A business reporting division is a component of an entity that is engaged in providing
products or services that are subject to risks and returns that are different from those
of other business divisions. A geographical division is engaged in providing products
or a service within a particular economic environment that are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of divisions operating in other economic
environments.
The corporation's operations are considered a single business unit with certain
activities segmented along geographical lines viz Guyana and outside of Guyana.

(q) Deferred Income
This represents fertilizer subvention and grants from various agencies.This balance is 
written off to income when utilized.

15 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Summary of significant accounting policies-cont'd 
(r) Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each 
reporting period. Financial assets are impaired when there is objective 
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after initial 
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the 
investment have been impacted. 

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment is 
the difference between the assets carrying amount and the present value of the 
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset's original 
effective interest rate. 

(s) Derecognition of financial assets

The corporation derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual 
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire; or it transfers the financial asset 
and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another 
entity. If the corporation neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks 
and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the 
corporation recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated 
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the corporation retains 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial 
asset, the corporation continues to recognise the financial asset and also 
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. 

(t) Government Grants

Government grants received to compensate the Corporation's cost are recognised 
in the income statement in the period in which these costs are incuned. 

4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty 

In the application of the Corporation's accounting policies, which are described in 
note 3, the directors are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions 
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent 
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on 
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual 
results may differ from these estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the 
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the 
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

16 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty - cont'd 

Key sources of estimation unce11ainty 

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key 
somces of estimation unce11ainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk 
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
in the financial statements: 

i) 

ii) 

iii) 

Trade, other receivables and prepayments 

On a regular basis, management reviews trade and other receivabies to 
assess impairment. Based on information available as to the likely 
impairment in cash flows, decisions are taken in determining appropriate 
provisions to be made for impairment. 

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment 

Management reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and 
equipment at the end of each year to determine whether the useful lives of 
property, plant and equipment should remain the same. 

Impairment of financial assets 

Management makes judgement at each rep01ting date to determine 
whether financial assets are impaired. Financial assets are impaired when 
the carrying value is greater that the recoverable amount and there is 
objective evidence of impaitment. The recoverable amount is the present 
value of the future cash flows. 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPOf1ATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

201"3 

G$ 

Turnover 35,736,099 

Turnover represents goods sold to third parties. 

Other Income 

Income Receivables - T/Phone 

Promotion 

Pack House Fees 1,937,653 

Rental of building 720,000 

Miscellaneous 5,895,173 

Cash Overage 4,112 

Sales of forms/documents 926,500 
Income from sale of tender 22,000 

Bank interest received 1,547,466 

11,052,904 

Government Grants 

Subsidy Capital 11,500,000 

Subsidy- Money subvention 105, 111,439 

ALBA Fund 

Market Identification Study 2,048,379 

Competitive Asssessment Study 

Development of Market & Ent. 

Fertilizer subvention 

ASDU - Generator 1,822,475 

El Nino 961,880 

La Nina 

Buxton project 90,000 

Caribbean week of agriculture 16,016,345 

North and South Pakarima project 45,000 
HFLAC Project 152,161 
Land Utilization Project 
Douchfour Project - NOIA 208,197 
Linking Farmers Market 7,849,881 

145,805,757 

18 

2012 

G$ 

8,583,289 

7,893 

450,000 

1,985,850 

970,000 

1,943,284 

6,725 

1,002,280 
20,000 

124,454 

6,510,486 

9,200,000 

91,295,964 

844,874 

1,551,621 

1,688,000 

3,363,323 

282,569 

4,168,859 

478,325 

300,000 

54,700 
694,000 

2,561,050 
4,163,932 
1,950,119 

122,597,336 
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8 Selling and distrubution 
'. I Advertising 
, I Spoilage 

Packaging Expenses 
r / Freight & Airways 
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, .. 9 Administrative expenses 

j 
Linking Farmers to Market 

' Logistical & HFLAC Expense
r- ) 

Market identification study 

: l 
Land Utilization 
Alba expense 
Audit fees 
Buxton expenditure 
Cleaning & sanitation 
Hope/Douchfour Farmers Project

' 1 Christmas celebration I 
; I Stipend tor price reporr-

Computer expenses 
. ) Customs duties 
. l Depreciation 

Donations 

I 
Electricity 
El Nino expense 
Employment cost 

I Caribbean week of agriculture 

J Loss on disposal 
Farmer's connection 

j 
Fertilizer expenses 
General expenses 
General consultancy 

! 
Hotel accomodation 

··1 Balance carried forward 

I 

GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION r 
NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

2013 2012 
G$ G$ 

3,393,830 1,104,230 
29,279 

221,600 92,420 
21,465 72,687 

3,666,174 1,269,337 

2,576,080 2,490,025 
1,570,293 1,911,668 

3,221,351 
2,480,721 

552,660 
2,250,945 918,024 

427,678 131,130 
1,111,301 543,912

2,291,519
591,564 1,359,874 
799,740 291,000 
448,890 626,870 
23,343 33,888 

24,267,870 20,202,682 
122,428 170,536 

9,037,021 2,980,850 
913,360 2,085,623 

56,050,456 54,662,728 
17,692,795 

10,408 
35,000 

30,000 
1,168,033 1,872,413 
1,532,000 

598,400 
121,227,605 98,857,474 

. I 
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GUYANA MARKETING GORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

- ·9 Administrative expenses - cont'd 2013 

Balance brought forward 

Insurance 

Meals & entertainment 

Legal fees 

Offiice expenses 
Promotional expenses 
Directors Fees 
Rates & taxes 
Rental 
Repairs & maintainance 
Security 
Stationery & printing 
Subscription 
Sundry 
Telephone 
Training 
Transportation & travel 
Fuel and lubricant 
Spoilage 

10 Financial expenses 

Bank charges 
Night deposit bags 
With holding tax 

20 

G$ 

121,227,605 

1,125,697 

1,193,001 

127,600 

2,304,944 
318,000 
313,627 

3,000,000 
5,160,201 
7,211,894 
1,883,080 

569,960 
593,049 

1,563,247 
234,400 

2,057,052 
3,175,239 

152,058,596 

233,354 
83,520 

390,923 

707,797 

2012 
G$ 

98,857,474 

901,438 

808,007 

75,400 

341,564 
996,016 
391,000 
515,454 

3,000,000 
3,398,586 
4,692,205 
1,051,165 

26,160 

1,502,521 
47,620 

404,208 
3,332,805 

196,000 

120,537,623 

85,949 
83,520 

275,935 

445,404 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORA110N 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 
11 Fixed assets 

Freehold Machine[Y 
land and and Furiture & Motor Total 
buildings equiQment 

� 
vehicles 

G$ G$ $ G$ G$ 
(a) Cost

At 1 January 2013 55,992,246 94,062,138 19427806 44,039,460 213,521,650 
Additions - 24,962,437 l540.220 6,500,000 33,002,657 
Disposal - (502,900) 1543,535) - (1,046,435) 

At 31 December 2013 55,992,246 118,521,675 2f 24,491 50,539,460 245,477,872 

Depreciation 
At 1 January 2013 3,078,077 27,153,869 9,399,908 26,511,815 66,143,669 
Charge for the year 1,050,685 10,842,923 1,974,971 10,399,291 24,267,870 
Disposal - (692,492) (343,535) (1,036,027) 

At 31 December 2013 4,128,762 37,304,300 11,031,344 36,911,106 89,375,512 

Net book values: 

At 31 December 2013 51,863,484 81,217,375 9"393, 147 13,628,354 156,102,360 

At 31 December 2012 52,914,169 66,908,269 1d.027.898 17,527,645 147,377,981 

(a) Included in land and building is an amount of $60,729 representing the vc1lue of a building situated on land owned by the Government of Guyana.

21 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

12 Stocks 

Finished goods 

All inventories are expected to be recovered within 12 months. 

13 Debtors and prepayments 

Trade debtors 
Guyana Sugar Corporation 
Other debtors 

14 Cash at bank 

NBIC Current account 
NBIC - GPO account 
NBIC - CPC account 
NBIC - Savings account 
Scotia Bank Fertiliser account 
Scotia Bank Fertiliser savings account 

The interest rates on fixed deposit and short term 
deposit accounts are at varing rates from 2% to 4.5% 
(2012 - 4.5%) 

15 Government of Guyana 

22 

2013 
G$ 

3,803,522 

2013 
G$ 
112,990 

86,994,711 
252,000 

87,359,701 

11,187,639 
5,722,291 

14,172,390 
89,825,604 

(52,760) 
115,380,295 

236,235,459 

25,102,348 

2012 
G$ 

2,767,957 

2012 
G$ 

700 
86,994,711 

384,000 

87,379,411 

835,928 
18,597,892 
10,506,742 
89,506,826 

(52,760) 
114,473,200 

233,867,828 

25,102,348 
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16 Deferred income 

Opening balance 
Received during the year 
Expended during the year 

Closing balance 

This represents: 

GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

W1 
G$ 

223,560,269 
35,800,000 

(29,194,318) 

230,165,951 

(i) The balance of Fertiliser Subvention received on September 18,2008, lo be used for 
purchasing of fertiliser for resale to farmers at a subsidised cost. 

(II) Unutilised funds from the following grants: Farmers' Assistance Programme.ALBA Funds, 
EL Nino Funds.Buxton Project, ASDU-MOU Funds.Market Identification Study,Development

of Market and Enterprise Information System.Competitive Assessment Study,North and
South Pakaraima Project,Toshao's Council and Land Utilisation Project.

2013 
G$ 

17 Creditors and accruals 

Accruals 2,306,615 

18 Related party transactions 

Parties are considerd to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party 

2012 
G$ 

225,335,179 
19,848,137 

(21,623,047) 

223,560,269 

2012 
G$ 

3,064,445 

or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operating decisions. 

Key Management personnel 
The Corporation's 5 (2012 - 5) key mamagement personnel comprises its General Manager and 
Executive Managers.The remuneration paid during the year to Executive Managers is included 
in administrative expenses.During the year remuneration paid to these individuals amounted to 
$18,641,976(2012 -$17,721841) 

Directors' fees paid during the year: 

P.Cheong 
P. R. Roopnarine
R. Sukhai 
V. De Silva
B. Dwarka
D. Doodnauth
L. Chin
B. Sears 
J. McKenzie
G. Khan
P. Persaud
J. Bhoejedat
J. David
D. Dhanraj
T. David
R. Jagarnaulh
M. Nadir
0. Homenauth
A Ameerally
M. Qualander

23 

2013 

G$ 

30,000 
24,000 
24,000 
24,000 

24,000 

24,000 

24,000 
24,000 
24,000 
24,000 
24,000 
24,000 
24,000 

318,000 

2012 

G$ 

35,000 
28,000 
28,000 
28,000 
16,000 
28,000 
16,000 
28,000 
16,000 
16,000 
16,000 
20,000 
16,000 
28,000 
12,000 
12,000 
12,000 
12,000 
12,000 
12,000 

391,000 
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GUYANA MA.RKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Analysis of financial assets and liabilities by measurement basis 

2013 

Assets 

Debtors and prepayments 

Cash on hand and at bank 

Liabilities 

Creditors and accruals 

2012 

Assets 

Debtors and prepayments 

Cash on hand and at bank 

Liabilities 
Creditors and accruals 

24 

Loans and 
receivable 

G$ 

87,359,701 

87,359,701 

87,379,411 

87,379,411 

Other 
Financial assets 
and liabilities at 
amortised cost 

G$ 

236,235,459 

236,235,459 

2,306,615 

233,867,828 

233,867,828 

3,064,445 

Total 
G$ 

87,359,701 

236,235,459 

323,595,160 

2,306,615 

87,379,411 

233,867,828 

321,247,239 

3,064,445 
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20 Financial risk management 

Financial risk management o bjectives 

GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

The corporation's management monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the 
corporation through internal risk reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These 

risks include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. 

The corporation seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by the use of techniques that are governed by 

management's policies on foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and credit risk which are approved by the board 

of directors. 

The corporation's management reports monthly to the board of directors on matters relating to risk and 

management of risk. 

(a) Market risk

The corporaiion's activities expose ii to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates

and interest rates. The corporation uses interest rate sensitivity and exposure limits to financial instruments to manage

its exposure to interest rate and foreign currency risk. There has been no change in the corporation's exposure to

market risks or the manner in which it manages these risks.

----(i )-lnteresl-ia!e-risl.< 

Interest rate sensitivity analysis . 

. The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates 

for all financial instruments at the end of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming 

the amounts of the financial instruments at the end of the reporting period were in existence 

throughout the whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest 

rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment of the 

reasonable possible change in interest rates. 

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all the other variables were held constant, the Corporation's 

profit for the year would increase/decrease by G$1, 181,177 (2012: G$1, 169,339). This is mainly 

attributable to the Corporation's exposure to interest rates on its balances at banks. 

25 

I 

r 

Ir 

• I



I 
I I 
I l 
I _:I 
I I

_j 

I _I 

11 

20 Financial risk management 
(a) Market risk-cont'd
(i) Interest rate risk-cont'd

GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTE? ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market 
interest rates. The corporation is exposed to various risks that are associated with the effects 
in interest rates. This impacts directly on its cash flows. 

The corporation's management continually monitors and manages these risks through the use of 
appropriate tools and implements relevaant strategies to hedge against any adverse effects. 

Interest risk tables 

Average Maturing 
interest rate 2013 

% Non-interest 
1 year bearing 

G$ G$ 
Assets 

Debtors and prepayments 87,359,701 

Cash at bank 2-4.5 236,235,459 

236,235,459 87,359,701 
Liabilities 

Creditors and accruals 2,306,615 

Interest sensitivity gap 236,235,459 
Maturing 

2012 
Within Non-interest 
1 year bearing 

G$ G$ 
Assets 

Debtors and prepayments 87,379,411 

Cash al bank 4.50 233,867,828 

233,867,828 87:379,411 
Liabilities 

Creditors and accruals 3,064,445 

3,064,445 

Interest sensitivity gap 233,867,828 

26 

Total 
G$ 

87,359,701 

236,235,459 

323,595,160 

2,306,615 

Total 
G$ 

87,379,411 

233,867,828 

321,247,239 

3,064,445 

3,064,445 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

20 Financi_al risk management - cont'd 

(a) Market risk-cont'd

(ii) Currency risk

The Corporation's exposure to the effects of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates is
minimal.At the end of the financial year there were no assets or liabilities denominated in 
rore1gn currencies,

(iii) Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments w!II fluctuate as a result of changes in 
market prices whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual security of

Its Issuer or factors affecting all securities traded in the market. Management continually identifies 
the risk and diversifies the portfolio in order to minimize the risk. 

The corporation is not significantly exposed to other price risks arising from equity investments.
(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the corporation will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet its
commitments associated with payables.
The corporation manages its liquidity risk by maintaining an appropriate level of resources in 
liquid or near liquid form.
The following table shows the distribution of assets and liabilities by maturity:

Assets 

Debtors and prepayments 

Cash on hand and at bank 

Liabilities 

Creditors and accruals 

Net assets 

Assets 

Debtors and prepayments 

Cash on hand and at bank 

Liabilities 

Creditors and accruals 

Net assets 

Maturing 

Within 1 year 
On Demand Due 3 - 12 mths 

G$ G$ 

87,359,701 

236,235,459 

87,359,701 236,235,459 

2,306,615 

87,359,701 233,928,844 

Maturing 
2012 

Within 1 year 
On Demand Due 3 - 12 mths 

G$ G$ 

87,379,411 

233,867,828 

87,379,411 233,867,828 

3,064,445 

3,064,445 

87,379,411 230,803,383 

27 

G$ 

87,359,701 

236,235,459 

323,595,160 

2,306,615 

321,288,545 

Total 

G$ 

87,379,411 

233,867,828 

321,247,239 

3,064,445 

3,064,445 

318,182,794 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

20 Financial risk management - cont'd 

( c) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that financial loss arises from failure of a customer to meet its obligations under a
contract, it arises in the case of the corporation, principally from debtors and cash resources holdings.

Cash and bank includes balances held at financial institutions. These banks have been assessed by the Directors
as being credit worthly, with very strong capacity to meet their obligations as they fall due.

The corporation's exposure to credit risk is continuously monitored to ensure that amounts are recovered.
Management implicitly monitors the analysis of credit risk portfolio.
The corporation does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of
counterparties having similar characteristics.

Maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of any collateral and other credit enhancements.

The table below shows the Corporation's maximum exposure to credit risk.

2013 2012 
Gross maximum exposure: G$ G$ 

Debtors (i) 87,359,701 87,379,411 

Cash resources at banks (ii) 236,235,459 233,867,828 

Total credit risk exposure 323,595,160 321,247,239 

Where financial instruments are recorded at fair value the amounts shown above represents the current credit risk 

exposure but not the maximum risk exposure that could arise in the future as a result of changes in values. 

(i) This represent trade debtors which are collectible

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents include balances held with commercial banks.These banks have been
assessed by the corporation as being credit worthy,with very strong capacity to meet their
obligations as they fall due.

Concentration of risk is managed by clienUcounterparty, by geographical region and by industry sector 
as detailed in the following: 

Geographical sectors 

The corporation's maximum credit exposure, after taking account of credit loss provisions established 

can be analysed by the following geographical sectors based on the country of domicile of counterparties: 

2013 2012 

G$ G$ 

Guyana 87,359,701 87,379,411 

The above balances are classified as follows:. 

28 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

20 Financial risk management - cont'd 

(c) Credit risk-cont'd

Current 

21 Capital risk management 

2013 
G$ 

87,359,701 

2012 
G$ 

87,379,411 

The corporation manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going cancer 
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. 
The corporation's overall strategy remains unchanged from 2012. 

The capital structure of the corporation consists of cash equivalents and equity attributable to 
-----the-6-overnmenrof C3uyana�umprising capital, reserves and retained earnings. 

29 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

22 Fair value of financial instruments 

I 

I , 
j 

) (a) 

I I (bl

I I

Fair values have been determined as follows: 

2013 2012 
Car!}'.ing value Fair value Car!:}'.ing value Fair value 

Assets G$ G$ G$ G$ 

Debtors and prepayments 87,359,701 87,359,701 87,379,411 87,379,411 

Cash at bank 236,235,459 236,235,459 233,867,828 233,867,828 

323,595,160 323,595,160 321,247,239 321,247,239 

Liabilities 

Creditors and accruals 2,306,615 2,306,615 3,064,445 3,064,445 

Valuation techniques and assumptions applied for the purposes of measuring fair value: 

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities were determined as follows: 

Debtors are net of specific and other provisions for impairment. The fair value of debtors is based on expected realisation of 
outstanding balances taking into account the corporation's history with respect to delinquencies. 

Financial instruments where the carrying amounts are equal to fair value:- Due to the short maturity, the carrying amounts of 
certain financial instruments are assumed to approximate their fair value. These includes cash, debtors and prepayment 
and creditors and accruals. 

, .l 23 Pending litigation 

There is no pending litigation. 
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Ms. Ida Sealey-Adams 
General Manager 
Guyana Marketing Corporation 
Robb & Alexander Streets 
Georgetown. 

Dear Ms. Sealey-Adams, 

AU DIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 
GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

FORTHEYEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER2014 

13 December 2016 

Please find attached thirteen (13) copies of the audited financial statements, together with the 
report of the Auditor General, thereon. 

Should you need any frniher explanation, please do not hesitate to contact us. 

With best regards. 

Yours sincerely, 

��ofii o'i-=-,.�
'7 v_ - "le,''\

j\_f,l.+?fYC<l2U l1 · '';)\,'\�N .f.fa.rcourt ' 
Audit Manager (ag.)'-" 
ui!.&"t\d1t0r,Qen'eral

.....___ ... ,.,� 1j �, ... � 
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29 December 2016 

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL 
TO THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

THE GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 
,,. ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

Cha11ered Accountants TSD Lal and Company have audited on my behalf the financial statements 
of the Guyana Marketing Corporation which comprise the statement of financial position as at 
31 December 2014 and the statement of income, statement of changes in equity and statement of 
cash flows for the year then ended, and a sull1lna1.·y of accounting policies and other explanatory 
notes as set out on pages 2 to 27. The audit was conducted in accordance with the Audit Act 2004. 

Management's responsibility.for the financial statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's responsibility 

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I 
conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing issued by the 
International Federation of Accountants (IF AC), and those of the International Organisation of 
Supreme Audit Institutions (INTOSAI). Those standards require that I comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are. free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An 
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
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As required by the Audit Act 2004, I have reviewed the audit plan and procedures, working 
papers, report and opinion of the Chartered Accountants. I have also had detailed discussions 
with the Chartered Accountants mi. all matters of significance to the audit and had carried out 
additional examinations, as necessary, in arriving at my opinion. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for my audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the 
financial position of the Guyana Marketing Corporation as at 31 December 2014 and of its 
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with h1ternational 
Financial Reporting Standards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

The financial statements comply with the requirements of the Public Corporation Act. 

Ji;tc� Q A�DITOR �EN�L 
� GlJV�t,�,/ 
AUDIT OFFICE 
63 HIGH STREET 
KINGSTON 
GEORGETOWN 
GUYANA 

Ill 



REPORT OF _c}-·IARTERED ACCOUNTANTS TSD LAL & CO 

TO THE AUDITOR GENERAL 

QN THE FJNANCIAL STATEMENTS OF 

GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2014 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We lrnve nudilcd lhe accompanying limmcial slatcmcnts of Guyana Marketing Corporation which comprise the slnlemcnt of Jinanciul 

position ns at 31 December 2014 and lhc stalemcnt or income, slalemenl of changes in cquily and slatcmenl of cash flows for lhc year 

then ended, nnd a summary of signilicanl necounling policies and olhcr cxplunalory nolcs us scl oul on pages 2 lo 27. 

Directors'IM1111age111e11t's Respo11sibifity for the Fi11a11ciaf Stute111e11ts 

The Directors/ Mm1ngcmcnt arc responsible for the preparation and rair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 

International f-inancial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes: designing, implemcnling and maintaining internal conlrol 

relevant to lhe preparation and fair prcscnlalion of linancial slalcments llrnl arc free from malcrial misstalerncnt, whether due to fraud 

or error; selecting and applying appropriate 11ccounting policies; and making accounting eslirnales that arc reasonable in lhc 

circumstances. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express m1 opinion on these linancial slalcmenls based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 

� lntcrnalional Standards on Aud1l111g. Those slanclnrdsrequire tlmt we comply witficlnicaf requirements andplan and perform the 

audit lo obtain reasonable assurance whether lhe financial slalcments arc free lrom rnnlcrial misslalcmcnt. 

An audil involves performing procedures lo obtain audil evidence about the amounts and disclosures in lhe linancial statements. The 

procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgcmcnl, including the assessment of the risks of material misslalcmcnl of lhc financial 

slatemenls, whether due to fraud or error. In making lhosc risk assessments, U1e auditor considers internal control relevant to lhe 

cntily's preparation nnd lair presenlalion or lhe financial stalcmcnls in order to design audit procedures that arc appropriate in the 

circumslanccs, bul nol for lhc purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's inlernal control. An audit also 

includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and lhc reasonableness or accounting estimates made by 

management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial slalemcnts. 

We believe lhat the audit evidence we have obtained is suflicicnl and nppropriale to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opi11io11 

In our opinion U1e limmcial stalcmenls give a (rue and fair view, in nil mmeriul rcspecls ol'lhc linaneial position of Guyana Marketing 

Corporation as al 31 December 2014 nnd of its financial performance and ils cash nows for the year then ended in accordance with 

lnternalional Financial Reporting Stm1dards. 

Report on Other Lcgnl nnd Rcgulntor·y Requirements 

The financial slatemcnlS comply with lhc rcquircmcnls or the Public Corpornlion Acl. 

-rt;\\ \0\1\ \, \/\)
TSO LAL&CO. 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Dale: 11 November, 2016. 

77 Brickdam, 

Slnbrock, Georgetown, 

Guynna 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

·STATEMENT OF INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2014 

Turnover 

Cost of sales 

Gross profit 

•>, 

Other income 

Government grant 

Selling and distribution 

Administrative expenses 

Profit before interest 

Financial expenses 

Profit for the year 

5 

.6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

2014 

G$ 

40,989,847 

35,162,159 

5,827,688 

12,965,258 

244,253,628 

263,046,574 

3,695,723 

253,850,877 

5,499,974 

448,696 

5,051,278 

2013 

G$ 

35,736,099 

29,902,180 

5,833,919 

11,052,904 

145,805,757 

162,692,580 

3,666,174 

152,058,596 

6,967,810 

707,797 

6,260,013 

"The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements" 

2 



I 

l-

GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

Balance at 1 January 2013 

Profit for the year-2013 

Balance at 31 December,2013 

Profit for the year-2014 

Balance at 31 December 2014 

Government of 
Guyana 

G$ 

25,102,348 

25,102,348 

25,102,348 

3 

Retained 
earnings 

G$ 

219,666,116 

6,260,013 

225,926,129 

5,051,278 

230,977,407 

Total 
G$ 

244,768,464 

6,260,013 

251,028,477 

5,051,278 

256,079,755 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014 

ASSETS Notes 2014 2013 
Non current assets G$ G$ 

Property.plant and equipment 11 143,346,742 156, 102,360 

Current assets .,._ 

Stocks 12 4,015,208 3,803,522 
Debtors and prepayments 13 87,610,784 87,359,701 
Cash at bank 14 133,122,931 236,235,459 

224,748,923 327,398,682 

TOT AL ASSETS 368,095,666 483,501,042 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Capital and reserves 

Government of Guyana 15 25,102,348 25, ·102, 348 
Retained earnings 230,977,407 225,926,128 

256,079,755 251,028,476 
Non current liability

Deferred income 16 110,725,870 230,165,951 
Current liabilities 

Creditors and accruals 17 1,290,041 2,306,615 

1,290,041 2,306,615 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 368,095,666 483,501,042 

"These financial s tatements were approved by the Board of Directors on .I 1 .. W��rYlbe:1 :>.'.:C:\6

On behalf of t�ard: �
.......... �: ........ -�� ................. Director 

............. -�- �- .. � .. � .. :':.' .. �-::-/. ...... Director 

"The accompanying notes form an integral part of tl1ese financial statements". 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

2014 

Operating activities 

Profit for the year 

Adjustments for: 

Loss on disposal of asset 

Depreciation .,. 

Operating profit before working capital changes 

Decrease/(increase) in stocks 

Decrease/(increase) in debtors and prepayments 

Decrease in creditors and accruals 

Decr-ease-i.rulefe.i:r:ecL income-

Net cash provided by/used in) operating activities 

Investing activities 

Purchase of fixed assets 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 

Rewriiten Stale Dated Cheques 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 

· Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Consisting: 

Cash on hand and bank 

5 

G$ 

5,051,278 

23,060,634 

28,111,912 

(211,686) 

(251,083) 

(1,016,574) 

( 1.2.1-,.3.3.0,.I. 4.8.) 

(94,698,179) 

(10,305,016) 

(10,305,016) 

(105,003,195) 

1,890,667 

236,235,459 

133,122,931 

133,122,931 

133,122,931 

2013 
G$ 

6,260,013 

10,408 

24,267,870 

30,538,291 

(1,035,565) 

19,710 

(757,830) 

6.,.605r682.._ 

35,370,288 

(33,002,657) 

(33,002,657) 

2,367,631 

233,867,828 

236,235,459 

236,235,459 

236,235,459 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

l. Incorporation and activities
The Corporation was incorporated in Guyana under Section 46 of the Public Corporation
Act 19:05 of the laws of Guyana and is involved in the facilitation for exportation of non
- traditional fresh and processed agricultural products. 

2. New and amended standards and interpretations

Effective for the current year end 

New and Amended Standards 

IFRS IO Consolidated Financial Statements (Exemptions) 
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities (Exemptions) 
IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements (Exemptions) 
IAS 32 Financial Instruments - Offsetting Financial Assets and 

Financial Liabilities 
IAS 36 Impairment of Assets 
IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement 

New interpretation 

IFRIC 21 Levies 

Of the above, the following are relevant to the entity. 

Effective for 
annual 

periods 
beginning 
on or after 

I January 2014 
I January 2014 
1 January 2014 

1 January 2014 
1 January 2014 
1 January 2014 

I January 2014 

Amendments to IAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 
Amends IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation to clarify certain aspects because of 
diversity in application of the requirements on offsetting, focused on four main areas. 
The amendment did not have a material impact on the Company as it does not have any 
financial assets and financial liabilities that quality for offset. 

6 



GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

2. New and amended standards and interpretations - cont'd

Effective for current year end - cont'd 

Amendments to IAS 36: Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets 
Amends IAS 36 Impairment of Assets to reduce the circumstances in which the 
recoverable amount of assets or cash-generating units is required to be disclosed, clarify 
the disclosures required, and to introduce an explicit requirement to disclose the discount 
rate used in determining impairment. 
The amendment did not have a material impact on the disclosures or on amounts 
recognised irr"the Company's financial statement. 

IFRIC 21 Levies 
Provides guidance on when to recognise a liability for a levy imposed by a government, 
both for levies that are accounted for in accordance with IAS 37 and those where the 
timing and amount of the levy is certain. 

There were also standards and improvements for early adoption for the current year. 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION· 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Summary of significant accounting policies 

(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards.

(b) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention.
The principal accounting policies are set out below.

(c) Revenue and expense recognition

Revenue is recognized in the statement of income on an accrual basis at the
fair value of the consideration received.

Expenses are recognized on an accruals basis.

( d) Taxation

The Corporation is exempt from corporation and prope1ty taxes.

(e) Foreign cu1Tencies

Transactions in cmrencies other than Guyana dollars are recorded at the rates
of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the. end of each reporting period, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated to Guyana dollars at the
Cambio rates prevailing on that date or at rates agreed by the Bank of Guyana.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Gains or losses arising on retranslation are included in
the profit or loss for the period, except for exchange differences arising on non­
monetary assets and liabilities where changes in fair value are recognized in the
statement of changes in equity.
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

3. Summary of significant accounting policies-cont'd

(f) Fixed assets and depreciation

Freehold land and buildings held for use in the supply of goods and services or for
administrative purposes are stated in the statement of financial position at their
revalued amounts. Revalued amounts are taken as the fair value at the date of
revaluation less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment loss.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such land and buildings 1s
credited to capital reserve.

Depreciation on revalued buildings is charged to profit or loss. On the subsequent
saie or retirement of a revalued land or buildings, the attributable revaluation surplus
remaining in the capital reserve is transferred to the statement of comprehensive
mcome.

Motor vehicles and machinery and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
dep.re_ciati011 and__ai1._y_reco_guise_d.imp_airmentk,_5s.
No depreciation is provided on freehold land and construction work-in-progress.
Depreciation of other fixed assets is calculated on the straight line method at rates
sufficient to write off the cost or valuation of these assets to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

Building 
Motor vehicle 
Machinery and equipment 
Furniture and Fittings 

2% 
25 % 
10% 
12.50% 

Assets acquired during the year are depreciated from the date of acquisition. 

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever there is objective evidence to indicate 
that the can-ying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 
The excess of the carrying amount above the recoverable amount is written off to the 
profit or loss. 

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of fixed assets is 
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of 
the asset and is recognized in profit or loss. 

(g) Stocks

Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value based on the first-in­
first-out method. Net realizable value is the selling price in the normal course of
business less selling expenses.
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GUY ANA MAR
K

ETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

3. Summary of significant accounting policies-cont'd

(h) Financial liabilities

The Corporation's financial liabilities are classified as other financial liabilities.

(i) Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash and short term funds are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash
commitments rather than investment or other purposes.

These are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, with maturity dates of three
. (3) months or less.

U) Bank borrowings

Interest bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recognized at amortised cost.

(k) Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value,
net of transaction costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense is recognised on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or where appropriate, a sho1ter
period.

The Corporation derecognizes financial liabilities when its obligations are discharged,
cancelled. or expire.

10 



GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

3. Summary of significant accounting policies-cont'd

(1) Financial assets

Trade and other receivables are measured at amortised cost. Appropriate allowances
for estimated unrecoverable amounts are recognized in profit and loss when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired. The allowance recognized is based on
management's evaluation of the collectability of the receivables.

(m) Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset and allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees on points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

(n) Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the corporation reviews the carrying amounts of
its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
corporation estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. If
the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at 
a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.

( o) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the corporation has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the corporation will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of 
the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of each reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Summary of significant accounting policies-cont'd 

(p) Business reporting divisions
A business reporting division is a component of an entity that is engaged in providing
products or services that are subject to risks and ret11rns that are different from those
of other business divisions. A geographical division is engaged in providing products
or a service within a particular economic environment that are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of divisions operating in other economic
environments.
The corporation's operations are considered a single business unit with certain
activities segmented along geographical lines viz Guyana and outside of Guyana.

(q) Deferred Income
This represents fe1tilizer subvention and grants from various agencies. This balance 
is written off to income when utilized.

(r) Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each 
reporting period. Financial assets are impaired when there is objective 
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occuned after initial 
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the 
investment have been impacted. 

For financial assets carried at amo11ised cost, the amount of the impairment is 
the difference between the assets carrying amount and the present value of the 
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset's original 
effective interest rate. 

(s) Derecognition of financial assets

The corporation derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual 
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire; or it transfers the financial asset 
and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another 
entity. If the corporation neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks 
and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the 
corporation recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated 
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the corporation retains 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial 
asset, the corporation continues to recognise the financial asset and also 
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. 

12 



GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

3. Summary of significant accounting policies-cont'd ·

(t) Government Grants

Government grants received to compensate the Corporation's cost are recognised
in the income statement in the period in which these costs are incurred.

4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation unce1iainty

In the application of the Corporation's accounting policies, which are described in 
note 3, the directors are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions 
about,,,the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent 
from other somces. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on 
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual 
results may differ from these estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the 
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the 
revision and future periods if the revision affects Eoth cunent and ruhu-e penoos. 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty - cont'd 

Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key 
sources of estimation unce1iainty at the rep01iing date, that have a significant risk 
of causing a material adjustment to the canying amounts of assets and liabilities 
in the financial statements: 

i) 

ii) 

iii) 

Trade, other receivables and prepayments 

On a regular basis, management reviews trade and other receivables to 
assess impairment. Based on information available as to the likely 
impairment in cash flows, decisions are taken in determining appropriate 
provisions to be made for impairment. 

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment 

Management reviews the estimated useful lives of prope1iy, plant and 
equipment at the end of each year to determine whether the useful lives of 
property, plant and equipment should remain the same. 

Impairment of financial assets 

Management makes judgement at each reporting date to determine 
whether financial assets are impaired. Financial assets are impaired when 
the carrying value is greater that the recoverable amount and there is 
objective evidence of impairment. The recoverable amount is the present 
value of the future cash flows. 

14 



I 

i-

GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

2014 

G$ 

5 Turnover 

Turnover represents goods sold to third parties. 

6 Other Income 

Pack House Services 
Rental of building 
Miscellaneous/Other Income 
Cash Overage 
Brokerage Service 
Income from sale of tender 
Bank interest received 
Stale dated cheques wretten back 

7 Government Grants 

Subsidy Capital 
Subsidy- Subvention 
ALBA Fund 
Market Identification Study 
Competitive Asssessment Study 
ASDU- Generator 
Fertilizer subvention 
El Nino 
Buxton project 
Caribbean Week of Agriculture 
North and South Pakarima project 
HFLAC Project 
Land Utilization Project 
Douchfour Project - NOIA 
Linking Farmers Market 

15 

40,989,847 

2,459,638 
1,810,000 
4,768,688 

26,514 
1,318,600 

10,000 
681,151 

1,890,667 
12,965,258 

9,100,000 
115,713,547 

1,066,500 

1,600,082 
114,410,300 

402,101 
63,000 

1,698,098 

200,000 

244,253,628 

2013 

G$ 

35,736,099 

1,937,653 
720,000 

5,895,173 
4,112 

926,500 
22,000 

1,547,466 

11,052,904 

11,500,000 
105,111,439 

2,048,379 

1,822,475 

961,880 
90,000 

16,016,345 
45,000 

152,161 

208,197 
7,849,881 

145,805,757 

( 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 
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i 
NOTES ON TH.E ACCOUNTS 

2014 2013 
G$ G$ 

8 Selling and distrubution 
Advertising 3,322,829 3,393,830 

Spoilage 206,704 29,279 

Packaging Expenses 162,190 221,600 

Freight & Airways 4,000 21,465 

3,695,723 3,666,174 

9 Administrative expenses 
Linking Farmers to Market 2,576,080 
Logistical & l'iFLAC Expense 1,570,293 

Alba expense 1,066,500 

Audit fees 1,678,984 2,250,945 

Buxton expenditure 63,000 427,678 

Cleaning & sanitation 1,185,655 1,111,301 

Christmas celebration 571,600 591,564 

Travelling Subsistence- Crop Reporters 1,983,040 799,740 

Computer expenses 160,708 448,890 

Customs duties 30,272 23,343 

Depreciation 23,060,632 24,267,870 

Donations 334,677 122,428 

Electricity 8,078,804 9,037,021 

El Nino expense 402,101 913,360 

Employment cost 59,799,910 56,050,456 

Caribbean Week of Agriculture 1,199,648 17,692,795 

Loss on disposal 10,408 

Farmer's connection 35,000 

Fertilizer expenses 111,204,726 

General expenses 3,681,846 1,168,033 

General consultancy & IT Technical Support 2,234,400 1,532,000 

Hotel accomodation 530,418 598,400 

Land Uitlization Project 200,000 

Balance carried forward 217,466,921 121,227,605 

16 



GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

9 Administrative ·expenses - cont'd 2014 

Balance brought forward 
Insurance 
Meals & entertainment 
Legal fees 
Promotional expenses 
Directors Fees 
Rates & taxes 
Rental 
Repairs & mai'ntainance 

Security 

Stationery & printing 

Subscription 
Sundry 
Telephone 
Training 
Transportation & travel 
Fuel and lubricant 

10 Financial expenses

Bank charges 

Night deposit bags 

With holding tax 

G$ 

217,466,921 
1,148,496 
1,270,817 

87,000 
3,820,334 
1,111,000 

749,007 
3,000,000 
5,990,283 

7,531,084 

3,530,931 

326,160 
812,188 

1,382,477 
177,000 

2,581,416 
2,865,763 

253,850,877 

17 

228,946 

83,520 

136,230 

448,696 

2013 
G$ 

121,227,605 
1,125,697 
1,193,001 

127,600 
2,304,944 

318,000 
313,627 

3,000,000 
5,160,201 

7,211,894 

1,883,080 
569,960 
593,049 

1,563,247 
234,400 

2,057,052 
3,175,239 

152,058,596 

233,354 

83,520 

390,923 

707,797 

r 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 
11 Fixed assets 

Freehold Machinery 
land and and Furniture & Motor Total 
buildings eguiQment fittings vehicles 

G$ G$ G$ G$ G$ 
(a) Cost

At 1 January 2014 55,992,307 118,779,342 20,141,518 50,539,460 245,452,627 

Additions 1,971,080 1,723,791 60,145 6,550,000 10,305,016 

At 31 December 2014 57,963,387 120,503,133 20,201,663 57,089,460 255,757,643 

Depreciation 

At 1 January 2014 4,128,763 37,279,053 11,031,347 36,911,106 89,350,269 

Charge for the year 1,043,545 11,456,023 2,049,923 8,511,141 23,060,632 

At 31 December 2014 5,172,308 48,735,076 13,081,270 45,422,247 112,410,901 

Net book values: 

At 31 December 2014 52,791,079 71,768,057 7,120,393 11,667,213 143,346,742 

At31 December2013 51,863,544 81,500,289 9,110,171 13,628,3-54 156,102,358 

1 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

12 Stocks 

Finished goods 

All inventories are expected to be recovered within 12 months. 

13 Debtors and prepayments 

14 

15 

Trade debtors .,. 
Guyana Sugar Corporation 
Other debtors 

Cash at bank 
Subvention Current Account 
Marketing Current Account 
Packaging Facilities Current Account 
Saving Account 
Scotia Bank Fertiliser Account 
Scotia Bank Fertiliser Saving Account 

The interest rates on fixed deposit and short term 
deposit accounts are at varing rates from 2% to 4.5% 
(2011 - 4.5%) 

Government of Guyana 

19 

2014 
G$ 

4,015,208 

2014 
G$ 

286,073 
86,994,711 

330,000 

87,610,784 

14,333,181 

10,583,822 
13,648,834 
90,225,275 

9,000 
4,322,819 

133,122,931 

25,102,348 

2013 
G$ 

3,803,522 

2013 
G$ 

112,990 
86,994,711 

252,000 

87,359,701 

11,187,639 
5,722,291 

14,172,390 
89,825,604 

(52,760) 
115,380,295 

236,235,459 

25,102,348 

I 
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GUYANA.MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

16 Deferred income 

2014 
GS 

17 

18 

Opening balance 
Received during the year 
Expended during the year 

Closing balance 

This represents: 

230,165,951 

(119,440,081) 

110,725,870 

(I) Unutilised funds from the following grants: ALBA Funds, EL Nino Funds.Buxton Project 
North and South Pakaralma Project and Land Utilisation Project. 

2014 
G$ 

Creditors and accruals 

,,. 

Accruals 1,290,041 

Related party transactions 

Parties are considerd to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party 
or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operating decisions. 

Key Management personnel 
The Corporation's 1 o (2013 - 5) key mamagemenl personnel comprises its General Manager and 
Executive Managers.The remuneration paid during the year to Executive Managers is included 
in administrative expenses.During the year remuneration paid to these Individuals amounted lo 

$11,028,711 (2013 -$18,641,976) 

Directors' fees paid during the year: 
P. Cheong 
P.R. Roopnarine 
R. Sukhai 
V. De Sliva 
D. Doodnauth 
B. Sears 
D. Dhanraj 
T. David 
R. Jagamauth 
M. Nadir
0. Homenauth 
R. Prashad 
V. Balgobin 
R. Singh 
A.Ameerally 
M. Qualander 

20 

2014 
G$ 

110,000 
77,000 
77,000 
77,000 
77,000 
77,000 
77,000 
77,000 
77,000 

77,000 
77,000 
77,000 
77,000 
77,000 

1,111,000 

2013 
G$ 

223,560,269 
35,800,000 

(29,194,318) 

230,165,951 

2013 
G$ 

2,306,615 

2013 
G$ 

30,000 
24,000 
24,000 
24,000 
24,000 
24,000 
24,000 
24,000 
24,000 
24,000 
24,000 

24,000 
24,000 

318,000 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

20 Analysis of financial assets and liabilities by measurement basis 

2014 

Assets 

Debtors and prepayments 

Cash on hand'and at bank 

Liabilities 

Creditors and accruals 

2013 

Assets 

Debtors and prepayments 

Cash on hand and at bank 

Liabilities 

Creditors and accruals 

21 

Loans and 
receivable 

G$ 

87,610,784 

87,610,784 

87,359,701 

87,359,701 

other 
Financial assets 
and liabilities at 
amortised cost 

G$ 

133,122,931 

'I 33, 122,93'i 

1,290,041 

236,235,459 

236,235,459 

2,306,615 

Total 
G$ 

87,610,784 

133,122,931 

220,733,715 

1,290,041 

87,359,701 

236,235,459 

323,595,160 

2,306,615 

I 
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20 Financial risk management 

GUYAN.A MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Financial risk management objectives 

The corporation's management monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the 
operations of the corporation through internal risk reports which analyse exposures by 
degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk (currency risk, interest rate 
risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. 
The corporation seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by the use of techniques that 
are governed by management's policies on foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and 
credit risk which are approved by the board of directors. 
The corporation's management reports monthly to the board of directors on matters relating 
to risk and management of risk. 

(a) Market risk

The corporation's activities expose it to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency
exchange rates and interest rates. The Corporation uses interest rate sensitivity and
exposure limits to financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign
currency risk. There has been no change in the corporation's exposure to market risks or the
manner in which it manages these risks.

(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate sensitivity analysis.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates
for all financial instruments at the end of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared
assuming the amounts of the financial instruments at the end of the reporting period were
in existence throughout the whole. year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management's assessment of the reasonable possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all the other variables were held
constant, the Corporation's profit for the year would increase/decrease by G$665,615
{2013: G$1,181,177). This is mainly attributable to the Corporation's exposure to interest
rates onits balances at bank

22 



20 Financial risk management 

(a) Market risk-cont'd
(i) Interest rate risk-cont'd

GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to 
changes in market interest rates. The Corporation is exposed to various risks that are 

associated with the effects in interest rates. This impacts directly on its cash flows. 

The corporation's management continually monitors and manages these risks through the 
use of appropriate tools and implements relevaant strategies to hedge against any adverse 
effects. 

,,. 

Interest risk tables 

Assets 
Debtors and prepayments 

Cash at bank 

Liabilities 
Creditors and accruals 

Interest sensitivity gap 

Assets 
Debtors and prepayments 

Cash at bank 

Liabilities 
Creditors and accrua Is 

Interest sensitivity gap 

Average 
interest rate 

% 

2 - 4.5 

2-4.5

1 year 
G$ 

133,122,931 

133,122,931 

133,122,931 

Within 
1 year 

G$ 

236,235,459 

236,235,459 

236,235,459 

23 

Maturing 
2014 

Non-interest 
bearing 

GS 

87,610,784 

87,359,701 

1,290,041 

Maturing 

2013 
Non-interest 

bearing 
G$ 

87,359,701 

87,359,701 

2,306,615 

Total 
G$ 

87,610,784 

133,122,931 

220,733,715 

1,290,041 

Total 
G$ 

87,359,701 

236,235,459 

323,595,160 

2,306,615 

I 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

21 Financial risk management - cont'd 

(a) Market risk-cont'd 

(ii) Currency risk

The Corporation's exposure lo the effects of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates is
mlnlmal.At the end of the financial year there were no assets or liabilities denominated in
tore1gn currencies. 

(iii) Price risk 

Price risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market 
prices whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual security of its issuer or 
factors affecting all securities traded in the market. Management continually Identifies the risk and 
qi_versifies the portfolio in order lo minimize the risk.

The corporation is not significantly exposed to other price risks arising from equity investments. 
(b) Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk Is the risk that the corporation will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet Its 
commitments associated with payables. 
The corporation manages its liquidity risk by maintaining an appropriate level of resources In 
liquid or near liquid form. 

The following table shows the distribution of assets and liabilities by maturity: 

Assets 

Debtors and prepayments 

Cash on hand and at bank 

Liabilities 

Creditors and accruals 

Net assets 

Assets 

Debtors and prepayments 

Cash on hand and at bank 

Liabilities 

Creditors and accruals 

Net assets 

Maturing 
2014 

Within 1 year 
On Demand Due 3 -12 mths 

G$ G$ 

87,610,784 

133,122,931 

87,610,784 133,122,931 

1,290,041 

87,610,784 131,832,890 

Maturing 
2013 

Within 1 year 
Within 1 year Due 3 - 12 mths 

G$ GS 

87,359,701 

236,235,459 

87,359,701 236,235,459 

2,306,615 

87,359,701 233,928,844 

24 

G$ 

87,610,784 

133,122,931 

220,733,715 

1,290,041 

219,443,674 

G$ 

87,359,701 

236,235,459 

323,595, 160 

2,306,615 

321,288,545 
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20. Financial risk management - cont'd

(c) Credit risk

GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Credit risk is the risk that financial loss arises from failure of a customer to meet its obligations under a

contract, it arises in the case of the corporation, principally from debtors and cash resources holdings.

Cash and bank includes balances held at financial institutions. These banks have been assessed by the Directors

as being credit worthly, with very strong capacity to meet their obligations as they fall due.

The corporation's exposure to credit risk is continuously monitored to ensure that amounts are recovered.

Management implicitly monitors the analysis of credit risk portfolio.

The corporation does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of

counterparties having similar characteristics.

Maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of any collateral and other 

credit enhancements-.

The table below shows the Corporation's maximum exposure to credit risk.

2014 

Gross maximum exposure: G$ 

Debtors (i) 87,610,784 

Cash resources at banks (ii) 133,122,931 

Total cre_dil.risk_expos.ur..e_ --220,.'.733r715 

2013 

G$ 

87,359,701 

236,235,459 

323,595,160 

Where financial instruments are recorded at fair value the amounts shown above represents the current credit risk 

exposure but not the maximum risk exposure that could arise in the future as a result of changes in values. 

(i) This represent trade debtors which are collectible

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents include balances held with commercial banks.These banks have been

assessed by the corporation as being credit worthy,with very strong capacity to meet their

obligations as they fall due.

Concentration of risk is managed by clienVcounterparty, by geographical region and by industry sector 

as detailed in the following: 

Geographical sectors 

The corporation's maximum credit exposure, after taking account of credit loss provisions established 

can be analysed by the following geographical sectors based on the country of domicile of counterparties: 

Guyana 

The above balances are classified as follows:. 

Current 

25 

2014 

G$ 

87,610,784 

2014 

G$ 

87,610,784 

2013 

G$ 

87,359,701 

2013 

G$ 

87,359,701 

( 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

20 Financial risk management - cont'd 

(c) Credit risk-cont'd

21 Capital risk management 

The corporation manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a 

going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation 

of the debt and equity balance. The corporation's overall strategy remains 

unchanged from 2013. 

The capital structure of the corporation consists of cash equivalents and equity 

attributable to the Government of Guyana, comprising capital, reserves and 

retained earnings. 

26 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

22 Fair value of financiai instruments 

Fair values have been determined as follows: 

2014 2013 

Carrying value Fair value Carrying value 
Assets G$ G$ G$ 

Debtors and prepayments 87,610,784 87,610,784 87,359,701 
-�

Cash at bank 133,122,931 133,122,931 236,235,459 

220,733,715 220,733,715 323,595,160 

Liabilities 

Creditors and accruals 1,290,041 1,290,041 2,306,615 

Valuation techniques and assumptions applied for the purposes of measuring fair value: 

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities were determined as follows: 

Fair value 

G$ 

87,359,701 

236,235,459 

323,595,160 

2,306,615 

(a) The fair value of debtors is based on expected realisation of outstanding balances taking into

account the Corporation's history with respect to delinquencies.

(b) Financial instruments where the carrying amounts are equal to fair value:- Due to the short

maturity, the carrying amounts of certain financial instruments are assumed to approximate

their fair value. These inciudes cash, debtors and prepayment and creditors and accruals.

23 Pending litigation 

Event after the reporting period 

There is a pending litigation which relates to fraud alledgedly committed. The outcome 

of this litigation cannot be quantified at this stage. 

27 
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lif.1 •]-LAL & CO. 

Our Ref: RL/HH/vs/1079 

December 08, 2016. 

Mr. Owen Nester 
Accountant 
Guyana Marketing Corporation 
Robb & Alexander Street, 
GEORGETOWN. 

Dear Sir, 

Chartered Accountants 

We enclose a copy of our draft management letter for your comments. This letter contains the 
principal matters, which came tci our attention during the course of the audit for the year ended 31 
December, 2014. 

Kindly let us have your comments 011 these points. If we do not receive a reply within two (2)

weeks, we will assume that you are in agreement with the comments and recommendations and 
�hall proceed to issue our final letter. 

1f yo1.1 need further clarification 011 any of the matters stated in the letter please do not hesitate to get 
in touch with us. 

Yours faithfully, 

Ramesh Lal 
Managing Partner, TSD LAL & CO. 

Cc: Ms. N. Har�ourt 
Audit Manager (ag) 
Audit Office of Guyana 

Tel: 592-226-3226-8/225-0846 I Fax: 592-225-7578 
www.tsdlal.com I Email: drt@nelworksgy.com 
TSD Lal & Co. 77 Brickdam, PO Box 10506, Georgetown, Guyana 

Partners R. Lal � FCCA / C. Douglas - FCCA 
History 18 Febrnnry 1966 - Founded Thomas, Stoll, Dias & Co. (TSD) 

31 May 1978 -A member ofTouche Ross International 
11 S�ptember 1991 to 30 December 2009 - Deloitte &Tonche 

'• ·.• 

AUDIT, TAX, CONSULTING, FINANCIAL ADVISORY 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

DRAFT MANAGEMENT LITTER 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2014 

MATTER PREVIOUSLY REPORTED 

1. RECEIVABLES

Comment

We noted that an amount of $86,994,711 was outstkding for more than one year for
which no provision was made.

Implication

The amount may not be recovered.

Recommendation

Management should review this amount with a vief to have adequate provision done.

Client's Comment

MATTERS NOW REPORTING 

1. FIXED ASSETS

Comment

The fixed asset register had 1 number of discrepanq:ies. These include a negative balance
brought for building - leasehold and differences in opening balances. See appendix 1.

Implication

The fixed asset register was not adequately maintained.

Recommendation

Management should ensure that the fixed asset register is adequately maintained.

I 
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MATTERS NOW REPORTING-CONT'D 

3. SYSTEM NOTES

Comment

-2-

The corporation did not maintain system notes for its accounting systems.

Implication

Controls with respect to the authorization and approval of transactions may be
compromised.

Recommendation

Management should ensure that adequate documentation of systems are done.

Client's Comment

4. INTERNAL AUDIT

Comment

At the time of the audit there was no internal audit department. As such, the functions of
an internal audit department were not available to ensure controls were operating
satisfactorily and the assets of the corporation were safeguarded.

Implication

Controls may not be operatirtg satisfactorily and safeguarding the corporation assets may
be compromised.

Recommendation

Management should ensure that the internal auditing depatiment has established to carry
out its functions.

Client's Comment
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Appendix 1 

Fixed Asset Register 

Negative Balance 

Building - Leasehold 
Balance brought forward - ($805,628) 

Opening Balance Differences 

Machinery and Equipment 
Balance as per 2013 audited financial statements 
·Balance brought forward for the year in review

Furniture and Fittings 

Balance as per 2013 audited financial statements 
Balance brought forward for the year in review 

1 

Depreciation - Machinery and Equipment 
Balance as per 2013 audited financial statements 
Balance brought forward for the year in review 

'Appendix 2 

$118,804,651 
$118,779,342 

25,309 

$20,828,585 
$20,141,518 

687,067 

$37,304,30C 
$37,279,053 

25,247 
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Ms. Ida Sealey-Adams 
General Manager 
Guyana Marketing Corporation 
Robb & Alexander Streets
Georgetown. 

Dear Ms. Sealey-Adams, 

AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 
GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 . . 

1 March 2018 

Please find attached eleven (11) copies of the audited financial statements, together with the 
report of the Auditor General, thereon. 

Should you need any further explanation, please do not hesitate to contact us. 

With best regards. 

Yours sincerely, 

\.) orr O iF J::10
� �-H-b,_,,,..,..W>T .... �\ * N.Harcourt

N Audit Manager ( a;,; 
�l¼fW����ral

�.. . . -
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL 
TO THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

THE GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 
ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER2015 

1 March 2018 

Chartered Accountants TSD Lal and Company have audited on my behalf the financial statements 
of the Guyai1a Marketing Corporation which comprise the statement of financial position as at 
31 December 2015, and the statement of income, statement of changes in equity and statement of 
cash flows for the year then ended, and a smnmary of accounting policies and other explanatory 
notes as set out on pages 2 to 23 . 

lvlanagement 's responsibility for the financial statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), and for such internal 
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's responsibility 

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I 
conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) issued by the 
International Federation of Accountants (IF AC), the International Standards of Supreme Audit 
Institutions (ISSAis) and the Audit Act 2004. Those standards require that I comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An 
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
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As required by the Audit Act 2004, I have reviewed the audit plan and procedures, working 
papers, report and opinion of the Chartered Accountants. I have also had detailed discussions 
with the Chartered Accomitants on all matters of significance to the audit and had ·carried out 
additional examinations, as necessary, in arriving at my opinion. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for my audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, of the financial 
position of the Guyana Marketing Corporation as at 31 December 2015 and of its financial 
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial 
Rep01iing Standards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulato,y Requirements 

The financial statements comply with the requirements of the Public Corporation Act. 

�'OM OFftc,�

� ·/(

A.�����i§:ERAL

AUDIT OFFICE 
63 HIGH STREET 
KINGSTON 
GEORGETOWN 
GUYANA 
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2015 

AN INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
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REPORT or CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS TSO LAL & co

TO THE AUDITOR GENERAL 

ON THE PINANCJAL STATEMENTS OF 

GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

POR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2015 

Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Guyana Marketing Corporation which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015 and the statement of income, statement of changes in 
equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory notes as set out on pages 2 to 23. 

Directors'/Ma11age111e11t's Responsibility for tile Financial Statements 
The Directors/ Management are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes: 
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and 
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the 
circumstances. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgement, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects of the financial 
position of Guyana Marketing Corporation as at J l December 2015 and of its financial performance and its 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

The financial statements comply with the requirements of the Public Corporation Ordinance. 

t?) /4-I I co-
TSD LAL & co.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Date: February 15, 2018 
77 Brickdam, 
Stabroek, Georgetown, 
Guyana 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORP9RATION 

STATEMENT ffF INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECKMBER, 2015 

Turnover 

Cost of sales 

Gross profit 

Other income 

Government grant 7 

Selling and distribution 8 

Administrative expenses 9 

Profit before interest 

Financial expenses JO 

Profit for the year 

2015 

G$ 

40,777,351 

35,463,128 

5,314,223 

7,501,231 

131,073,124 

143,888,578 

3,559,984 

139,891,510 

437,084 

346,163 

90,921 

2014 

G$ 

40,989,847 

35,162,159 

5,827,688 

12,965,258 

244,253,628 

263,046,574 

3,695,723 

253,850,877 

5,499,974 

448,696 

5,051,278 

"The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements" 
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Balance at 1 January 2014 

Profit for the year-2014 

Balance at 31 December,2014 

Profit for the ycar-2015 

Balance at 31 December 2015 

GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 

Government of 

Note Guyana 

G$ 

25,102,348 

25,102,348 

25,102,348 

Retained 

earnings 

G$ 

225,926,129 

5,051,278 

230,977,407 

90,921 

231,068,328 

"The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements". 

3 

Total 

G$ 

251,028,477 

5,051,278 

256,079,755 

90,921 

256,170,676 
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ASSETS 
Non current assets 

Property,plant and equipment 

Current assets 

Stocks 
Receivables and prepayments 
Investments 
Cash at bank 

TOT AL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Capital and reserves 

Government of Guyana 
Retained earnings 

Non cunent liability 

Deferred income 

Current liabilities 

Payables and accruals 

GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2015 

11 

12 
13 

l4(a) 
l4(b) 

15 

16 

17 

2015 
0$ 

126,069,00 I 

4,867,468 
87,966,275 
90,422,527 
54,904,129 

238,160,399 

364,229,400 

25,102,348 
231,068,328 
256,170,676 

106,291,309 

1,767,415 

1,767,415 

TOT AL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 364,229,400 

_ j 
"These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on ) .. u, I &.-:aJ.,,.1.i � 

O
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"The accompanying notes form an integral parl of these financial statements". 

4 

2014 
0$ 

143,346,742 

4,015,208 
87,610,785 
90,225,275 
42,897,656 

224,748,924 

368,095,666 

25,102,348 
230,977,407 
256,079,755 

110,725,870 

1,290,041 

1,290,041 

368,095,666 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 

2015 

G$ 

Opera ting activities 

Profit for the year 

Adjustments for: 

Rewritten Stale Dated Cheques 

Miscellaneous 

Gain on disposal of fixed asset net of adjustment 

Depreciation 

Operating profit before working capital changes 

Increase in stocks 

Increase in receivables and prepayments 

(Increase)/decrease in payables and accruals 

Decrease in deferred income 

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 

Investing activities 

Packaging center 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 

Consisting: 

Cash on hand and bank 

90,921 

433,453 

200,000 

(622,118) 

18,202,10 I 

18,304,357 

(852,260) 

(355,490) 

477,374 

(4,434,561) 

13,139,420 

(197,252) 

(935,696) 

(1,132,948) 

12,006,472 

42,897,656 

54,904,129 

54,904,129 

54,904,129 

"The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements". 

5 

2014 

G$ 

5,051,278 

1,890,667 

23,060,634 

30,002,579 

(211,686) 

(251,083) 

(1,016,574) 

(l 21,330,748)

(92,807,512) 

(399,671) 

(10,305,016) 

(10,704,687) 

(103,512,199) 

146,409,855 

42,897,656 

42,897,656 

42,897,656 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Incorporation and activities 
The Corporation was incorporated in Guyana under Section 46 of the Public Corporation 
Act 19:05 of the laws of Guyana and is involved in the facilitation for exportation of non 
-traditional fresh and processed agricultural products.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISIW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS 

Effective for the current period 

IAS 19 Employee Benefits 
Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle 
Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle 

Effective for annual 
periods beginning on 
or after 

I February 20 I 5 
1 February2015 
I February 2015 

Annual Improvements 
The annual improvements program of the ]nternational Accounting Standards Board 
deals with amendments and clarifications to IFRS. 

IFRS 5 - Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations 
IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments Disclosure 
JFRS 9 - Financial Instruments 
IFRS 14 - Regulatory deferral accounts 
IFRS 15 - Revenue from contracts with customers 
IFRS I 0/IAS 28 - Amendments-Sale or contribution of assets 
IAS 16/IAS 38 - Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation and amortization 

IFRS 11 - Amendments- Disclosure initiative 
IAS 1- Amendments-Disclosure initiative 
IAS 16/IAS 41 - Amendments-Bearer plants 
IAS 27 - Amendments-Equity method in separate financial statements 
IAS 34 - Interim Financial Reporting 

Pronouncements effective in future periods 

New and Amcnclccl Standards 

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements 
IAS 16 & IAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of 
Depreciation and Amortisation 
IAS 16 & !AS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants 
!AS 27 Separate Financial Statements
IFRS 10 & IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets Between
Investor and Associate or Joint Venture
Disclosure Initiative Amendments to TAS I

6 

Effective for annual 

periods beginning on 
or after 

1 January 2016 
l January 2016

I January 2016 
l January 2016
l January 2016

1 January2016 
1 January 2016 

I 

I 

I 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

2. · · ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS 
- cont'd

3. 

Pronouncements effective in future periods 

New and Amended Standards 

Annual improvements -2012-2014 cycle 
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification, Measurement 
and additions for financial liability accounting 
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

The Company has not opted for early adoption. 

Effective for annual 
periods beginning on 
or after 

l July, 2016

1 January 2018 
I January 2018 

The standards and amendments that are expected to have an impact on the company's 
accounting policies when adopted are explained below: 

IFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
This standard provides a single, principles based five-step model to be applied to all 
contracts with customers as follows: 

Identify the contract with the customer 
Identify the performance obligations in the contract 
Determine the transaction price 
Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contracts 
Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation. 

Summary of significant accounting policies 

(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards.

(b) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention. The
principal accounting policies are set out below.

(c) Revenue and expense recognition

Revenue is recognized in the statement of income on an accrual basis at the fair value
of the consideration received.

Expenses are recognized on an accruals basis.

7 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

3·_ Summary of significant accounting policies- cont'd 

(d) Taxation

The Corporation is exempt from corporation and properly taxes. 

( c) Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than Guyana dollars are recorded at the rates of 
exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. 

At the end of each reporting period, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in 
foreign currencies arc retranslated to Guyana dollars at the Cambio rates prevailing 
on that date or at rates agreed by the Bank of Guyana. Non-monetary assets and 
liabilities carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are 
retranslated at rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Gains 
or losses arising on retranslation are included in the profit or loss for the period, 
except for exchange differences arising on non-monetary assets and liabilities where 
changes in fair value are recognized in the statement of changes in equity. 

(..f)_ .Erop_eiiy, plant anclequi.µntent and_tle_µrcciation 

Freehold land and buildings held for use in the supply of goods and services or for 
administrative purposes arc stated in the statement of financial position at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment loss. 

Depreciation on buildings is charged to profit or loss. 

Motor vehicles and machinery and equipment arc stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and any recognised impairment loss. 
No depreciation is provided on freehold land. Depreciation of other fixed assets is 
calculated on the straight line method at rates sufficient to write off the cost or 
valuation of these assets to their residual values over their estimated useful lives as 
follows: 

Building 
Motor vehicle 
Machinery and equipment 
Furniture and Fittings 

2% 
25 % 
10% 
12.50% 

Assets acquired during the year are depreciated from the date of acquisition. 

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever there is objective evidence to indicate 
that the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 
The excess of the carrying amount above the recoverable amount is written off to the 
profit or loss. 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON Tl-IE ACCOUNTS 

3. · - Summary of significant accounting policies- cont'd 

(f) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation- cont'd

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.

(g) Stocks

Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value based on the first-in­
first-out method. Net realizable value is the selling price in the normal course of
business less selling expenses.

(h) Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash and short term funds are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash
commitments rather than investment or other purposes.

These are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, with maturity dates of three
(3) months or less.

(i) Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value,
net of transaction costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense is recognised on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the_ rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

The Corporation derecognizes financial liabilities when its obligations are discharged,
cancel led or expire.

U) Financial assets

Trade and other receivables are measured at amortised cost. Appropriate allowances
for estimated unrecoverable amounts are recognized in profit or loss when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired. The allowance recognized is based 011 

management's evaluation of the collectability of the receivables.

9 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Summary of significant accounting policies-cont'd 

(k) Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the corporation reviews the carrying amounts of
its tangible assets to detennine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffored an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
corporation estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. If
the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.

(I) Provisions

Provisions are recogrrrsed when the--corpcwation has a present obli-gation (leg.al or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the corporation will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of each reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

(m) Business reporting divisions

A business reporting division is a component of an entity that is engaged in providing
products or services that are subject to risks and returns that are different from those
of other business divisions. A geographical division is engaged in providing products
or a service within a particular economic environment that are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of divisions operating in other economic
environments.
The corporation's operations are considered a single business unit with certain
activities segmented along geographical lines viz Guyana and outside of Guyana.

(n) Deferred income

This represents fertilizer subvention and grants from various agencies. This balance
is written off to income when utilized.

10 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Summary of significant accounting policies-co(1t'cl 

(o) Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the encl of each reporting
period. Financial assets are impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the investment have been impacted.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment is the
difference between the assets carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate.

(p) Derecognition of financial assets

The Corporation derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expire; or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the corporation
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Corporation recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
corporation retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Corporation continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

(q) Government Grants

Government grants received to compensate the Corporation's cost are recognised in
the statement of income in the period in which these costs are incurred.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty 

In the application of the Corporation's accounting policies, which are described in note 3, 
the directors arc required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. 
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other 
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 
to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the 
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the 
revision affects both current and future periods. 

11 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty- cont'd 

Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key somces of 
estimation uncertai11ty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a 
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial 
statements: 

i) 

ii) 

iii) 

Trade, other receivables and weRl!.Y-ment� 

On a regular basis, management reviews trade and other receivables to assess 
impairment. Based on information available as to the likely impairment in cash 
flows, decisions are taken in determining appropriate provisions to be made for 
impairment. 

Useful lives of property,_plant and equiRment 

Management reviews the estimated useful lives of p1�_iilitnt and equipment 
at the end of each year to determine whether the useful lives of property, plant 
and equipment should remain the same. 

Impairment of financial assets 

Management makes judgement at each reporting elate to determine whether 
financial assets are impaired. Financial assets are impaired when the carrying 
value is greater that the recoverable amount and there is objective evidence of 
impairment. The recoverable amount is the present value of the future cash flows. 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Turnover 

Turnover represents goods sold to third parties. 

Other Income 

Pack house services 

Rental of building 

Miscellaneous/other Income 

Cash overage 

Brokerage service 

Income from sale of tender 

Bank interest received 

Stale dated cheques written back 

Government Grants 

Subsidy capital 

Subsidy- subvention 

ALBA fund 

ASDU- generator 

Fertilizer subvention 

El Nino 

Buxton project 

Caribbean Week of Agriculture 

Land Utilization Project 

13 

2015 

0$ 

40,777,351 

4,125,734 

120,000 

1,284,904 

32,501 

1,257,200 

247,439 

433,453 

7,501,231 

126,638,563 

1,008,500 

1,600,000 

1,666,061 

160,000 

131,073,124 

2014 

G$ 

40,989,847 

2,459,638 

1,810,000 

4,768,688 

26,514 

1,318,600 

10,000 

681,151 

1,890,667 

12,965,258 

9,100,000 

115,713,547 

1,066,500 

1,600,082 

l l 4,410,300

402,101

63,000 

1,698,098 

200,000 

244,253,628 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON TI-IE ACCOUNTS 

2015 

G$ 

Selling and distrubution 

Advertising 3,197,520 

Spoilage 164,124 

Packaging expenses 198,340 

Freight & Airways 

3,559,984 

Administrative expenses 

Alba expense 1,008,500 

Audit fees 1,702,208 

Buxton expenditure 

Cleaning & sanitation 1,263,375 

Christmas celebration 678,285 

Travelling subsis- Crop Reporters --i .��-;120 

Computer expenses 147,199 

Customs duties 26,500 

Depreciation 18,202, I 01 

Donations 762,024 

ElectTicity 8,181,170 

El Nino expense 1,666,061 

Employment cost 69,763,767 

Caribbean Week of Agriculture 

Fertilizer expenses 

General expenses 2,736,779 

General consultancy & IT Technical Support 1,963,930 

Hotel accomodation 550,450 

Land Uitlization Project 160,000 

Balance carried forward 110,811,669 

14 

2014 

G$ . 

3,322,829 

206,704 

162,190 

4,000 

3,695,723 

1,066,500 

1,678,984 

63,000 

1,185,655 

571,600 

-1.mo40

160,708

30,272 

23,060,634 

334,675 

8,078,804 

402, IO 1 

59,799,910 

1,199,648 

111,204,726 

3,681,846 

2,234,400 

530,418 

200,000 

2 l 7,466,921 
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- I
9 Administrative expenses - cont'd 2015 2014 

G$ G$ 

Balance brought forward 110,81 1,669 217,466,921 

Insurance 929,503 1,148,496 

Meals & entertainment 1,439,520 1,270,817 

Legal fees 232,000 87,000 

) Promotional expenses 1,197,401 3,820,334 

Directors fees 685,000 1,111,000 

I I

Rates & taxes 625,266 749,007 

Rental 3,000,000 3,000,000 

' Repairs & maintainance 3,836,572 5,990,283 

I
Security 8,112,859 7,531,084 

. ) Stationery & printing 1,728,587 3,530,931 

Subscription 353,921 326,160 

I 
Sundry 797,559 812,188 

I Miscellaneous 200,000 

Telephone 1,533,135 1,382,477 

I \ 
Training 22,059 177,000 

I Transportation & travel 1,432,131 2,581,416 

Fuel and lubricant 2,954,328 2,865,763 

I ! 139,891,510 253,850,877 

I I
.1 10 Financial expenses 

I :l Bank charges 192,275 228,946 

Night deposit bags 104,400 83,520 

IJ 
With holding tax 49,488 136,230 

346,163 448,696 

I 

15 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

r, 
11 Properly, plant nnd equipment 

Freehold Machinery 

Land ancl uncl furniture & Motor Total 2014 

Duildings illl!J!pmcnl Filling� Vehicles 

0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ 

(a) Cost

Al I January 57,963,387 120,503,133 20,201,663 57,089,460 255,757,643 245,452,627 

Additions 523,162 412,534 935,696 10,305,016 

Disposal 437,650 7,966,43 I I, 123,055 1,461,200 10,988,336 

Al 31 December 57,525,737 I 13,059,864 19,'191,142 55,628,260 245,705,003 255,757,643 

Depreciation 

Al I January 5,172,308 48,735,076 13,081,270 115,422,247 112,410,901 89,350,269 

Charge for the year 1,081,354 11,166,385 1,768,835 4,185,527 18,202,101 23,060,632 

Disposal 1,243,278 7,238,616 1,033,906 1,461,200 10,977,000 

Al 31 December 5,0I0,3811 52,662,845 13,816,199 48,146,574 119,636,002 112,410,901 

_J_ Net book-values: 

At 31 December 2015 52,515,353 60,397,019 5,674,943 7,481,687 126,069,00 I 

At 31 December 2014 52,791,079 71,768,057 7,120,393 11,667,213 143,346,742 

·j
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

12 Stocks 

Finished goods 

All inventories are expected to be recovered within 12 months. 

13 Receivables and prepayments 

Trade receivables 
Guyana Sugar Corporation 
Other debtors 

14(a) Investments 

This amount represents monies allocated to construct 
a packaging center. 

14(6) Cash at bank 

Subvention Current Account 
Marketing Current Account 
Packaging Facilities Current Account 
Scotia Bank Fertiliser Account 
Scotia Bank Fertiliser Saving Account 

The interest rates on fixed deposit and short term 
deposit accounts are at varing rates from 2% to 4.5% 
(2014 - 4.5%) 

15 Government of Guyana 

17 

2015 
G$ 

4,867,468 

691,564 
86,994,711 

280,000 

87,966,275 

90,422,527 

28,914,611 
13,474,669 
8,183,030 

4,331,819 

54,904,129 

25,102,348 

2014 
G$ 

4,015,208 

286,073 
86,994,711 

330,000 

87,610,784 

90,225,275 

14,333,181 
10,583,822 
13,648,834 

9,000 
4,322,819 

42,897,656 

25,102,348 



(. 

I 

, l 

I 
�, 

I 
I 

... l 

J 

-i

I 6 Deferred income 

At 1 January 

Expended during the year 

At 31 December 

This represents: 

GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

2015 
G$ 

110,725,870 

(4,434,561) 

I 06,29 1,309 

2014 
G$ 

230,165,951 

(119,440,081) 

I 10,725,870 

(I) Unutilised funds from the following grants: ALBA Funds, EL Nino Funds,Buxton Project

North and South Pakaraima Project and Land Utilisation Project.

2015 

G$ 

17 Payables and accruals 

Accruals 1,767,415 

18 Related paity transactions and balances 

Parties are considered to be related if one patty has the ability lo control the other party 

2014 

G$ 

1,290,041 

or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operating decisions. 

K-ey-nnrn a gcment-p erso1111eJ--

(i) Compensation

Directors' emuluments

P. Cheong

P. R. Roopnarinc

R. Sukhai

V. De Silva

D. Doodnauth

B. Sears

D. Dbanraj

T. David

R. Jagarnauth

R. Prashad

V. Balgobin

R. Singh

A. Ameerally

M. Qualander

M. Johnson

M. Wilson

(ii) 

2015 

G$ 

60,000 

42,000 

42,000 

63,000 

63,000 

63,000 

42,000 

42,000 

63,000 

42,000 

14,000 

14,000 

42,000 

42,000 

30,000 

21,000 

685,000 

The company's key management personnel comprise its general manager. 

The remuneration paid to key management personnel for the year was as follows: 

Short term employee benefits 6 (2014-5) 23,175,989 

18 

2014 

G$ 

110,000 

77,000 

77,000 

77,000 

77,000 

77,000 

77,000 

77,000 

77,000 

77,000 

77,000 

77,000 

77,000 

77,000 

1,111,000 

19,767,695 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Analysis of financial assets and liabilities by measurement basis 
Other 

Financial assets 
Loans and and liabilities at 
receivable amortised cost 

G$ G$ 

2015 

Assets 

Receivable and prepayments 87,966,275 

Investment 90,422,527 

Cash on hand and at bank 54,904,129 

87,966,275 J 45,326,656 

Liabilities 

Payables and accruals 1,767,415 

Deferred income l 06,291,309

I 08,058,724 

2014 

Assets 

Receivables and prepayments 187,610,785 

Investment 90,225,275 

Cash on hand and at bank 42,897,656 

187,6 I 0,785 133,122,931 

Liabilities 

Payables and accruals 1,290,041 

Deferred income I I 0, 725,870 

112,015,911 

19 

Total 
G$ 

87,966,275 

90,422,527 

54,904,129 

233,292,931 

1,767,415 

106,291,309 

108,058,724 

187,610,785 

90,225,275 

42,897,656 

320,733,716 

1,290,041 

110,725,870 

112,015,911 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

20 Financial risk management 

Financial risk management objectives 

The corporation's management monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations 

of the corporation through internal risk reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude 

of risks. These risks include market risk ( currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk 

and liquidity risk. The corporation seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by the use of 

techniques that are governed by management's policies on foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk 

and credit risk which are approved by the board of directors. The corporation's management 

reports monthly to the board of directors on matters relating to risk and management of risk. 

(a) Market risk

The corporation's activities expose it to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange

rates and interest rates. The Corporation uses interest rate sensitivity and exposure limits to

financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign currency risk. There has

been no change in the corporation's exposure to market risks or the manner inwhiclllf manages

these risks.

(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate sensitivity analysis.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for all

financial instruments at the end of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming the

amounts of the financial instruments at the end of the reporting period were in existence

throughout the whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest

rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment of the

reasonable possible change in interest rates.

1f interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all the other variables were held 

constant, the Corporation's profit for the year would increase/decrease by 0$726,633 (2014: 

0$665,6 I 5). This is mainly attributable to the Corporation's exposure to interest rates on its 

balances at bank 

20 
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20 Financial risk nrnnugcmcnl - cont'd 

{a) Markel risk-cont'd 

(ii) Currency risk 

GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON Tl-IE ACCOUNTS 

The Corporation's exposure to the effects or fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates is minimal.At the end or the linancial year there
were no ussets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies.

(iii) Price risk 

Price risk is the risk that the value of linanciul instruments will fluctuate tts a result of changes in market prices whether those changes me 
caused by factors specific lo the individual security of its issuer or factors affecting all securities traded in the market. Munagemenl continually
identifies the risk and diversifies !he portfolio in order lo minimize the risk.

The corporution is not signilicanlly exposed lo other price risks arising from equity invcstmenls. 
(b) Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk llmt the corporntion will encounter diflicully in rnising funds lo meet iLs commitments associated with payables. The
corporation mnnngcs its liquidity risk by maintaining an appropriate level of resources in liquid or ncm liquid form.

The following lnblc shows the distribution of assets and liabilities by malurily:

Assets 

Rceeivublcs and prepayments 

Investment 

Cash on hand und al bank 

Liabilities 

Payables und accnials 

Net assets 

Asset.v 

Receivables and prepayments 

lnvcstmcnl 

Cash on hand und nl bank 

Liirbilitiel' 

Payables rn1d accruals 

Net assels 

Avcrugc 
interest 

rate 
% 

3% 

Average 

interest 
rate 
% 

21 

Maluring 
2015 

Within I year 
On Demand 

G$ 
Due 3 - 12 mths 

G$ 

87,966,275 

90,422,527 

54,904,129 

142,870,404 90,422,527 

1,767,415 

87,966,275 143,559,241 

Maluring 
2014 

Within I yeur 
On Demand Due 3 - 12 mlhs 

G$ GS 

,12,897,656 

42,897,656 

112,897,656 

87,610,785 

90,225,275 

177,836,060 

1,290,041 

1,290,041 

176,546,0 I 9 

G$ 

87,966,275 

90,422,527 

54,904,129 

233,292,931 

1,767,415 

231,525,516 

G$ 

87,610,785 

90,225,275 

42,897,656 

220,733,716 

1,290,041 

1,290,041 

219,4113,675 
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20 Financial "risk management - cont'd 

(c) Credit risk

GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Credit risk is the risk that financial loss arises from failure ofa customer to meet its obligations under a
contract, il arises in the case ol'thc corporation, principally from receivable and cash resources holdings.

Cash and bank includes balances hdd al linancial institutions, These banks have been assessed by the Directors
us being credit worlhly, with very strong capacity to meet their obligations as they fall due.

The corporation's exposure lo credit risk is continuously monitored to ensure that amounts arc recovered.
Management implicitly monitors the analysis or credit risk porllolio.
The corporation docs not have any significant credit risk exposure lo any single counterparly or any group of
counlerparties having similar characteristics.

Maximum exposure to credit rislc without taking account of any collateral and other
credit enhancements.
The table below shows the Corporation's maximum exposure to credit risk.

2015 
Gross maximum exposure: G$ 

Receivables (i) 87,966,275 

Investment 90,422,527 

Cash resources al banks 54,904,129 

Total credit risk exposure 233,292,932 

2014 
G$ 

87,610,785 

90,225,275 

42,897,656 

220,733,716 

Where financial instruments arc recorded al fair value the amounts shown above represents the current credit risk 
exposure but not the maximum risk exposure that could arise in the future as a result or changes in values. 

(i) This represent trade receivable which arc collectible

Concentration of risk is managed by client/countcrparly, by geographical region and by industry sector 
as dclailcd in the following: 

Geographical sectors 

The corporation's maximum credit exposure, after laking account ur credit loss provisions established 
can be analysed by the following geographical sectors based on lhc country of domicile of counterparlics: 

Guyana 

The above balances arc clussified as follows:. 

Current 

22 

2015 
G$ 

87.966,275 

87,966,275 

87.610,784 

87,610,784 

I 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON TBE ACCOUNTS 

21 Capital risk management 

The corporation manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a 

going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation 

of the debt and equity balance.The corporation's overall strategy remains 

unchanged from 2014. 

The capital structure of the corporation consists of cash equivalents and equity 

attributable to the Government of Guyana, comprising capital, reserves and 

retained earnings. 

22 Approval of the financial statements 

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors on February 15, 2018. 

23 
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ii;E]LAL&CO. 
Our Ref: SR/HI-I/vs/1222 

February 15, 2018 

The Chairman & Board of Directors 
Guyana Marketing Corporation 
Robb and Alexander Street, 
GEORGETOWN. 

Dear Sirs, 

Chartered Accountants 

In accordance with our normal practice, we are reporting the results of our study and evaluation of 
Guyana Marketing Co11)oration internal accounting controls and procedures for the year ended 
December 31, 2015. The matters discussed in this letter should be read in corrjtmction with 
Appendix A, which sets out the context of our study and evaluation. Appendix A fLuther indicates 
that our study and evaluation is related solely to the audit and is not designed for a separate opinion 
on the internal accounting control systems. While we cannot, therefore, express an opinion on the 
system of internal accounting control taken as a whole, our study and evaluation did disclose certain 
matters that do not constitute material wealmesses. 

MATTER PREVIOUSLY REPORTED 

1. RECEIVABLES

Comment

We noted that a loan balance clue from E. Overton was coming forward from
previous years.

MATTERS NOW REPORTING 

INTERIM AUDIT 

1. CASH SALES

Comments

1.1 We noted that daily sales statements were not signed 'prepared by' and 'checked 
by'. 

1.2 There was no indication on the daily sales statements for shortages or overages. 

Tel: 592-226-3226-8/225-0846 / Fax: 592-225-7578 
www.tsdlal.com I Email: drt@networksgy.com 
TSO Lal & Co. 77 llrickdam, PO llox 10506, Georgetown, Guyana 

Partners R. Lal - FCCA / C. Douglas - FCCA / S. Rahaman - FCCA / M. Chu-a-Kong- FCCA 
Histo1y 18 Febrnary 1966- Founded Thomas, Stoll, Dias & Co. (TSO) 

31 May 1978 -A member ofTouche Ross International 
11 September 1991 to 30 December 2009 - Deloitte & Tonche AUDIT, TAX, CONSULTING, FINANCIAL ADVISORY 

I 

I 

f 



I I

I l 

11 

I I 

I .I 

I _I

I I 

, The Chainmm & Board of Directors 
Guyana Marketing Corporation 

February 15, 2018 

Page 02 

MATTERS NOW REPORTING-CONT'D 

INTERIM AUDIT-CONT'D 

CASH SALES-CONT'D 

Implications 

1.1 
& 
1.2 The system of internal control may not be operating effectively. 

Recommendations 

1.1 
& 

1.2 Management should adhere to internal control procedures. 

Client's Comments 

1.1 Noted. Correction was made to this and system has been put in place to ensure 
timely checking off of daily sales statements. 

1.2 Noted. Correction was made to this and system put in place to ensure timely 
checking off of daily sales statements. 

FINAL AUDIT 

1. FIXED AS SETS

Comments

1.1 The following documents were outstanding: 

- Impairment Letter
- Property title
- Board minutes documenting approval for fixed assets written off

1.2 The following vehicle registrations were outstanding. 

- PGG7369
-GMM8445

/3 ... 
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MATTERS NOW REPORTING-CONT'D 

FINAL AUDIT-CONT'D 

FIXED ASSETS-CONT'D 

Implications 

1.1 
To 
1.2 Fixed asset balances may not be fairly stated. 

Recommendations 

1.1 
& 
1.2 Management should ensure that these documents are provided to us. 

Client's Comments 

1.1 
To 
1.2 Noted. 

2. RECEIVABLES

Comments

Confirmation was outstanding from Guyana Sugar Corporation. 2.1 

2.2 No provision for impairment was made for the balance clue from Guyana Sugar 
Corporation. 

Implications 

2.1 
To 

2.2 Receivables balance may not be fairly stated. 

Recommendations 

2.1 Management should follow up this confirmation and ensure that it is provided to 
LIS. 

2.2 Management should assess the recoverability of its receivables and consider the 
need for a provision for impairment. 
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Guyana Marketing Co'rporation 
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MATTERS NOW REPORTING-CONT'D 

FINAL AUDIT-CONT'D 

RECEIVABLES-CONT'D 

Client's Comments 

2.1 Noted. 

2.2 Over the years, this debtor when contacted always promised to clear this debt in 
the requested years. However, this debt will be treated in 2016 as bad debt. 

3. CASH AND BANK

Comments

3. I Several bank confirmations were outstanding. See appendix 1. 

3.2 Confirmation for the Fertilizer savings account could not be obtained because the 
signatories were no longer with Guyana Marketing Corporation and the account 
was under investigation by the Special Organised Crime Unit. 

3.3 Returned cheque# 322002565 was outstanding. 

Implications 

3.1 
To 

3.3 Cash and bank balances may not be fairly stated. 

Recommendations 

3.1 Management should follow up these confirmations and ensure that they are 
provided to us. 

3.2 Management should ensure that the signatories are updated upon completion of 
the investigation. 

3 .3 Management should ensure that this cheque is provided to us. 

/5 ... 
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MA TIERS NOW REPORTING-CONT'D 

FINAL AUDIT-CONT'D 

CASH AND BANK-CONT'D 

Client's Comments 

3.1 
To 
3.2 Noted. 

3.3 No comment received. 

4. PAYABLES

--Con1111e1-1t-

Several expenses were not accrued for. See appendix 2.

Implication

Payables balance may not be fairly stated.

Recommendation

Management should ensure that all expenses incurred during the period and not paid are
accrued for.

Client's Comment

Noted.

5. LOANS

Comments

5.1 We noted that payment voucher number 16604 for G$400,000 paid to Dane Duke 
on 09.04.2015 did not have proper supporting documentation (loan agreement). 

5.2 There were several payment vouchers which were outstanding. See appendix 3. 
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The Chairman & Board of Directors
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MATTERS NOW REPORTING-CONT'D 

FINAL AUDIT-CONT'D 

LOANS-CONT'D 

Implications 

5.1 
& 
5.2 Loan balances may not be fairly stated 

Recommendations 

5.1 Management should ensure that all payment vouchers contain adequate 
supporting documentation. 

5.2 Management should ensure that these vouchers are provided to us. 

Client's comments 

5.1 
To 
5.2 Noted. 

6. BUSINESS REVIEW

Comment

The Corporation continues to receive subvention from the Government of Guyana to
finance it operations. Profits for the year decreased by 94 percent when compared with
the previous _year.

Implication

The Corporation may be unable to sustain it operations in the f1.1ture.

Recommendation

Management should ensure that the Corporation increases its activities to maintain
sustainability.

Client's Conunent

Noted. Systems have been put in place to increase revenue stream.

17 . . .
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The information contained in this letter is intended solely for the use of Management and the Board 
of Directors and should not be used for any other purpose. 

We wish to thank management and staff for the co-operation extended to us during the course of the 
audit. 

Yours faithful 

Cc: Mr. Owen Nester 
Accountant 
Guyana Marl�eting Corporation 

Mr. D Sharma 
Auditor General 
Audit Office of Guyana 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

APPENDIX A 

Our study and evaluation of the system of internal accounting control was made as part of our 
examination of the financial statements of Guyana Marketing Corporation for the year ended 
December 31, 2015 on which we reported in our auditor's report dated February 15, 2018. 

During our examination we studied and evaluated Guyana Marketing Corporation system of 
internal accounting controls, to the extent we considered necessary in order to meet requirements of 
International Standards on Auditing. These standards require a study and evaluation of internal 
accmmting control only for the purpose of determining the nature, timing and extent of the auditing 
procedures necessary for expressing an opinion on Guym1a Marketing Corporation financial 
statements. Our study and evaluation is therefore, more limited than would be necessary to express 
an opinion on the system of internal accounting control taken as a whole, and would not necessarily 
disclose all material weaknesses in the system. 

We 1mderstand that management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining a 
system of internal accounting control and is required to assess, using estimates and judgements, the 
expected benefit and related costs of control procedures. In our audit we remain alert to situations 
where improvements should be considered or where controls may no longer be cost effective. 
Consequently, we make recommendations related to the objectives of a system which is designed to 
provide management with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded against 
loss from unauthorised use or disposition, and that transactions are executed in accordance with 
management's authorization and recorded properly to permit the preparation of financial statements 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

Because of inherent limitations in any system of internal accounting control, errors or inegularities 
may nevertheless occur and not be detected. Also, projection of any evaluation of the system to 
future periods is subject to the risk that procedures may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions or that the degree of compliance with the procedures may deteriorate. 
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Ms. lda Sealey-Adams 
General Managei· 
Guyana Marketing Corporation 
Robb & Alexander Streets 
Georgetown. 

Dear Ms. Sealey-Adams, 

AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 
GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 

24 July 2018 

Please find allached nine (9) copies of the audited financial statements, together with the report 
of lhe Auditor General, thereon. 

Should you need any further explanation, please do not hesitate to contact us. 

With best regards. 

Yours sincerely, 
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL 
,,. TO THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

TI-IE GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 
ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 

.. 

24 July 2018 

Cliarlered Ac<.:ountants TSD Lal & Company Chartered Accountants have audited on my behalf the 
-ftnarrcirrl statemerrts-of--Guymm--Mark:et-ing-Eorporatiem, \/\lflid1-con1prise tl1e staternent ef t-i-rn1-f!c·itil­

positio11 us at 31 December 2016, and the statement of income, statement of changes in equity and the
statement of cash l1ows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
explanatory notes as set out on pages 2 to 26.

In my opinion, expect for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
parugrapbs, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Guyana Marketing Corporation as at J 1 December 2016 and of its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs).

TJasis.fc>r Qual[/ied Opinion

The amount of $88,472,210 is reflected in the statement of financial position as receivables and
prepayments. ln<.:Iuded in this balance is an amount of $86,994,711 due from the Guyana Sugar
Corporation and outstanding for more than one year i<.1r which no provision was made. The
rccnvcrnbilily oft.his ammmt is uncertain.

/\ccordingly, receivables and prepayments would have been reduced by $86,994,711 while profit for the
year would have been reduced by $86,994,711.
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Basis/hr Opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (JSAs) issued by 
the International Federation of Accountants (IF AC), the International Standards of Supreme 
Audit Institutions (ISSAis) and the Audit Act 2004. My responsibilities under those standards 
arc further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of my report. I am independent of the Guyana Marketing Corporation in accordance with 
the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit of the financial statements in Guyana, and I 
have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. I believe 
the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinio�1. 

Responsibi!Wes of Management and Those Charged ·with Governance for the Financial 
Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Corporation's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Corporation or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Corporation's financial 
reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities.for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor's report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs and ISSAis will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if-: individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs and ISSAis, I exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also: 

0 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

111 
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• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressirig an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation's internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropria teness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Corporatioh's
ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material unce1iainty exists, I
am required to draw attention in my auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the elate of my auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Corporation to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and contenl of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit. 

I also provide those charged with governance with a statement that I have complied with the 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regula!otJJ Requirements 

The financial statements comply with the requirements of Public Corporation Ordinance. 

AUDIT OFFICE 
63 HIGH STREET 

KINGSTON 
GEORGETOWN 
GUYANA 

IV 

I 

r 



( 

I 
REPORT OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS TSO LAL & CO 

TO THE AUDITOR GENERAL 

ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF 

GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2016 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

,,; 

We have audited the financial statements of Guyana Marketing Corporation, which comprise the statement of 
financial positio,r-as at 3.1 December, 2016, and the statement of income, statement of changes in equity and 
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our 
report, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Guyana Marketing Corporation as at 31 December, 2016, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the 
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ([FRSs). 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

The Corporation receivables and prepayments are carried in the statements of financial position at $88,472,210. 
Included in this balance is an amount of$ 86,994,711 due from the Guyana Sugar Corporation and outstanding 
for more than one year for which no provision was made. The recoverability of this amount is uncertain. 

Accordingly, receivables and prepayments would have been reduced by$ 86,994,711 while profit for the would 
have been reduced by $86,994,711. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of Guyana Marketing Corporation in accordance with the International 
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together 
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Guyana, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is s·ufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the financial 
statements, management is responsible for assessing the Corporation's ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Corporation or to cease operations, or has 110 realistic i:dternative but 
to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Corporation's financial reporting process. 



Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the l◄'inancial Statements 

Our objectives arc to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial slalemcnls as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with lSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and arc considered material iJ: individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. As part of an audit in 
accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism 
throughout the audit. We also: 

� 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstalemcnl of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
· design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate lo provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulling from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, inlenlional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override or internal control.

• Obtain an understanding or internal control relevant to the audit in order lo design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of lhe
Corporation's internal control.

__. E-valuatG the appro-priateneas .. of accounting pol.icie_5_uscd and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to evenls or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Corporation's ability to continue as a going concern. 1f we conclude that a material
uncertainly exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures arc inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions arc based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the dale of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Corporation to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presenlation, structme and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and "vhether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner thal achieves
fo ir presentation.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements - cont'd . 

. . We communicate _with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
· and significant audit findings, including any signi ficant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit. 

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably 
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

The financial statements comply with the requirements of Public Corporation Ordinance. 

�y /47,,/ I cc.;.>�

TSDLAL &CO. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Date: June 30, 2018 

77 Brickdam, 
Stabroek, Georgetown, 
Guyana 
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Turnover 

Cost of sales 

Gross profit 

,,. 
Other income 

Government grant 

Selling and distribution 

AdministFative expenses 

Profit before interest 

Financial expenses 

Profit for the year 

GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

STATEMENT OF INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2016 

Notes 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

2016 

G$ 

42,100,977 

36,073,150 

6,027,827 

7,359,160 

147,552,294 

160,939,281 

1,766,159 

14"l,522_,_1_68 

11,650,954 

414,285 

11,236,669 

2015 

G$ 

40,777,351 

35,463,128 

5,314,223 

7,301,23'1 

131,073,124 

143,688,578 

3,559,984 

139,691,510 

437,084 

346,163 

90,921 

"The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements" 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECE:MBER 2016 

Balance at 1 January 2015 

Profit for the yea r-20 ·15 

Balance at 31 December,2015 

�:al. 

F'rofit for the year-2016 

Balance at 31 December 2016 

Government of 
Guyana 

G$ 

25,102,348 

25,102,348 

25,102,348 

Retained 
earnings 

G$ 

230,977,407 

90,921 

231,068,328 

11,23_6,669 

242,304,997 

"The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements". 
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Total 
G$ 

256,079,755 
�-

90,921 

256,170,676 

11,236,669 

267,407,345 
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ASSETS 

Non current assets 

Property,plant and equipment 

Current assets 

Inventory ·� 
Receivables and prepayments 
Investment 
Cash at bank 

TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Capital and reserves 

Government of Guyana 
Retained earnings 

Non current liability 

Deferred income 

Current liabilities 

Payables and accruals 

GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016 

11 

12 
13 

14(a) 
14(b) 

15 

16 

17 

2016 
G$ 

116,090,239 

3,583,002 
88,472,210 
91,020,466 
73,340,545 

256,416,224 

372,506,463 

25,102,348 
242,304,997 
267,407,345 

'103,563,264 

1,535,854 

1,535,854 

2015 
G$ 

126,069,001 

4,867,468 
87,966,275 
90,422,526 
54,904,'l 30 

238, 160,399 

364,229,400 

25,102,348 
231,068,328 
256,170,676 

106,291,309 

1,767,4'15 

1,767,415 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 372,506,463 364,229,400 

,- � �){I?. \'These financial statements were approved by the Directors on .S.Jt�!,,.-;.. ... ··:? ... t··:'.�(.\-. 
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"The accompanying nolcs ·lixm an intcgrnl parl orthcsc financial statements". 
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GUYANA MARKETI_NG CORPORATION 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 

2016 

Operating activities 
Profit for the year 

Adjustments for: 
Rewritten Stale Dated Cheques 
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of asset 
Depreciation 

Operating profit bef;�e working capital changes 

Decrease/(increase) in inventory 
Decrease/(increase) in receivables and prepayments 
lncrease/(decrease) in payables and accruals 
Decrease in deferred income 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Investing activities 

Purcl1ase of property,plant and equipment 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents al beginning of period 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 

Consisting: 

Cash on hand and bani< 

G$ 

11,236,669 

40,951 

17,009,128 

28,286,748 

1,284,466 
(505,935) 
(231,561) 

(2,728,045) 

26,105,673 

(7,071,317) 

(7,071,317) 

19,034,356 

145,326,656 

164,361,011 

164,361,011 

164,361,011 

"The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements''. 

5 

2015 
G$ 

90,921 

�3,453 
(22,117) 

18,202,101 

18,304,358 

(852,260) 

(355,491) 

477,374 

(4,434,561) 

13,139,420 

(935,696) 

(935,696) 

12,203,724 

133,122,931 

145,326,656 

145,326,656 

145,326,656 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

I .Incorporation and activities 

The Corporation was incorporated in Guyana under Section 46 of the Public Corporation 
Act 19:05 of the laws of Guyana and is involved in the facilitation for exportation of non 
-- traditional fresh and processed agricultural products. The company commenced its 
operations on .July 1, 2007. 

2. Ne"" and amended standards and interpretations

Amendments effective for the current year encl 

New and Amended Standards 

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 
--1E.RS_ll__Joint Anangements 
IAS 16 & IAS 3 8 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of 

Depreciation And Amortization 
lAS 16 & IAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants 
JAS 27 Separate Financial Statements 
IFRS 10 & lAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets Between 

Investor and Associate or .Joint Venture 
Disclosure Initiative Amendments to IAS 1 
ff RS 1 0, JFRS 12 & IAS 28 Applying Consolidation Exceptions 
Annual Improvements 20 I 2-2014 Cycle 
Pronouncements effective in future period for early adoption 

New and Amended Standards 
IAS 12 Jncome taxes 
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures 

IFRS 2 Share based Payment: Classification and 

measurement of share based transactions 
IFRS 4 lnsurance contracts: Applying JFRS 9 
"Financial Instrument"wilh "TFRS 4 "Insurance Contracts" 
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement 
IF.RS 9 Additions for Financial Liability Accounting 

6 

Effective for 
annual 
periods 
beginning 
on or after 

1 January2016 
1 January 2016 

l .lanuary2016
1 January 2016
1 .January 2016

1 January 2016 
l .January 2016
1 .January 2016
1 July2016

1 January 2017 
1 January 2017 

1 January 2018 

I January 2018 
1 January 2018 
1 .January 2018 

I 

I 

I I 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

2. New and amended standards and interpretations

Amendments effective for the current year encl 

]>ronouncements effective in future period for early adoption 

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts With Customers 
IrRS 16 Leases 

The Compaqy has not opted for early adoption. 

1 January 2018 
I January 2019 

The standards and amendments that are expected to have a material impact on the 
Company's accounting policies when adopted are explained below. 

IAS 12: Income Taxes 
The amendments to ]AS 12: Income Tax arc to be applied retrospectively and are 
effective from 1 January 2017 with earlier application permitted. The amendments were 
issued to clarify recognition of deforred tax assets for unrealized losses related to debt 
instruments measured at fair value in the financial statements but at cost for tax purposes 
can give rise to deductible temporary differences. 

The amendments also clarify that: 
The carrying amount of Em asset does not limit the estimation of probably future 
profits; and that; 
when comparing deductible temporary differences with future taxable profits, the 
future taxable profits excludes tax deductions resulting from the reversal of those 
deductible temporary differences; 

The directors have nol yet performed a detailed analysis of the impact of the application 
of the amendments and hence have not yet quantified the extent of the impact. 

7 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

2. New and i1mendcd standards and interpretations

Amendments effective for the current year end 

Pronouncements effective in future period for early adoption 

JFRS 2-Sharc based payment 
The amendment to IFRS 2-Share Based Payment clarifies the classification and 
measurement of share-based payment tTansactions. The amendments arc as follows:-
(a) Aceo_unting for cash-settled share-based payment transactions that include a

perfoi·mance condition;
(b) Classification of share-based payment transactions with net settlement features;
(c) Accounting for modifications of share-based payment transactions from cash­

settled to equity-settled;

The directors have not yet performed a detailed analysis of the impact of the application 
of the amendments and hence have not yet quantified the extent of the impact. 

IFRS 9-Financial instrument 
IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after I January 2018 with earlier 
application permitted. Early adoption must apply all of the requirements in IFRS 9 at the 
same time, except for those relating to: 

I. The presentation of frtir value gains and losses attributable to changes in the credit risk
of financial liabilities designated as al FVTPL, the requirements for which an entity may
early apply withoul applying the other requirements in JFRS 9; and
hedge accounting, for which an entity may choose to continue to apply the hedge
accounting requirements of !AS 39 insteud of the requirements of IFRS 9.

2.The standard contains specific transitional provisions for:
i) classification and measurement of financial assets;
ii) impairment of financial assets; and
iii) hedge accolmting.
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

3. Smninary of significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statemenls have been prepared in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards. 

(b) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention. 
The principal accounting policies are set out below. 

( c) Revenue and expense recognition

Revenue is recognized in the statement of income on an accrual basis at the fair 
value of the consideration received. 

Expenses are recognized on an accruals basis. 

( cl) Taxation

The Corporation is exempt from corporation and property taxes. 

( e ) Foreign currencies 

Transactions in currencies other than Guyana dollars are recorded at the rates of 
exchange prevailing on the elates of the transactions. 

At the encl of each reporting period, monetary assets and liabilities denominated 
in foreign currencies are retranslated to Guyana dollars at the Cambia rates 
prevailing on that date or at rates agreed by the Bank of Guyana. Non-monetary 
assets and liabilities carried at fair value that arc denominated in foreign 
currencies are retrnnslated at rates prevailing on the elate when the fair value was 
determined. Gains or losses arising on retranslation are included in the profit or 
loss for the·period, except for exchange differences arising on non-monetary 
assets and liabilities where changes in fair value are recognized in the statement 
of changes in equity. 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

3. Summary of significant.accounting policies- cont'd

(I) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Freehold land and buildings held for use in the supply of goods and services or for
administrative purposes are stated in the statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment loss.

Depreciation on buildings is charged to profit or loss.

Motor vehicles and machinery and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
deprecisition and any recognised impairment loss.

No depreciation is provided on freehold land. Depreciation of other fixed assets is
calculated on the straight line method at rales sufficient to write off the cost or
valuation of these assels to their residual values over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Building 
Me to r---veh-i-cl e­
Machincry and equipmcnl 

Furniture and Fittings 

2% 
25 % 
10% 

12.50% 

Assets acquired during the year arc depreciated from the date of acquisition. 

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever there is objective evidence to 
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated 
recoverable amount. The excess of the carrying amount above the recoverable 
amount is written off to the profit or loss. 

The gain or loss arising on the disposal orr etirement of an item of property,plant 
and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss. 

(g) Inventory
Inventory are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value based on the 
first-in-first-out method. Net realizable value is the selling price in the normal 
course of business less selling expenses. 

(h) Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash and short term funds arc held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash 
commitments rather than investment or other purposes. 

These arc readily convertible lo known amounts of cash, wilh maturity dates of 
lhree (3) months or less. 

JO 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

3. Summary of significant accounting policies- cont'd

(i ) Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instrnments are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair
value, net of transaction costs.

-�
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense is recognised on an effective yield
basis.

The cffoctive interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or where appropriate,
a shorter period.

The Corporation clerecognizes financial liabilities when its obligations are
discharged, cancelled or expire.

(j ) Financial assets

Trade and other receivables are measured at am011ised cost. Appropriate 
allowances for estimated unrecoverable amounts are recognized in profit or loss 
when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. The allowance 
recognized is based on management's evaluation of the collectability of the 
receivables. 

11 
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GUY ANA MARJU:<:TING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

3. Suminary of significant accounting policies-cont'd

(k) lmpainnent of tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the corporation reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible assets lo determine whether there is any indication that lhose assets
have suffered an impairment Joss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable ,.
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the corporation estimates the recoverable amount of the cash­
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

-� 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
If therecoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or Joss, unless the relevant
asset is carried al a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is lreatcd
as a revaluation decrease.

( 1 ) Provisions 

Provisions arc recognised when the corporation has a present obligation (legal or 
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the corporation will be 
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best 
estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the encl of 
each reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding 
the obligation. 

(m) Business reporting divisions

A business reporting division is a component of an entity that is engaged in
providing products or services that arc subject to risks and returns that arc
different from lhose of other business divisions. A geographical division is
engaged in 'providing products or aservicc within a particular economic
environment that arc subject lo risks and returns thatarc different from those of
divisions operating in other economic environments.
The corporation's operations arc consiclerccl a single business unit with certain

acliviticssegmentcd along geographical lines viz Guyana and outside of Guyana.

( n ) Deferred Income 

This represents fertilizer subvention and grants from various agencies. This 
balance is written off lo income when utili%.ccl. 
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·GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

3. Summary of significant accounting policies-cont'd

( o) Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impainnent at the encl of each reporting
period. Financial assets arc impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after initial recognition of the financial asset, the .,
estimated future cash flows of the investment have been impacted.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment is the
difference between the assets carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future c;sh flows, discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate.

( p) Derecognition of financial assets

The Corporation derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire; or it transfers the :financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If
the corporation neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Corporation recognises
its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the corporation retains substantially a11 the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred :financial asset, the Corporation continues to recognise the :financial
asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

( q) Government Grants

Government grants received to compensate the Corporation's cost arc recognised in
the statement of income in the period in which these costs are incurred.

4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty 

In the application of the Corporation's accounting policies, which arc described in 
note 3, the directors arc required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions 
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from 
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical 
experience and other factors that arc considered to be relevant. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Revisions to accounting estimates arc recognised in the period in which the estimate 
is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and 
future periods if the revision a ffects both current and future periods. 

13 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty - cont'd 

Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of • 
estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a 
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial 
stalemen1_�: 

(i) Trade, other receivables and prepayments

ii) 

iii) 

On a regular basis, management reviews trade and other receivables to assess
impairment. Based on information available as to lhe likely impairment in cash
flows, decisions are taken in determining appropriate provisions to be made for
impairment.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment 

Management reviews the estimated usefi.t! lives of property, plant and equipment 
at the encl of each year to determine whether the useful Jives of property, plant and 
equipment should remain the same. 

Impairment of financial assets 

Management makes judgemcnl at each reporting date to determine whether 
financial assets are impaired. Financial assets are impaired when the carrying 
value is greater that the recoverable amount and there is objective evidence of 
impairment. The recoverable amount is the present value of the fut1.1re cash flows. 
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5 Turnover 

GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

2016 

G$ 

42,100,977 

Turnover represents goods sold to third parties. 

6 Other Income 

Pack House Services 

Rental of building 

Miscellaneous/Qtl1er Income 

Cash Overage 

Brokerage Service 
Income from sale of tender 

Bank interest received 

Stale dated cheques written back 

7 Government Grants 

Subsidy Capital 

Subsidy- Subvention 

ALBA Fund 

ASDU- Generator 

North and South Pal<araima Project 

El Nino 

Caribbean Week of Agriculture 
Land Utilization Project 

15 

5,417,200 

216,327 

16,023 

901,200 
16,500 

749,675 

42,235 

7,359,160 

5,000,000 

139,824,249 

1,600,000 

300,000 

194,800 

633,245 

147,552,294 

2015 

G$ 

40,777,351 

� 

4,325,734 

120,000 

1,284,904 

32,501 

1,257,200 

247,439 

33,453 

7,301,231 

126,638,563 

1,008,500 

1,600,000 

1,666,061 

160,000 

131,073,124 



GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

8 Selling and distrubution 
Advertising 
Spoilage 
Packaging Expenses 

j·

9 Administrative expenses 
Alba expense 
Audit fees ·� 
Cleaning & sanitation 
Christmas celebration 
Travelling Subsis- Crop Reporters 
Computer expenses 
Customs duties 
Depreciation 

�

Donations 
Electricity 

El Nino expense 

I 
Employment cost 
Caribbean Week of Agriculture 
Loss on disposal 
North & South Pakarima Expenses 

General expenses 
General consultancy & IT Technical Support 
Hotel accomodation 

i 
Land Uitlization Project 

,- Balance carried forward 

16 

2016 
G$ 

1,398,908 

203,251 

164,000 

1,766,159 

1,539,947 

707,882 

1,661,156 

302,305 

28,815 

17,009,128 

970,000 

7,560,624 

194,800 

76,887,816 

633,245 

40,951 

300,000 

2,361,685 

3,483,055 

1,307,044 

114,988,453 

2015 
G$ 

3,197,520 

164,124 

198,340 

3,�9,984 

1,008,500 

1,702,208 

1,263,375 

678,285 

1,999,320 

147,199 

26,500 

18,202,101 

762,024 

8,181,170 

1,666,061 -

69,763,767 

2,736,779 

1,963,930 

550,450 

160,000 

110,811,669 

I 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

9 Administrative .expenses - cont'd 2016 

G$ 

Balance brought forward 

Insurance 

Meals & Enteriainment 

Legal Fees 

Promotional Expenses 

Directors Fees 

Rates & Taxes 

Rental 

Repairs & Mair.:itainance 

Security 

Stationery & Printing 

Subscription 

Sundry 

Telephone 

Training 

Transportation & Travel 

Fuel and Lubricant 

Bad Debt 

10 Financial expenses 

Bank charges 

Night deposit bags 

With holding tax 

17 

114,988,453 

1,393,033 

1,649,892 

58,000 

1,695,704 

536,000 

903,273 

3,000,000 

3,827,894 

9,105,111 

1,661,436 

384,720 

559,227 

1,518,540 

458,320 

2,147,663 

3,504,902 

130,000 

147,522,168 

159,950 

104,400 

149,935 

414,285 

2015 

G$ 

110,811,669 

929,503 

1,439,520 

232,000 

1,197,401 

685,000 

625,266 

3,000,000 

3,836,572 

8,112,859 

1,728,587 

353,921 

797,559 

1,533,135 

22,059 

1,432,131 

2,954,328 

139,691,510 

192,275 

104,400 

49,488 

346,163 



GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATIIN 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 
11 Fixed assets 

Freehold Machinery 
Land and and F�miture &
Buildings Eauioment Fittings 

G$ G$ G$ 
(a) Cost

l9,491,142 At 1 January 2016 57,525,737 113,059,864 
Additions 4,324,281 2,214,420 532,616 
Disposal - 290,805 170,804 

-

At 31 December 2016 61,850,018 114,983,479 J9,852,954 
Depreciation 

At 1 January 2016 5,010,384 52,662,845 13,816,199 
Charge for the year 1,087,040 11,258,490 1,401,098 
Disposal 260,290 160,367 

At 31 December 2016 6,097,424 63,661,045 15,056,930 

Net book values: 

At 31 December 2016 55,752,594 51,322,434 4,796,024 

At 31 December 2015 52,515,353 60,397,019 5,674,943 

lR 

2016 
Motor Total 

Vehicles 
G� G$ 

55,628,260 245,705,003 
7,071,317 

461,609 

55,628,260 252,314,711 

48,146,574 119,636,002 
3,262,500 17,009,128 

420,658 

51,409,074 136,224,472 

4,219,187 116,090,239 

7,481,687 

,. 

2015 

G$ 

255,757,643 
935,696 

10,988,336 

245,705,003 

112,410,901 
18,202,101 
10,977,000 

119,636,002 

126,069,001 

i::-,, .. ..-.ii -
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

12 Inventory 

Finished goods 

All inventories are expected to be recovered within 12 months. 

13 Receivables and prepayments 

,,. 

Trade Receivables 
Guyana Sugar Corporation 
Other Receivables 

14 (a) Investments 

This amount represents monies allocated to construct a 

package centre. 

14 (b) Cash At Bank 

Subvention Current Account 
Marketing Current Account 
Packaging Facilities Current Account 

Scotia Bank Fertiliser Saving Account 

The interest rates on fixed deposit and short term 
deposit accounts are at varing rates from 2% to 4.5% 
(2015 - 4.5%) 

15 Government of Guyana 

19 

2016 
G$ 
3,583,002 

2015 
G$ 
1,257,499 

86,994,711 
220,000 

88,472,210 

91,020,466 

38,230,936 
18,932,623 
11,845,167 

4,331,819 

73,340,545 

25,102,348 

2015 
G$ 
4,867,468 

20·14 
G$ 

691,564 
86,994,711 

280,000 

87,966,275 

90,422,527 

28,914,611 
13,474,669 

8,'183,031 

4,331,819 

54,904,130 

25,102,348 
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18 

Deferred income 

Opening balance 
Received during the year 

GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

2016 
G$ 

106,291,309 

Expended during the year (2,728,045) 

Closing balance 103,563,264 

This represents: 

2015 
G$ 

110,725,870 

(4,434,561) 

106,291,309 

(I) Unutilised fun,c;!s from the following grants: ALBA Funds, EL Nino Funds.Buxton Project
North and South Pal<araima Project and Land Utilisation Project.

2016 2015 

G$ G$ 

Payables and accruals 

Accruals 1,535,854 1,767,415 

Related party transactions 

2016 2015 

Directors' fees paid during the year: G$ G$ 

P. Cheong 60,000 

P. R. Roopnarine 42,000 

R. Sukhai 42,000 

V. De Silva 49,000 63,000 
D. Doodnauth 89,000 63,000 
B. Sears 81,000 63,000 

D. Dhanraj 42,000 

T. David 42,000 

R. Jagarnauth 89,000 63,000 

R. Prashad 42,000 

V. Balgobin 14,000 

R. Singh 14,000 
A. Ameerally 42,000 

M. Qualander 42,000 

M. Johnson 30,000 
M. Wilson 2·1,000 
M.Jollnson 147,000 
M.Wilson 81,000 

536,000 685,000 

Sub-commillees fees are included in 2016. 
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GUYANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Analysis of finc1ncial assets and liabilities by measurement basis 

2016 

Assets 

Receivables and prepayments 
Investment 
Cash on hand and at bank 

Liabilities 

Payables and accruals 

Deferred income 

2015 

Assets 

Receivables and prepayments 
Investment 
Cash on hand and at bank 

Liabilities 
Payables and accruals 

Deferred income 

Loans and 
receivable 

G$ 

88,472,210 

88,472,210 

87,966,275 

87,966,275 

21 

Other 
Financial assets 
and liabilities at 
amortised cost 

G$ 

91,020,466 
73,340,545 

164,361,011 

1,535,854 

103,563,264 
105,099,118 

90,422,526 
54,904,130 

145,326,656 

1,767,415 

106,291,309 
108,058,724 

Total 
G$ 

88,472,210 
91,020,466 
73,340,545 

252,833,221 

1,535,854 

103,563,264 
105,099,118 

87,966,275 
90,422,526 
54,904,130 

233,292,931 

1,767,415 

106,291,309 
108,058,724 
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GUY /\Ni\ MARKETING CORl'ORl\:noN 

NOTES ON Tl·IE ACCOUNTS 

20 i'i11ancial risk 111:tllll[lCIIICIII 

(a) 

(i) 

Financial risk nrnnngc111c111 objectives 

The corpornlio11's 111:111agcment 111011ilurs and 111,uwgcs the linunciul risks rein ting lo the opcralio11s or the corpomtio11 thro11gh inlcrnnl 
risk rcporls which annlysc exposnres by degree a11d magnitude ur risks. These risks include market risk (currency risk, inlcrcsl rate risk 
and price risk). credit risk und liquidity risk. The cor11rn111iun seeks lo minimise the clfocts urtl,csc risks by the use of'tech11iqucs thnt 
arc gu,•erncd hy nmnagcmenl's policies on foreign exclrnugc risk, i11tcresl rate risk and credit risk which arc npprovcd by the board or 
directors. The corporalio11's mnnagc111c11t reports monthly lo lhc board of'dircctors on 111allcrs rclnting to risk ond management of'risk. 

lVlnrkct risk 

The corporation's activities expose ii lo the lina11cial risks or chnnf.leS in foreign currency c.xcli:111[lc rates and interest rates. The 
CorporuliD11 uses f,�teresl rate se11si1ivi1y and exposure limits to financial inslnnncnls lo manage its exposure tu interest rate and foreign 
currency risk. There has been "" change in the corporation's exposure to mnrkct risks or lhe manner i11 which it manages these risks. 

l11lcrcsl rate ri!-ik 

Interest rate scnsitivily a11alysis. 

The sensitivity n11alysis below has been dclcnnined based Dn lhc exposure lo inlcrcsl mies for nil li11nncinl instn1111cn1s al lhc encl of' the 
reporting period. lhc ;malysis as preparcu 11ss11111ifig 1i1e 1111T011trts of thc-ftttflttcinl im;1F11111C11ls-J1t the-end-OJ' lhc_n:porling period were in 
existence throuflhout the whole year. A 50 has is point increase or decrease is used when reporting interesl ralc risk internally to l;cy 
managcmcnl pemmncl and represents manngcmcnl's nsscssmcnl of' the reasonable possible chnngc in intcrcsl rn1cs. 

If inlcrcsl mies had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all the olher variables were held couslnnl, lhe Corpornlion's profit for the 
year wonlcl increase/decrease hy 0$821805 (2015: G.$726,633). This is mainly :utribulable to lhc Corporation's exposure to inlcrcsl 
rules units bal:mees al bank 

22 

I 

I 

I 



I I

20 Financial risk management - cont'd 

(a) Market risk-cont'd

(ii) Currency risl<

GUYANA MARl<ETING CORPORATION. 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

The Corporation's exposure to the effects of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates is

minimal.At the end of the financial year there were no assets or liabilities denominated in

foreign currencies.

(iii) Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
prices whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual security of its issuer or
factors affecting·all securities traded in the market. Management continually identifies the risk and
diversifies the portfolio in order lo minimize the risk.

The corporation is not significantly exposed to other price risks arising from equity investments.

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risl< that the corporation will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet its
commitments associated with payables.
The corporation manages its liquidity risk by maintaining an appropriate level of resources in
liquid or near liquid form.

The following table shows the distribution of assets and liabilities by maturity:

Assets 

Receivables and prepayments 
Investment 
Cash on hand and at bank 

Liabilities 

Payables and accruals 

Net assets 

Average 
interest 

rate 
% 

3 

Maturing 
2016 

Within 1 year 
On Demand Due 3 - 12 mths 

23 

G$ G$ 

88,472,210 

88,472,210 

88,472,210 

91,020,466 
73,340,545 

164,361,011 

1,535,854 

162,825,157 

G$ 

88,472,210 
91,020,466 
73,340,545 

252,833,221 

1,535,854 

251,297,368 
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20 Financial risk management - cont'd 

(a) Liquidity risl<-cont'd 

Assets 

Receivables and prepayments 

Investment 
., 

Cash on hand and at bank 

Liabilities 

Payables and accruals 

Net assets 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

Average Maturing 

interest 2015 

rate Within 1 year 

% Within 1 �ear Due 3 -12 mths 

G$ G$ 

87,966,275 

90,422,526 

3 54,904,130 

87,966,275 145,326,656 

1,767,415 

87,966,275 

24 

GS 

87,966,275 

90,422,526 

54,904,130 

233,292,931 

1,767,415 

231,525;516 

I 
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20 Financial risk management - cont'd 

(c) Credit risk 

GUY /\NA MARKETING CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THfr ACCOUNTS 

Credit risk is the risk thut linancial loss arises from fuilurc of u customer to mccl ils obligations under a 
contrnc!, it arises in the case of the corporation, principall)' from receivable and cash resources holdings.

Cush and hunk includes halanccs held at linancial institutions. These banks have been ,1sscssed by the Directors 
as being credit worthly, with very strong capacity to meet their ohligalions ns they litll due.

The corporation's exposure to credit risk is continuous!)' monitored to ensure that mnounts arc recovered.
Management implicitly monitors lhe mmlysis or credit risk portfolio.
The corporation docs not huve any signilicnnt credit risk exposure to an)' single countcrparty or :my group of 
counterpartics huving similnr clmrnc!cristics.

Maximum cxpos111·c lo crcdil risk without tnldng account of any collatcr:il :ind other 
credit cnha11cc111cnls. 
The table below shows the Corporation's nm.�imum exposure to credit risk .

.. 

2()16 29..11 

Gross maximum exposure: GS GS 

Investment 9 I ,020,4(i6 90,225,275 
Cash resources at bank 73,340,5115 54,9(M,129 
Receivables (i) 88,472,210 87,966.275 

Totnl crctlil risk exposure 252,833,221 233,095,679 

Whcrc limu1cial instruments arc recorded at fair value the amounts shown above represents the 
ct11Tcn1 credit risk exposme hut not the maximum risk exposure that could arise in the fulurc as a 
result of changes in value.�. 

(i) This represent trauc receivable which arc collectible

Couccntration or risk is managed by clicnl/counterpmty, by geographical region and by industry sector 
,is detailed in the following: 

Geographical sectors 

The corporntion's m,Lximum credit exposure, allcr taking account of crcuil loss provisions established 
can be anulysccl by the following geographical sectors based on the country or domicile of countcqiarties: 

Guyana 

The above balaucc.� arc classilied as li1llows:. 

Current 

2016 

G$ 

88,472,210 

88,472,210 

25 

2015 
G$ 

87,966,275 

87,966.275 

• I 

... 
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21 Capital risk nianagement 

GUYANA MARKETINO CORPORATION 

NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS 

The corporation manages its capital to ensure that it will be able lo continue as a 

going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation 

of the debt and equity balance.The corporation's overall strategy remains 

unchanged from 2014. 

The capital structure of the corporation consists of cash equivalents and equity 

attributable to I.he Government of Guyana, comprising capital, reserves and 

retained earnings. 
,,. 

22 Subsequent Event 

The Corporation accept liability for damage to a customer goods amounting to $4,084,362 

for which no provision was made.This amount however, was not quantified or communicated 

to the affected party before the end of the reporting period. 

23 The financial statements were approved by the board of directors on June 30, 2018. 

26 
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Tim Chairman & Board of Directors 
c iuynn:.1 Mnrkcr.ing Corporation 
Rohh and AlcxandGr Sl:ret:L 
Gt•:ORGr:TOWN. 

Dear Sirs. 

,., 

ln :lccnnlimcc with our nmmal practice, we nre reporting the resultc; of our study ,md evaluation of 
< iHyarw Murkc1ing Corporatfrm 's internal accounting controls and procedures for the year ended 
Dcccrnhcr J J. 2016. The matte.rs discussed in this letkr :-;hould be read in cnqjt1nction vvW1 
Appcndi:-; A whid1 sets oul the context of our study and evaluation. Appendix A frnthcr indicates 
r-li:11 ow· :::tudy and evaluation is rdnted solely to tbc audit and is not designed for a separate opinion
nn the internal a,xounting control systems. While we cannot therefore, express an opinion on the
�;y_;l:crn of internal accounting control taken [LS a whole. our study and evahwtion did disclose certain
;uutl.c.r:-: that do nof. con:::titute 1m1tt.:ria.l wenknesses.

fvl!\T'll::R P(�EVIOUSLY REPOJ.r:rn.D 

l. RhCL:IV ABLES

C'<;Jnmcnt 

The: Corpora Ii.on ha:; an outstanding receivable umounting to G$86. 994. 71 J from the 
Guyrnia Sugnr Corporal.ion. This b:dtrnce was outs1ancling for more than one yem and wa.s 
,wt scltlcd nor provided for. 

1. RECEIVABLES

( '.nrnmcni 

TbtTe were a numb1::r (if balances which were coming :l:orward from previous yems .for 
\.vhich no pwvisicm wns made. Sec appendix 1. 

/'2 ... 

·: ... ; , !�o. ·--'. ·11-. �:���'' -Hi:!.:.!:;- oH,�<-, i F;i;,.:: :;<>:.�--::•;!!j-';1!i7g:':._'-·· ;•, .i '-�H,;L,•, irt, ' .. !•:,_u;iiJ: dr1,11·ndiv,ffh,,:ey.1�1uu 
' •. J � I ••11 ,\., 1 1•. · ·- �  h,·wkd:uH. Pt I Bn:i-: 1or;nr,. r;t·:nrgctown. <;uynua 

.J1,!l'I I ICJ�� 

: li,.111ry 
II. L,,I - FCC,, / C. Douglas - FCC/\ / S. R.ih<1111a11 - FCCt,
1:i Fd1ru,1ry 11)'1(1 - Fm1111k:d Thomas, ::iloll, Di,1r; & Co. (TSO)
V l\·L1y ,,r;a - A 111embernfToud1c Ror;s lnlcm.itirmal
, , Scpl.o.:mblT HJ<fl lo ,;o December :.:ou9 - Deloiu·c L!t Touchc AUDll TAX. GONSlJLTIIIIG. FINAf\lCJAI.AJ)VISOl;Y 
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The Chairman & Board of Directors 
Guyana M:irkcting Corpor,1tio11 

.July 11, 2011! 

Page o;� 

M/\.TTERS NOW REPORTrNG-CONT'D 

RECEJVABLES-CONT'D 

'l 

lmpl ication 

These amounts may not be recovered. 

[{ccommendation 

Nlanagemcnl should consider making provision for these Jong outstanding bahmces. 

CASH AND BANK. 

Comment 

There were a number of confirmations which were outstanding on completion of the 
audit field work. Sec appendix 2. 

lmplicalion 

Third party confirmations are integrul part of audit evidence which should be received for 
us lo complete the audit verification on these balances. 

Hecommt::ndation 

Mnnagement should follow up on outstanding confirmations. 

Since we have nol received a reply lo our drnfl letter. we assume that you are in agreement with the 
commcnls and recommendations. 

The information contuined in this letter is intended solely for the use of Management and the Board 
of Directors nnd should not be used for any other purpose. 

We wish to thank m,111�1gcmcnt and st.a ff for lhc co-operation extended to us during the course of the 
�wdil. 

Yours lt1ithfully, 

\\{�l\ 

Ramesh Lal 
M:1n:1ging Partner. TSD LAL & CO 

Cr: Mr. Owen Nester, /\ccou,1t;111t 
G11ya11a M:irketing Corporal inn 

Mr. D Shc1r111a, A11ditor General 
/I 11clil Office of G11y:111a 
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GUY ANA MARKETING CORPORATION 

APPEND.TX A

. Our sl.11dy and cv.aluution of the system of internal acc�JUnting control was made as part of our 
c�:amination of the :financial statements of Guyana Marketing Corporation for the year ended 
December 31, 2016 on which we reported in our auditor's report dated June 30, 2018. 

l)uring our examination we studied and evaluated Guyana Marketing Corporation's system of
i nl.ernal accounting controls, to the extent we considered necessary in order to meet requirements of
ln1crnutional Standards on Auditing. These standards require a study and evaluation of internal
accounting control only for the j)LU])0sc of dcl.cnnining the nature, timing and extent of the auditing
procedures necessary for expressing an opinion on Guyana Marketing Corporation financial
statements. Our study and evaluation is therefore, more limited than would be necessary to express
an opinion on lhct°system of .internal accounting control taken as a whole, and would not necessarily
disclose ull material weaknesses in the system.

We understand that management of the ComJJany is responsible -for establishing and maintaining n 
system of internal accounting conlTOI and is required to assess, using estimates and _judgements, the
expected benefit and related costs of control procedures. 1n our audit we remain alert to situations 
where improvements should be considered or where controls may no longer be cost effective. 
Consequently, we make recommendations related to the objectives of a system which is designed to 
provide management with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded against 
loss from unauthorised use or disposition, and that transactions are executed in accordance with 
management's authorization uncl recorded properly to permit the preparation of financial statements 
in accordance with general.ly accepted accounting principles. 

Because of inherent limitations in any system of internal accounting control, errors or irregularities 
muy nevertheless occur and not be detected. Also, projection of any evaluation of the system to 
future period:; i::; sul�ject to the risk that procedures may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions or lhat the degree of compliance wilh the procedures may deteriorate. 

/2 ... 
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Appendix 1 

l)ute Invoice.ff. 

I g_ I 0.'.20] 3 6188 

(((.l2.2013 6256 

12.02.2014 6284 

f 2.02.2014 6287 
l'.UJJ.2014 6298 

[2.08.2014 6132 
Jl.()8,2014 6133 

I 0. f 1.20 J 4 6236 

I0.11.2014 6237 

22.12.2014 6321 

IJ.C>J.2015 6063 
()9.11.2015 7467 

15.1�2.:2015 6784 

Appendix 2 

I. Subvention accounl

'2. Marketing account

3. Packaging Facility

4. S:wing�;

5. Fcrtili;'..er

C11stomer 

Guyana Marketing Corporation 

Guyana Marketing Corporation 

Guyana Marketing Corporation 

Nationnl Drninnge & lrrigation Authorily 

Spready's Supermarket 

Ministry of Agriculture 

Ministry of Agriculture 

fVfinistry of Natural Rcsource.s 

Ministry ofNatural Resources 

Ministry of Agriculture 

Ministry of Natural Resources 

Ministry of Agriculture 

G & P Jaigonin Supermarket 

Amount G$ 

1,500 

1,900 

3,264 

2,040 

1, 1 51 

4,250 

117,050 

4,350 

660 

5,200 

5,000 

4,839 

J,840 

155.044 
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